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The €600,000,000 7.40 per cent, Guaranteed Step-up Callable Perpetval Preferred Securities (the “Preferred
Securitics™} of Bank of Ircland UK Loldings ple (the “Tssuer”), guatanceed on a subordinared basis (the
“(zuarantee”’] to the extenr specified herein by The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ircland {the
“Bank”, “Bank of Ireland™ or the “Guarantor”), will bear interese from (and including) 7 March 200H 1w
{but excludingl 7 March 20171 ar a rare of 740 per cent. per annum, payable annuoally ino arrear oo 7 March
in each vear, starting 7 March 2002, Thereafier, the Preferred Securities will bear interest at a raee, resce
quarterly, of 326 per cent. per annum above the Furo-zone interbank offered rate for three month coro
depasits, payable quarterly in arrear on 7 March, 7 June, 7 Seprember and 7 December in each vear, all as
mure particularly deseribed in “Terms and Conditions of che Preterred Secorities — 3. Coupon Paymuents®,
Payments {which term, as defined hercin, does not include principal) may be deferred as described in “Terms
and Conditions of the Preferred Secorities — 4. Deferrals™, but neither the Issuer nore the Bank may, whiks
any Payments are deferred, declace or pay dividends or disteibutions on any ardinary or preterence shares o
stock {as the case may bed or other issued Tier 1 Capital of the lssuer or the Bank or {in the case of the Bank)
make any payment under any applicable puatantee in respect of any such dividend or distribution, excepr for
any such dividend or distoibution paid by the Issuer o the Bank, any holding company of tie Bank or
another wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank.

The Preferred Securities are redeemabile in whole or in part at the option of the Issuer on 7 March 2011 or an
cach Coupon Payment 1Jate [as defined herein) thereafter. In addition, upon the occurrence of cerain tax or
repulatory ovents, the Preferred Securities may, subject as provided herein, ar the oprion of che Tssuee eicher (i
he exchanged for, or their terms varied so thae they become, Upper Tier 2 Securities (as defined hereind, ue i
be redeemed at, as applicable, cheir principal amount or the Bedemption Price (as defined hergin, in cicher
case together with any Qutstanding Payments [as defined herein), all as more pansicolarly described in
“Terms and Conditions of the Preferted Seewurities — 8. Exchange, Yartiation or Redemprion”.

Under existing Central Bank of [reland regquirements, the Issuer may nor redeem or purchase any Preferred
Secariries onless the Central Bank of Ireland has given its priar consent.

For a description of certain macters that prospective investors shimld  consider, see “Investment
Constderations™.

Application has been made w list che Preferted Sccutities on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, A copy of this
Offering Circular has been delivered tor the Repiscrar of Companies in Ireland for registration in accordance
with the Eurnpean Communities (Stock Exchange) Regulations 1984 (as amended) of [reland.

The Issuer and the Bank accept responsibility for the information contained in this Offering Circular, To the
best wf the knowledge and belief of the Issuer and the Bank {which hawve taken all reasonahle care to ensure
that such is the cased the information contained in this QOffering Circular is in awordance with the faces and
daes not omit anything likelv to affect the impart of such information,

In conncction with the ssue and sale of the Preferred Scecuritics, oo person is authorised e give any
mfermation or to make any representation not contained o this document and if given or made, such
informarion or representation must wot be relied upon as having been authorised by the Tssuer, the Bank,
the Managers [as defined in “Sobscriprion and %ale” below) or The Bank of New York, as custer ithe
“Trosee™], Neither the delivery of chis Offering Circolar nore any sale hereunder shall create, under any
ciccumstances, any iinplication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer or the Bank since
the date hereosf or that the information conrained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to s daee.

This (ffering Circular 15 nor intended to provide the hasis of any credit or other evaluarion and shoukd nort be
comsidered as a recommendation by the Issuer, the Bank or the Managers that any recipient of this Offering
Cireelar shoold porchase any of the Prefereed Securities. Each inveseor contemplating purchasing Preferred
Securities should make its own independent investigation of the Hnancial condidon and affairs, and s own
appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the lssoer and the Bank.

The distribution of this document and the offering or sale of the Preferred Secunitics in certain jurisdictions
may be resrricted by law, Nooacrion has been taken by the [ssuer, the Bank or the Managers which would
permit a public offering of the Preferred Securitics or distribution of this decument i any jurisdiction where
action for thar purpose is required. Aceordingly, no Preferred Securities may be offered or sold, dircctly or
indirectly, and neither this Offering Cireular nor any advestisement o other obfering material may be
distributed or published in any jurisdiction, except under cireumstances thar will resole o complhance with




any applicable Jaws and regolations, Persons inte whaose possession this Offering Circolar or the Preferred
Securities may come must informy themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. See “Subscription
and Sale™ below for a description of certain restricrions on offers, sales and deliveries of the Preferred
Securities.

The Preferred Securities have not been, and will not be, registetedd under the United Stawes Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and comprise Preferred Securities in bearer form that are subject to Unired States rax law
requirements, Subjoct to certain exceptions, the Preferred Securities may not be sold or delivered, direcely or
indirectly, within the United States or to LS, persons.

In chis doecument, all references o “IRL™ refer to frish pounds, those to “4" and “Seecling™ refer w pounds
sterling and those to “curo” and “€" refer o the single currency of participating member states of the
Eurcpean Union introduced at the start of the chird stage of European cconomic and monetary union
pursuant 1o the Treaty establishing the European Communiry, as amended from time o time,

In conneciion with this issue, UBS AG, acting though its business group UBS Warburg, may over-allot or

effect transactions which stabilisc or maintain the market price of the Preferred Sccarities ac a bevel which
might not otherwise prevail, Such stabilising, if commenced, may be discontinued ar any time.
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The following summary refers to certain provisions of the Terms and Conditons of the Preferred Securities
and the Trust Deed and insofar as i refers to the Terms and Conditions of the Preferred Sccoritics is
qualified by the more detailed informaton contamed elsewhere i this decument. Defined terms wsed
herein have the meaning given @ them in “Terms and Conditiops of the Preferced Securities™,

Bank of Ireland UK Haldings pk

The Governor and Company of the Bank of Treland
The Bank of Wew York

€600,000.000

The Preferred Sccurities are perpetual securinics and have ro matarity
date. However, the Preferred Securities are redeemable m whole or in
part at the opuon of the Issyer, sobjece to the prior approsal of the
Central Bank of Ireland and of the Guarantor, ar thar pancipal amount

together with any Owrstanding Payments on 7 March 20011 ithe *First -

Reser Daee™ o any Coupon Payment Date thereafter,

Thie Preferred Secuntics bear interest at a rate of 7.40 per cent, per antum
to (but excluding) the Firse Reset Dare and chercaber at a rate of throe
menth EURIBOR plus 3.26 per cent, por annuem, reset quarkerly.

Sulyect as described below, Coupon Payments will be pavable on 7 Masch
m each vear from {and incleding) 7 March 2002 1o {and including) the
First Reset Dace, and thereafrer, subject ro adjustment for nopn-business
days, on 7 March, 7 june. 7 Sepiember and 7 December i cach year,

The Preferred Securittes will he guaranieed on 2 subordinated basis by the
Guarantor. Paviments of prmcipal andfor inerest in respect of the
Preferred Sccurities will be decmed w be due and payahle & tall for
purpeses of the Gparaoree noowichstanding that, as a cesult of dhe

provisions referred 1o under “Sobordination™ below, they are notan fac !

due and pavable by the 3suer.

The Freferred Secanties will be guaranteed, wnsccured, subordivaced
sceurities of the Issuer, The oghes and claims of Flolders of the Preferred

Seeuritivs under the Preferred Securines and the Goaranee will be -

subordinated to the claims of the Senior Creditors of the lssuer or the
Guarantor {as the case may bed in that no payment i respeet of the
Preferred Sccurities ar the Guarantee shall be doe and pavable except w
the exwene that the lsuer o the Guarantar (as appheable) is Selvent and
cvould make such pavment and soll be Sobvent tnmediately dhereatoer.

Upen any winding-up of the Issuer or of the Guarantor the claims of the

Fiolder of vach Preferred Seeurity will rank as set our under “Winding-up

Claims™ helow.

{n the event of the winding-op of the Issuer or tn respect of dlaims under

the Guarantee] of the Goaranwor, the tolders of Preferred Securitics will, -

for the purpuse only of calculaeing the amounes payable by the Issuer or
rhe Cuaranwor {25 the case may beb in respect of each Preferred Securivy,
be reeared as if, on the day prior o the commencemenr of the winding-up

and thercaficr, they were the holders of preference shares ur prelerence

stock havimg as equal righe g0 o return of the agsers of the lssuer or the
Cuarantor (as the case may he) oo, and so rankmg pare passe with, the
helders of that class or classes of preterence shares or preference seock




Excepttonal deferral of
payments

Coeneral defereal of
payments

* Dividend restriciion dormg
perind of defeeral

Alternative coupon
satisfacticn mechanism

Aleernative puarantee
satisfacoon mechanism

tif any} FFom time to tme issued by the lssuer or the Guaranwer (as the
case may bel which have a preferential right to a retuen of asseis in the
windimg-up over, and so rank ahcad of the holders of, all other classes
of the issued shares or stock of the Ussuer or the Guarantor (as the casc
may boy bat which rank junmior o the claims of Semor Credivors of the
lssuer or the Goaraneer (as the case may be) and junior o any notional
class of preference shares or preference stock in the capital of the lssuer or

the Guarantor fas the case may bed by reference to which the amount

payable in respect of any subordinared debe in the winding-up of the
ssuer of of any Undated Swbordinated Doebt of the Guarantor i the
winding-up of the Guarantor 15 derermined.

if the lssuer deternunes, prior to the making of a payment {other than a
payment in respecr of principal) that the Guarantar is, or the making of

such payment will resale in the Guarantor being, in non-comphance with
applicable Capital Repulations, the Issuer 15 required, sebject to the
dividend restricoon  deseribed  below, o defer that payment. Such
excepttonally deferred payment may be satished at any Hime by the Issuer
piving nat less than 16 busmess days notice of such sarsfaction, and

must, vnless the Bauer elects to defer such payment purseant to ks

peneral right o defer eeferred o below, be osatished on the noxa
following Coupan Payment [Xare if, on the 20th bosiness day prior to
such Coupon Paviment Date, the Guarantor vo longer 15, and payment of

a Coupon Paymenr will rot resolt in it bemg, in nor-complance with i

such applicable Capital Reguladons, Fxceptonaily Deferred Coupon
Payments will not accree interest on the deferred payments,

Subjeet o the dividend restriction descoibed below, the Issuer may clece wo

defer any payment {other than a payment of principal) on the Preferred
Securities for anv period of rime. However, the deferred payment will
bear interest at 2 poer cent. per annum above the rate of interest generally
applicable to the Preferred Securities as set out wnder “Interest” above.

If the Issuer defers a payment for any reason as described above then,
while any pavment s so deferved, neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor
may declare or pay 2 dividend or distribution jor, in the case of the
CGuaraneor, make 4 payiment under any guaranees in respece of any such
dividend or distnbution} on any of their ordinary or preference shares or
stock or other issued Tier 1 Capital, as the case may be, other than a
dividend or distribotion paid by the Fssuer to the Guarantor, any holding
cenpany of the Guarantor or © another Whoily-Owned Subsidiary of
the Guarantor,

Investors will always recelve payments made wm respoct of Preferred

Securities in cash. However, if the [ssuer defers a payment i must, or o
and o the extent the ssuer so clects av any time it may, sadisfy s
chligation to make anv payment (other than a pavment of principall w
Holders of Preferred Secorioes by issuing its ordinary shares o the

Trustee or its apend. In such event, the Trustee or s agent will exchange !

such ordinary shares for units of ordinary stock in the Guarantor which,
when sold, will provide a cash amount which the Trustee ar its agent will

pay 1o the Preferred Securiey Holders i respec of the relevantr pavment. |

The Calenlation Agent will calculane in advance the number of units of
ordinary stock in the Guarantor o be issued o order 1o enable the

Trustee or its agent to raise the full amount of money due on the

relevant payment date o Prefereed Security Holders,

if a payment due from the Gparantor pursvapt to the Guarantee is in
respect of 2 Fayment which has previously been deferred by the Tssuer
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Suspension

Additional amoents
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the CGuarantor must, and if and o the exrent the Guarmotoer so cleos ar

any time in respoect of a payment due from it the Guarantor may, satisfy
its ohligation to make such pavment eer Holders of Preferred Sccuritics, by
the issue of its ardinary stock to the Trustee or s agent, ln soch evene,
the Trostee or irs agent will sell such units of ordinary stock for a cash
amonnt which the Trustee or its agent will pay to the Freferred Security
Holders in respect of the relevam guarantee pavment.

The CGuarantor has agreed in the Trust Deed thar any ablipation owed by
the lssuer to the Guarantor inorespect of pavments made under the
Guarantee will be sarisfed only by cthe issue of ordinary shares in rhe
lesier.

Each of the lssuer and the Guarantor is requited to keep available for
issue enough shaces or stock (as the cnse mav bed as it reasonably
considers would be required 1o sagisty from time w nme the next vear's

Coupon Pavment or Pavments using the alternative coupon sausfaction |

mechanism  andfar, in the case of the Guaranror, the alternative
guarantee satisfaction mechanism deseribed above,

If, in the opmion of the lssuer ur, us the case may b, the Guarantor, in
eavh coee subyect where necessary o determunations made by the
Caleulation Agent, & Market Disraption Fvent exisis an or atrer the 15ch
business day preceding any dace apon which it is due 1o satisfe a payment

using the altermarive coupon satisfaction mechanism or the alicrnaove !

guarantee satisfaction mechanism {as the case may be) the relevane
payment to ] lolders of the Prefecred Securities may be deferred until the
Market Discuptiom Event no [onger exiscs,

If, following any take-over offer or any reorganisation. restrocturing or
scheme of arrangement, the Guarantor (or any  successor ultimate
holding company of the Bank of Ireland group of companies) ceases to
e the wlimate holding company o the Bank of Ireland group of
cormpanies, any changes to the diumentation relaning ro the Preferred
Securities  dinchuding, the Guaranoee) determaned by an independent
investnent bank 1o be appropriate will be made by the Issuer, the
Guarartor and the Trustee, and pending such changes the lssuer and the
Cruaranror will be unable o settle pavments using the alternative conpan
satisfaction mechanism and/or the alternative  puarantee  satsfaction
mechanism, If the investment hank is unable to determine appropriate
amendients, as nofificd o the lssuwer, the Guaranror and the Trosies,
the Preferred Securities will [subject to the prior consent of the Cenrral
Bank of lrelandd be redesmed ar the Redemption Price, together with
any Cutseanding Pavments.

The lssuer and the Guarantor will pay addinenal amauns to Holders of
the Prefersed Securites to gross upy Coupon Payments of payinvetits dider
the Cuacantee in respect chercof upon the imposition of UK or irish
withholding rax, subject (o customary exceprions.

Upuon the occurrence ot certain changes in the treavment ot the Prefecred
Securitics for taxarion purposes, he [ssuer may, sehjoc o the prios
vonsent of the Cenceal Bank of reland and of the Guaransor, cither i)

redeem the Proferced Secunitivs ar cheir principal amouwnt or {in rhe .
P I

circumstances sét out herein) g theie Redempuon Price, in each case
togecher with any Qutstanding Payments, or (i) cxchange the Preferred
Securities for. or vary the wrms of the Preferred Securines so thar they
become, Upper Tier 2 Secorities or, i such change in tax weatment aha
affeces or would affect the Upper Tier 2 Securities and provided the
Lsuer s Sobveny, redeem alll bur not some ool of the Preferred

|
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Sccurities at their principal amounr eogether with any Outstanding
Payments.

The Pecferred Securities wilt qualify as Tier 1 Capital for the porposes of |

the Central Bank of Ircland’s capital adequacy reguladon of the
Guarantor. If ar any time the Preferred Securides cease 1o qualify as Tier
I Capital, the Issuer may, subject ta the prior cunsent of the Central Bank
of Treland and of the Guaranrer vither (i} redeem the Preferred Securities
at their Redempnion Price rogether wich any Qutstanding Pavments or (i)
exchange the Preferred Sccurities fur, or vary the terms of the Preferred
Securines so thar they become, Upper Tier 2 Secerities or, if either such
exchanged or varied securitics do ot or would nor constitute Upper Tier
2 Capiral of the Guarantor or a change in tax treatment as referred to
under “Exchange, vanation or redemption for taxation reasons™ above
also affects or wauld affect the Upper Tier 2 Securinies, and provided the
Issuer is Solvent, redeemn all, but nor some only, of the Preferred Secoritics
at their principal amount wgeecher with any Ouistanding Pavments,

The sole remedy against the Issuer or che Guarantor available o che
Trustee or any Holder of Preferred Securities for recovery of amounes
owing in respect of the Preferrcd Securivies will ke the institution of
provecdings for the winding-up of the Issuer andfor the Guarantor and/
or proving in such winding-up.

Bearer, The DPreferred Securities will he represented imitially by the
Temporary Global Preferred Security, which will be deposited ourside
the United States with a common  depositary  for Clearstream,
luxembourg and Furaclear on ar aboot 7 March 2001, Interests in the

Temporary Global Preferred Security will be exchangeable for interests
in the Permanent (lobal Preferred Security on or after a dave which is

cxpected o be 16 Apeil 2001 upon certification a5 to non-U% benefcial
ownership as requicred by US Treasury regulations and as described in
the Temporary Global Preferred Security. Save in limited crcumstances,
Preferred Securities in dehnitive bearer form with coupons and a talan
attached on issue will not be issued in exchange for incerests in the
Permanent Global Preferred Secariry,

Luxembourg.

The Preferred Securities are expected to be assigned, on issue, a rating of !

A— by Standard & Poor's Rating Services, a division of the MeGraw-Hill -

Companics, Inc. and a rating of “2a23" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc, |

A credir raring is not 3 recommendation ro buy, sell or hold securities 2nd
may bhe subject to revision, suspension or withdrawal ar any tine by the
redevant rating organisaton,

English, cxeept for the provisinns relating te (i) the subordination of the
Issuer’s obligations under rhe Preferred Securities and the winding-np of
the lssuer, and {ii) the subordination of the Guarantor’s oblipatons
under the Guarantee and the winding-up of the Guarantor, which are
governed by Nurthern Irish law and Inish law respectively.




Investment Considerations

Prospectve investors should eavefuliv consider the following ffursaitm: i conpction with the other
information conteined iv this docurment.

1.1 Deferral

The Issuer may defer any Payrment (such erm docs not inelude principal) on the Preferred Securitivs for any
period of time. and in cerain arcumstances muost deter any Payment, all as more pacticulacly described in
“Terms and Conditions of the Preferred hecuritics — 4, Deferrals™, Any such deferred payment will, unless
i an exceptional defereal as described wnder “Terms and Conditions of the Preferred Secunties —
4. Deferrals — 4} Exceptional Deferral of Pavments”, bear interest ar owo per cent. above the rane
applicable 1o the Preferred Securities. 1uring the periad of all defereals, neither the Issuet noe che Bank may
declare ur pay a dividend or distribution on any of its ordinary or preference shares or stock or uther issned
Tier 1 Captal or {in the case of the Guaranior) make any pavmens vnder 2 gudrintes in respest of any such
dividend or distribution excepr for any dividend or distnbution paid by the Tsaer ta the Bank, any holding
comparty of the Bank or another wholly-owned subsidiars of the Bank.

1.2 Perpetual securities

The Issuer is wnder oo obligaton to redeem the Preferred Securities at any nme (save, subicet o the prior
comsert of the Central Bank of lreland. in the particular circumstances refecced oo in “Terms and
Condirions of the Prelerred Securirics — 2. Pavments — Suspension™) and the 1 lalders have no right o call
for their redemption.

1.3 Rademption risk

Upon the occurrence of cortain specifed rax and regulatory cvents, the Preferred Securitics may, at the aption
oif the [ssuer, vither {i) be exchanged for, or therr wems varicd so that they beeome, Upper Tier 2 Securgies or
iy e redecrned arn, as applicable, their principal amoune or the Redemption Price, oy each case together with
any Oucstanding Payments, subject as provided n “Terms and Conditions of the Preterred Securitics —
%, Exchange, Vanaton or Redemprion — () Exchange, Variaton or Redemption due o Taxation and —
{di Exchange, Varinton or Redempeion for Regulatory Purposes™.

1.4 Subordination

1.4.1 In the event of a winding-up of the lssuee, the claims of the holders of the Preferred Securitdes will rank
for payment:

1al  afrer the clams of unsuhordinated creditors have been met in full;

th) after pavment in full of amounes owing to creditors whose claims are or are expressed o be
subordinated to chose claims deseribed i {2 above oo not further or arherwise

icd afrer payment in Full of amounts owing to creditors whose claims are or are expressed o be
subordinared o the olaims of oher creditors of the Issuer. swhether subordinawd  or
unsubordinated, including. in the winding-up of the Issuer, amounts owing to holders of any
noticnal class of preforence shares in the capital of the lsuer by referenee o which the amaune
pavable in respect of any subondinared debt in the winding-up of the soer is determined; and

tdp  pri passuw with the holders of thar class or classes of preference shares (if any) from nme to time
issud by the Issuer which have a preferential right to a return of assets in a winding-up of the
Issuer and rthus rank for payvmenr ahcad of the holders of wther dasses of fssued <hares i the
capttitl of the lssoer (but excluding any notional class of preference shares i the capilal of the
Issuet as described in sub-paragraph icl abovel.

1.4.2 In the event of a winding-up of the Bank, the claims of the holders of the Preferred Securitics under the
Guarantee will rank for pavment:

tal  afrer the daims of depasitors and other unsubordinated credivors have been met i toll;




Investrant Considerations

{h) afer payment in Full of amounrs owing o creditors whose claims are or are expressed to be
suhordinated 0 those claims deseribed in (a} above inciuding the holders of the Dand
Subordinated Dbt jas defined in “Terms and Condidions of the Freferred Scourtios —
12, Defnidons™) bur nat further or otherwdse;

{c} after payment in full of amounts owing to creditors whose claims are or are expressed o bhe
subordinated to the olaims of arher creditors of the Guarantor, whether subordinated or
uwnsubordinated, including, in the winding-up of the Guarantor, amounts owing to the holders af
any notional class of preference srock in the capital of the Guarantor by reference o which the
amoune payable in respect of any subordinated debo in the winding-up of the Guaranior is
determined, and including the holders of the Undated Subordinacwed Notes (as defined i ' Terms
and Conditions of the Preferred Securicies — 22, Definitions™); and

(b pari passe with the holders of thar class or classes of peeference stock (if any) from time to time
issued by the Guarantor which have a preferential righe to a ceturn of assets in a winding-up of the
Guarantor and thus rank for payment zhead of the holders of other classes of issued stock in the
capital of the Guarantor (but excluding any notional ¢lass of preference stock in the capital of the
Guarantor as deseribed in sub-paragraph (o) above).

1.5 No limitation on issuing dobt

There is no restriction:

{a) on the amount of debt which the lssuer or the Bank may issue which ranks senior to the Preferred
Secucities or senfcrr to the ohligations of the Bank under the Quaranees or o the smoune enier of
securities which the Issucr or the Bank may issue or of guarantees which may be given by the Bank in
respect of any such sceuritics which rank prari pussie with the Preferred Securimes or with the ohligations
of the Bank under the Guaranwee; or

i) on the ssue of preference stock by the Bank ranking parf passu with or jomior to the Preferred Securities,

The issue of any such debt, securities or preference stock or the giving of any such guaraneee may reduce the
amount recaverable by Holders on a winding-up of the Issuer or the Bank or may increase the likelihood of a
deferral of Payments under the Preferred Securitics,

1.6 Avallabillty of shares and stodk

If the lssuer is o saishy 2 pavment using the alternarive coupon satisfaction mechanism or the Bank is to
satisfy a payment under the Guaranter using the altermative guarantee sansfaction mechanism and
insufficient Issuer Shares andfor units of Ordinary Swock [each 25 defined in “Terms and Conditions of the
Preferred Secerities — 220 Defininans™) are available, then the lssuer's or the Bank's payment ohligation {as
applicable) shall be sospended to the extent of such insufficiency and shall, other than in cespeer of
Lxeeptionally Deferred Coupon Payments, bear interest ar the applicable rate sct out herein ondl such time
as sufficient Issuer Shares andior umits of Oredinary Stock are available 1o sansfy all ar parc of the suspended
payment obhgation, as mare particularly deseribed in Terms and Conditions of the Proferoed Securives —
&. Alernative Coupon Sacisfaction Mechanism — (d} Insufficicncy and 7. Alternative Guarantee Satisfacrion
Mechanism — [d] Insufhcieney™.

1.7 Market Disruption Evairt

It the Issuer is to satisfy a payment using the alternative coupon satisfaction mechanism or the Bank s to
satisfy a payment under the Guarantee using the alternative guarantee satisfaction mechanism, and a
Market Disruption Event exists in the opinion of the Issuer or Bank fas applicable), the payment to Holders
may be deferred wuntil the cessation of such market distuption, as more particularly described in “Terms and
Conditinns of the Prefereed Sceurities — 6, Alternative Coupon Sacisfaction Mechanism — fe} Market
Disrupnion and 7. Alternative Guarantee Satisfaction Mechamism — (e] Muarker Disruption™. During a
Marketr Disruption Evenr, interest shall not accrue on such deferred payment unless the Market Disruption
Event continues for a period of 14 days or more from che due dare, in which case interest shall accroe from
the due dare at the applicable rate set out herein.
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18 Restricted ramedy for norn-payment

The sole remedy againse the lssuer or the Bank available s the Trusree or any Huolder for recovery of
amoeunts owing m orespect of any Paymenr or principal i respect of the Prefeered Securities will be che
institution of procesdings for the winding-up of the liswner andior the Bank {in the case of the Issuer in
Morthern Ireland and in the case of the Bank in Ireland, bur no elsewhere) andfor proving in such
winding-up.

1.9 Absenceo of prior public markets

The Preferred Securities consriniite a new issue of securities by the Issuer. Prior to this ssue, there will have
beert o public market for the Preferred Secutities. Although application has been made fon the Preferred
Securitics to be listed on the Luxembouzg Stock Exchange, there can be no assurance thar an active public
marker For che Preferred Secutities will develop and, if such o marker were 1o Jevelop, the Manapgers ane
under no abligation to maintzin such o market. The ligodity and the matkee prices for the Preferred
Securities can be expucted e vary with changes in market and coonomic comnditions, the Arancial condition
and prospects of the lssuer andfor the Bank and other factors thar generally influence the market prices of
SECRTITLRS.
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Terms and Conditions of the Preferred Securities

The following, subject to alteration, are the tevms and conditinrs of the Preferred Secrerities whiek will be
endorsed o auch Preferred Security in definitive form (if 1sswed}.

The Preferrcd Sccwrities are constitued by the Trust Beed, The issue of the Preferred Securitics was
guthorised purswant 10 a resolution of the Board of Dhrectors of the Tssucr passed on 22 February 2001 and
the giving of the Guarantee was aothorised pursuant to a rescelution of a Committee of the Coert of Divectors
of the Guarantor passed on 22 February 2001, which Committee was authorised by a resolation of the Couart
of Directors of the Guarantor passed on 12 December 2000, The statemenes in these Terms and Condirions
mclude semmaries of, and are subject to, the detailed provisiens of the Trust Deed. Copies of the Truse Deed,
the Ageney Agreement and the Calevlation Apency Agreomient are avadable for inspection during rormal
busimess howrs by the Holders and the Coeponholders ar the registered office of the Trustes, being ac
7 March 2001 ac 101 Barclay Streer, New York, New York 10286 1054, and at the speahed office of
each of the Paving Agents. The Haolders and the Coupenholders are enritled w the benefic of, are bound by,
and are deemed o have notice of, all the provisions of the Trust Deed, the Agency Agreement ond the
Calculation Agency Apreement applicable ro them,

1. FORM, DENOMINATION AND TITLE
{a} Form and Denominxtion

The Preferred Secutitios are serially nombered and in beater form in the Awothorised Denominations, cach
with Coupons and one Talon atached on issuce.

{h} Title

Title w0 the Preferred Sccomivies, Coupons and Talons will pass by delivery. The Gssuer, the Guarantor, the
Truster and any Paving Agent may o the fullest exwenr perimitted by applicable law deem and trear the
beaver of any Preferred Secority, Coupnn or Talon as the absolute owner thereot twhether or not the same
is overdue and notwithstanding any rotee of ownership or weiting thereon o nobce of any previous loss or
thefi chereof) For all purposts, and o person will incur any Babiliey for so treanng any sech bearer,

2. STATUS, SUBORDINATION AND GUARANTEE
(a) Statusard Subordination of the Broferred Securithes

11} The Preferred Secungies constirute direce, guaranteed, unseenred, subordinated securities of rhe Issacr and
rapk pari passie withowt any preference among themselves,

() (1Y Condition of Paysment by the Isswer: The nights and claims of the Holders and the Couponholders
against the Issuer under the Vreferred Securittes are subordinaied o the claims of its Senior
Credizors, in thae paviments in vespect of the Preferred Seearities {including pavments to be satsfied
by means of the issue of lssuer Shares in accordance with Condition 6 and any purchases made by
the [ssucr wnder Condition Fle)) are condiienal spon the Issuer being Solvent at the bme of
payment {or issump such issuer Shares or making such purchasel by the lsoer and in char no
principal or Payments shall be due and pavahle in respect of the Preferred Securines lincluding the
issue of lssuer Shares in accardance with Condition é or the making by the Tssuer of any purchase
under Conditton Bie} except w the extene that the lesuer could make such payment (or effect such
issue of lssucr Shares or porchase) and seil be Sclvent immediately thereafrer,

12y Winding-Up Claims of the [sswer: Amounts in respeet of principal or Pavmoents in respect of which
the vonditions referred 1o in Condition 2aliid 1) are noe sanshed on the date upon which the same
wonld otheewise be due and pavable (""Winding-Up Claims of the Issuer'™) will be payable by the
Issuer bath (%) in a2 winding-wp of the Issuer as prowvided in Coadicen 3a} and (v} on any
redemprian pursuant i Condition 8ibh Sic), 8(d) or Hd) A Winding-Up Claim of the Issuer shall
fot bear inrerest.

(h} Status anpd Subordination of tha Guarantes

(1} The Guarantor has {subject as provided in paragraph (i) bedow) i the Trost Decd vrconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed the due and punctual payment of all principal and Payvments and other sems from
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time o tme payaide by the lssuer morespect of the Preferred Secarities and dhe Coupons and all other
moneys pavable by the lssuer under or pursvanc w the Trust Deed. The abligations of the Guarancor
under such guarantee (the “Guarantee”} constilute direct, unsecured, snbordinated obligations of the
Guarantor.

{1} For the purpase of che obligations of the Guarantor under the Guaraneee, payments of principal andfor
Payments in respect of the Preforred Securitics:

{11 shall be deemed o6 be due and payabie in full by the Issuer notwithstanding chat, as a resale of the
opcration of Condirkons 2{a} andfor 3{al, they arc not in fact 50 due and pavable; and

12) shall not be decmed to be due and pavable by che Issuer if any of Conditions $al. 4(bh, &(dY, &ie) or
HNd) apply.

{isit {1} Comdiion of Payment by the Guarawtor: The righrs and claims of the Holders and the
Couponihelders against the Guaranwor wnder the Guaranice are subordimared o the claims of i
Senior Credicors, in that pavments of amounts due under the Guarantee fincluding payments to be
satished by means of the issue of Ordinary Stock in accordance with Condition 7 and any purchases
made by the Guarantor under Conditien 8{c)) are conditional npon the Guaranror being Selvent ar
the time of payment [or isseing such Ordinary Stack or making such purchaset by the Guarantor
and m that oo amoonts shall be dee and payable (including the issue of Ocdinary Stock in
accardance with Condition 7 o the making by the Guaranwwr of any perchase wnder Condition
Bich) excepr ta the extont that the Guarantor could make such pavmient {or cffect such issae of
rdinary Srock or purchasel and soll be Solvenr immediatel thereakrer.

2y Winding-Lip Cleims of the Guarantor: Amoons pavable under the Goarangee in respect of which
the conditions referred to in Condivion 2(bHnin1) are not sagsfied on the dae upon which the
same would otherwise be due and payable ("Winding-Up Claims of the Guarantor™) will he
payable b the Guaranior in 3 winding-up of the Guarancor as provided m Condition 3th) A
Winding-Up Claim of the Guarantor shall rar hear imrerest,

{iv) The Guarantee's obligadons to issue Ordinary Stock in accordance wath Condition 6 or Condition 7 are
alsoy subject to she Guaranww being Solvent ae the dme of such ssue and immediacely therealer, Ko
amounts shall he due and payable by the Guarantor under the Guarantee if the Gearantor is obliged or
has elected to sansfy any Guarantee Coupon Payment through the issue of waits of Ordinary Seack wo the
Trustee in accirdance with Condition 7 and the crcumstances referred o in Conditons 7id), 7le) or 3id)

then applv,

{e} Setoff

Sulyecr m apphcable law, no Holder or Coupnnholder may exercise, claim or plead any righe of ser-off,
COmPemation of reendion o respect of any amount owed 1o 1 by ghe Isseer or the Goarantor ansing under
of w1 connecnion with the Preferped Secuwritics, the Coupons or the Guarpntee and ecach Haolder and
Cooposiholder shall, by virtue of his holding of any Prefeered Security o Coupon and his being o
beneficiary under the Guarantee, be deemed o have wawved all such rights of sct-off, compensation ar
retention,

{d} Retaired Funds to Absorb Losses

If che Issuer or the CGuarantar s nor Solvent, any sums which would otherwise be parvable in respect of the
Preferred Svcuritics or the Guarantee by the issuer or the CGuaraneer (as the case may bed will mstead be
avatlable ro meet che losses of the Tssner or the Guaraneor (as the case may he).

{e} Reportsasto Solvercy

A repart confirmimg that che Issuer or (as the case may bed the Guarantor is Solvent by any owo Dircctors or,
if the Issuer or the Guarantor (as the case may be) is being wound up, its ligeidator shall, ualess the contrary
is proved, be treated and accepred by the bssuer, the Guarantor, the Trostee and ehe Holders as correct and
sufhfeiene cvidence thereof.
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3. WINDING-UP
{a} Winding-up of the Issuer

If at any fime an order is made, or an efective reselution is passed, for the winding-up of the Issuer (except in
any such vase a solvent winding-up solely for the purpose of a rcconsteuction or amalgamation or the
substitutdon in place of the [ssuer of a successor 0 business {as dehined in the Truse Deed) of the lisuer, the
rerms of which reconstruction, amalgamarion or substirurion have previously been apptoved in writing by the
Trustee or By an Extracrdinary Resoludon (s defined i ehe Truse Deedl), there shail be pavable by the Issuer
in respect of each Preferred Security (in liew of any other payment by the lssoer), such amounrt, if any, as
would have been pavable 1o the holder of such Preferred Security if, oo the day prior w rhe commencement
of the winding-up and thereafrer, such Holder were the holder of ane of a class of preference shares in the
capital of the Issuer having an cgual nghr to a retern of assers in the winding-up of rhe Issuer to, and so
ranking prari passe with, the haolders of that class or Hdasses of preference shares {if any) from time to time
issoed by the lssuer:

(3% which have a preferencal nght to o recurn of assers in the winding-op over and so rank ahcad of the
holders of alt other classes of issued shares Far the time bejag in the capital of the Issuer, bar

{ii] which rank junior o the claims of its Senior Creditors and junior w any notional class of preference
shares in the capital of the Issuer by reference o which the amoonr payable in respect of any
subordinated debt of the Issuer in a winding-up of the Lssuer is determined on the assumprion thae the
amount that such Holder was entitded to receive in respect of such preference share on a return of assets
in such winding-up, were an amount cqual to the principal amoune (o, if che Prefereed Secutities have
beeome due and pavable at the Redemption Price pursuant o any of Conditions 8{ch, $(d] or %td} prior
v such winding-up, the Redemption Price) of the relevant Preferred Security and any orther Cutstanding
Payments in respeet of such Preferved Security togerher wirh, 1o the extent not otherwise included wichin
the forepoing, the pro rerg share of any Winding-Up Claims of rhe lssuer atrributable w the Preterred
Security.

(b) Winding-up of the Guarantor

If at any time an order 15 made, or an effective resolubon is passed, for the winding-up of the Guarancor
{except in any such case a solvent winding-up selely for the purpose of a reconstruction or amalgamarion or
the substitotion in place of the Goarantor of a successor in business of the Guarantor, the werms of which
reconstruckion, amalgamation or substiturion have previously been approved in writing by the Trustee or by
an Extraordinary Resoludan), there shall be pavable by the Guarantor in respect of each Preferred Securiry
{in licu of any uther pavment by the Guaranter), such amoune, if any, as would have been payable o the
Halder of such Preferred Securiey under the Guarantee if, on the day prior o the commencement of the
winding-up and thereafrer, such Holder were the holder of one of a class of preference stock in the capital
of the Cuarantor having an equal right w i return of assens in the winding-up of the Guaranror o, and so
ranking pavi passe with, the holders of that class or classes af preference stock (if any) from nme o nime
issued by the Guarantor;

{iy which have a preferendal right o a return of assets in the winding-up over and so rank ahead of the
holdets of all other classes of issued stock for the time being in rhe capital of the Guarantor, bur

{11} which rank jonior te the claims of ins Senior Credirors and junior to any notional class of preference
stock in the capital of the Guarantor by reference o which the amount payvable in respect of any
Undated Subordinated Debe of the Guarantor in a winding-up of the Goarantor is determined on the
assumprion that the amount that such Halder was entitled to receive in respect of such preference stoack
an i return of assees in such winding-up, were ao amount equal to the principal amounr (o, if the
Preferred Seconitics have become due and payable at the Redeniption Price pursoant to any of
Conditions 8{c), #{d} or Hd) prior to such winding-up, the Redemption Price) of the celevant Preferred
Sccurity and any other Questanding Payments in respect of such Preferred Security together with, to the
gutent not otherwise included within the forepoing, the pro rata share of any Winding-Up Claims of che
Guarantor attribucable to the Preferred Sccurity.
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4.

DEFERRALS

The Bssuer mpst make each Coupon Payment on the relevanr Coupon Paviment Date subject to and
asccardaner with these Terms and Conditions, |lowever, the Issuer may or, in the case of (a1 helow, shall
defer 2 Coupon Pavement and any other Paymenr in che follownp cirenmistances:

{a}
[

i}

{iin)

Tt

{b)
(i

1l

(i)

Eweceptional Deferral of Payments

if on the 2th Business Day preceding the date on which any Pavement would, in the absence of deforral
i accordance with chis Condition 4, be Jdue and payable (2) the Exceptional Deferral Condinon s
satisfied and () the consenr of the Central Bank of lreland for the making of such Payment has 1ot
been obwined, then such Pavmens shall be delerred by the bsuer giving notce 1o che Trustee, the
Flalders, the Principal Paving Agent and the Calculation Apewr not less than 16 Business Davs prior to
such date, Any Payment defereed bv che leswer under this Condition d{anit wmay be satished by the lasuer
in aceordance with Condivton 4ahiiv) (bl not otherwisel ar any ime lollowing the date on which thar
Pavement wonld, hut for such defereal, have been due and pavairle, provided thar the Bssuer has delivered
a notice of 1ts election 1o so satisfy such Pavment oo the Trusiee, the Holders, the Pancipal Paving Agent
amd the Calealation Agent not less than 16 Business Uavs prior to the relevant Exceptionally Deferred
Coupon Satisfaction ae and rhag, a1 the dme of satisfying such Pavmene, the Excepeional Deferral
Condition 15 not satished or, if the Exceptinnal Deferral Condition is so satisfed, the consent of the
Central Bank of Teeland v dhe sacisfacrion of such payusent has been obeained,

iF, following dhie defereal of & Favment b the lssner uader Condition 4{ahi) the Fxcepricnal Deferral
Condition s not satished on rhe 20th Business [3ay preceding 2 sebsequent Coupon Payment Pare,
then juntdess such Favinent has previoush been satsbed as conremplaed in Conrdition 4{ali} or the
Gisuer then eleces to defer # pursuant o Condiion b

(x] rhe lssuer shall give not less than 16 Business Days® prige notice to the Trusice, the Heolders, the
Principal Payimg Agene and the Calcolzton Agent thar ivintends w saisly such Pavmenr on soch
susbwegquent Coppon Pavement Date; amd

(¥} the Issuer shall saesfy such Payment on sech subsequent Coupon Pavment Dare i accordance with
Conditon 4iaijivh

I any Pavmene s defereed pursuant e this Condivion 44a) then: (1) neither the lssoer nor the Guarantor
may declare o pay a dividend or distribution {other than a dividend or distribuoon paid by the Bsoer to
the Guarantor, any holding company of the Guaraneor o 1o arother Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of the
Cinacakor], or, in the case of the Guarantor, make 4 paymene under any applicable guaraates in respec
of a dvidend or disseibution, an any of the ordmary share capital, preterence share capital, ordinary
stock, preference skock or arher issued “Tier 1 Capiral of the Issuer or the Guarantor from the date on
which aonce is given pursuant o Condition Hanp) until such time as thao Exceptionaily Peferred
Coupom Pavinent is satisfied in accordance with these Conditions; and (29 no amount will be pavable
by way of interest one anv such Exceprionally Befeered Couepon Favment, save as provided in Condidion
ale) and Condimion el

An Exceptinnally Preferred Coupon Payment may anly be satisficd by the Tssuer by means of an tssue of
Issuer Shares in accordance with Condition &.

Election to Defer Payment

The Issuer may, in respect of any Payment which would otherwise be due and parable, deler such
Fayment by giving a notice o that cffece to the Trustee, the Principal Baving Agent, the Calculanon
Apent and the Holders not less than 16 Business i3ays prior to rhe relevant due dare,

I oa Payment has been deferred i accordance wich Condidion 4ibiil, dhen the Tssuer may ar any dime
elect iby giving w the Teasier, the Pancipal Paving Agena, the Calculanon Agent and the Holders not
less than 16 Business Davs notiee to that effecr) o satisty such Pavmenr by means {and onbe by mcans)
of an issue of Bsuer Sharves in accordance wirh the provisions of Cosdigon 6.

iFany Pavinen s deferred pursuant w this Condicon 4{b), then: (1) reither the Issuer nor the Goaranoor
may declare or pay a dividend or distribunion {other than a dividend or distribution paid by the ssoer oo
the Guoaraptar, any holding company of the Guarantor or ta another Wholly-Owined Subsidiary ol rhe
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Cuarantor], or, in the case of the Guarantor, make a payment under any applicable guarantee in respect
of a devidend or distribution, on any of the ordinary share capital, preference share capital, ordinary
stock, preference seock or other issued Tier 1 Capital of the Issuer or the Guarantor from the date on
which nodee is given pursuant w Condition 4(hHil unel such dme as that Deferred Coupan Payment
{and any other Deferred Coupon Payment or Accrued Coupon Payement) is sarshed in accordance with
these Conditbons, and {2) each Payment which the lssuer defers pursuant to the giving of such a notice
shall bear interest at a rate cqual to the aggregate of the rate determined in accordance with Condition
ikt and 2 per cent. per annom from (and including) the date on which (bur for such deferral} the
Deferred Coupon Pavment would otherwise have been doe to be made to {bur excluding) che relevane
Deferred Coupon Sarisfaction [ace,

5, COUPON PAYMENTS
{a) Coupon Payment Dates

The Preterred Securities bear interest at the Coupon Rate from [and including] the Issue Dare and such
imrerest will (subject 1o Conditions 2{alili1y, 4al, by, 6id), 6ie), Fidh Fiel and 9(d)) be payable on each
Coupon Payment [ite, Fach Preferred Security will cease to bear interest from the due date for redemption
unless, upon duc presentation, payvment of principal is improperly withtheld or refused. In such event, it shall
contnue 1o bear interest in accordance with this Condition (hoth before and after judgment) as provided in
the Trast Deed,

{b] Coupon Hate

tiy The Coupon Rate in respect of any Coupon Period eoding in the peried from {and including) the Issue
Drate tor [bbut excluding) the First Reset Date is 7.40 per cent, per annum.

tii] The Coupon Rate in respect of each Coupon Perind commencing after the First Reser Date shall be the
aggregate of 3,26 per cent. per anpum and;

{aa} the offered rate (rounded, iF necessary, up o the nearest one hundred thousandth of a percentage
poinr [LOBOAGS per vent. being rounded upwards)) for theee-month eura depasics as ar TLOD aom
{Brussels time] on the Coupon Determination Date in question a3 appears on the display designated
as page “248" on the Bridge/Telerare Monitor (or such other page or service as may replace it for
the purpose of displaying such informatiom) as determined by the Caloulavion Agene,

{bhiif such offered rate does not appear, the arithmetic mean {rounded, it necessary, up o the nearest
one hundred thousandth of a percenrage poinr (0000005 per cent. being rounded upwards)) of
offered quotations 1o prime banks in the Furo-zone interbank marker for chree-month coeo
deposits as at 11.00 a.m. (Brussels time) on the Coupon Determunation Date in question obtained
by the Calculation Agent fromm the principal Euro-cone office of the Reference Banks, provided at
least two of the Reference Banks provide the Caleulation Agent wirth spch offered guotations; and

icch if, on any Coupon Deteemination Date to which the provisions of sub-parageaph (bh] above apply,
vne omly or none of the Reference Banks provides the Calcolation Agenr with such a quotation, the
arithmetic mean {rounded. if necessary, up ro the nearese one hundred thousandth of a percencage
point (0000005 per cent. being rounded upwards)) of the euro lending rates which major banks in
rthe Furo-zone selected by the Caleulation Agent are yuoting at approximaredy 1100 a.m. (Brussels
time}d on the televant Coupon Determination Phare to leading Eutepean banks for a peciod of three
maonths,

except that, if the banks so seleced by rhe Caleoladion Agent under sub-paragraph (co) above are not
quening as mentioned above, the Coupon Rare shall be either (i} the Coupon Rae in effect for the last
preceding Coupon Period to which one of the preceding sub-paragraphs of this paragraph shall have
applied or [ii] if none, %.40 per cent, per annum.

{c) Calculation and Publication of Coupon Rate and Coupon Amounts

The Caleunlation Agent will, upon the determination of cach Coupon Rate pursuant 1o Conditon 5(bxii,
calculate the Coupon Amount in respect of each Authorised Dennmination and cause the Coupon Rate and
each Coupon Amount payable in respect of a Coupon Period to be notified to the Trustee, the lssuer, the
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Guarantor, the Principal Paying Agent and the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to be nonficd to the Holders
a5 s00m as possible afeer their determination but in ne event later than the fourth Business Day therealer.

The Coupon Amount in tespect of any Coupon Peried ending peior to the First Reset Daie shall be caleolated
by applving the Coupon Rawe t the principal amoune of each Preferred Secority and, in respect of any period
of less than one year, soch resulting amount shall be multoplied by the Day Count Fraceion,

The Coupan Amount in respeet of any Coupon Perind commencing on or after che Firse Reser Dace shall be
catculated by applying the Coupon Bare o the principal amount of each Prefereed Secority and mutuplving
the result by the Py Caunt Fracrion,

(d} Determination orCalculation by Trustes

If the Calculation Agenr does not at any nme for any reason so determine the Coupon Bate or calculate cach
Coupan Amount in accordance with Conditions 3(bi4ii) and 5{ci, the Trustee or an agent on its behatf shall
der ser and such determinanen or calcalation shall be deeined o have been made by the Calcularion Apens, In
doing s0, the Trustee or such agent shall apply the forepning provisions of this Condition, with any necessary
comscquential amendatents, o the extene chat, in s opinion, it or such agent can do a0, and Inall other
respects it or such agent shall der sooinosuch manner as ie shall deem fair and reasonable in all the
cireumstances. All dererminatons ar caloelations made or obained for the porposes ol the provisions of
this Condition 51d) by or on behalt of the Trustee, shall {in the absence of wilfu] defaol, had faich or
manifest error) be hinding on the lssuer, che Guaranoor, the Caleulation Agene, che Paving Agenrs and all
Holders and Couponholders amd {in the absence of wiltul defanlt or bad faithy no liability o the lssuer, the
Guarangoe, the Holders or the Couponholders shail attach to the Trustee in conrection with the exercise or
noe-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions purseant o such provisioms,

(e} Reference Banks

The ssuer will (with the poioe wntten appeoval of the Traseee) not later than 200 Business Davs hefore the
First Bescr Date appoane four leading Ananciab instituteons engaged in the Euro-rone inerbank marker {each
acring through jis principal Euro-sone office’ to act as Reference Banks (the “Reference Banks™) and will
procure that, so long as any Preferred Securier s outstanding., there shall theeeafter at all times be four
Reference Banks. If any such instiution (aceing through s relevant officet s unable or unwilling o
continue to act as a Reference Bank, vhe Issoer shall {with she prior swritien approval of the Trustee)
appoint some ather leading Ananeial instnetion cngaged inoche Furt-2one interbank warket (actmp thraugh
s pringipal Eure-zone office) to act as sech i its place.

6. ALTERNATIVE COUPON SATISFACTION MECHANISM
{a) Alternative Coupgn Satisfaction Machanlsm

$1% The Taner may only sabsby o Deferred Coupan Payment or an Exveprionaliy Deferrcd Coupon Payvinent
through the issue of Bsoer Shares w the Trustee i accordance with this Condidon 6, amd may cheot 1o so
satishe any other Payment o tull or i part (in which case any reference in this Conditton 6 or, where
applicable. Condivian 7 v a “Payment” shall be construed accordingly).

(b The lssuer may only satsly a Paymene in aceardanve with this Condiien & if bach the Tssuer and the
Guaranior are Selvent at the rime of satsfying such Payment and would be Salvene immwediacely
therealeer.

(it TF the lesuer intends o sausfy any Pavment in accordance with this Condition 6. then 16 shall notify the
Cruacanior, the Trustee, the Principal Paving Agent and the Caleulation Agene not less than 16 Business
Days prior w the relevant Coupun Pavment Date, Deferred Conpon Sansfaceon Dae or Exceptionally
Deterred Coupon Satistaction Date tas the case may be,

(h} bssue of shares
TE any Payment is 1o be satished threnggh the issue to the Trustee of Issuer Shares then, subject to Conditions
Aidl, Glel and 9d):

i) by close of hosiness on or betore the seventh Business Day prier tov the relevant Coupon Paymene Date,
Deferred Coupnn Satistaction Date or Exceptionally Deferred Coupon Satsfaction Dare, the lisuer will
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faid

()

{c}

issue ta the Trustee {(or, if 50 agreed beoween the Lssuer and the Trustee, to an agenr of the Trustee) such
aumber af Issuer Shares {the *“Payment Issuer Shares™) as, in the determination of the Goarantor, have a
market value (converted, where necessary, inte euro) of not less than the relevant Payment 1o be satished
in accordance with this Condition é provided thar che Issuer shall noe be obliged to tsue Lisuer Shares it
the lssuer is not Solvent at the time of such issue or would ot be Solvent immediately thersafter:

the Trustee has agreed, by close of business on or before the sixth Business Day prior to the relevant
Coupun Payment Date, Deferred Coupon Satisfaction Daw or Exceptionally Deferred  Coupon
Sadsfaction Drare, ro cransfer or instruco s agent ro ransfer che Payvment Issuer Shares o the
Guarantor in consideration for which the Guarantor will issue to the Trostee (o, if so agreed between
the lssuer and the Trustee, to an agent of the Trustee} within one Busmess Day of the Guarantar
receiving the Payment Issuer Shares such number of unis of stock (the “Fayment Ordinary Stock™) as,
in the determination of the Calculation Agent, have a market value of not less than the relevant Payment
ter be satisfied in aceordance with rhis Condition & provided that the Guarantor shall not be obliged o
isgue Payment Ordinary Stock if the Guarantor s not Scolvent ae the time of such issne or would not be
Solvene immediatcly thereafter; and

the Trustee will use reasonable endeavoores to effect the transfer ar instruct its agent to effecr the wanster
of such Payment Ordinary Stock to or ro the order of the Calenlation Agent (subject o any necessary
consents boing obtained) as spon as practicabie and m any case not later than by close of business on
the fourth RBusiness Day prior to the date an which the relevang Payment is due and the Calculation
Agent has agrecd w use reasonable endeavours o procure porchasers lor such Payment Ordinary
Stock. The Calculation Agent has further agreed to deliver the proceeds of such sale w, or hold such
peoceeds oo the order of, the Trustee wha shall pay or procure that its agent pays such proceeds as it
holds in respeet of the relevant Pavment on it «ue date 1o the Principal Pavisg Agent for application in
avcurdance with Condition 6(¢).

Issue Satiafins Payment

Where the Issuer either elects or ts required w saristy a Pavment hereunder by issuing Issuer Shares to the
Truseee and in accerdance with its obligations under the Trost Deed fssues such bssuer Shares, such issue
shall (subject o Condition &lell satisfy the relevant Payment or, in the gircumstances referred to in (d)
below, the relevant part of such Payment if made in accordance with this Candition . The proceeds of sale
of Payment Ordinary Stock resulting from the mandatory exchange of Payment lssuer Shares o accerdance
with this Condition 6 shall be paid by the Principal Paviog Agenr ro the Holders in respect of the relevanc
Paymene.

(d}
i

Irsufficiency

If the Issuer is tor sarisfy o Payment in accordance wich this Condition 6 and either the lssuer or the
Cuarantor does not, on the date when the number of Tsuer Shares oc units of Ordinary Stock {as the
case may bel required o be issued is dewermined in accordance with this Condition 6, have suffieient
number of, respectively, Issuer Shares or units of Ordinary Stack available for wssue, then the Issuer or
the Gruarantor {as the case may bed shall nonfy the Guarantor or the lssuer {as the case may bej and the
Trustee, the Principal Paving Agent, the Calculation Agent and the Holders thar all or part, as the case
may be, of the relevanr Payment cannor be so satished dwe ro the circumstances described in this
parapraph, in which case the same shall be sanshed bllowing the date of the nexe annual general
mecting wr exrraotdinary general meering ol shareholders of che lssuer or annval peneral court or
extraordinary general coure of stockholders of the Guarantor (as the case may be) at which a resolucion
is passed making a sefficient number of lsoer Shares or weits of Ordinary Stock, as the case may be,
available o sausty all or such part of the relevant Payment, provided that if the number of Issver
Shares or units of Ordinary Stock authorived to be issued at any such meeting s Insufficient o sansfy
all or such patt of the relevanr Payment then those Issuer Shares ar umits of Ordinary Stock soissued
shall {to che extenr thar the relevant number of Tssuer Shares or units of Crdinary Stock (as the case
may bel are also available] be applied by the lssuer in parc sadisfaction of all or such parr of rthe
relevant Payment. Following the passage of any such resolution, the lssuer or the Guoarantor {as the
case may be) shall nodfy the Trustee, the Principal Mavieg Agent, rhe Calculation Apent and the
Holders uf the date upon which the relevant Paymient or, a4 the case mar be, the parc therenf is ro be
made in accordance herewsth on not less than 16 Business Days' notice, The relevant Payment or, as
the case may be, the part thereof which is not so satisfied shall, unless it is an Exceptionally Dieferred
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Coupon Payment, cuntinue to acerve incerest ar a rate derermmed in aceordance with Condition #1b)iiii)
frem dand including) the date an which such Payment wouald otherwise have been due to (bur eacluding)
the dare on which such Paymenr or part thereaf is satished o, in the event of a Marker Diseupion Fvent
as desenibed in Comdinon 6lel, the date on which such Payiment or pane thereot would, buc far e
occurrence of such Marker Disruption Event, bave been sansfed (from which date jnrerese lif any) will
accrue on such Paymenr as provided e Conddition aiel I in the case of an insufficiency of lssoer Shares,
the Issuer does mx hold an annual or extraordivary gencral meeting at which 2 resoluton to make a
sufficient number of Bisoer Shares so available i passed within six weeks of giving the above first-
mentioned notice, the Teostee shall by nonce require the dssuer to convene an excraordinary general
meeting at which such a resolution shall be propused ona date falling within four weeks of such noriee
frony the Trostes. H, in che case of aninsufficiency of Ordinary Siock. rhe Guaraneer docs noe hald an
annual general court within six months of giving the above ficst-mentioned notice, at which a resolurion
ta make a suffcient nember of Ordinary Stock so avaiable is passed, the Trostee shall by notice require
the Guarantor ro convens an extrasrdimary genceal coun at which such a reseution shall be proposed on
a date falling within 18 weeks of such nooce froam che Trosiee,

{ii) [n the event that any such reselution proposed at any such annual general mecting, extraordinare general
meeting, anrual general courr or extracrdinary general court fas the case may bed s rejecred, such
resolution will then be proposed ar the nexe follewing aroual general mecting of the lssuer or anoual
general court of the Guaranrer 1as the case may bed amd, iF o such anpoal geneeal meeting or anoual
general court such proposal is repected again, from the date of such seennd rejeceion nether the bsuer
nor the Guaranmor may declire or pay o dividend or diseribution (other thar 4 dividend o diseriburion
patidd by the Issuer to the Guarantor, any balding company of the Guarancor ar 1o anoher Whaolly-
Owned Subsidiary of the Guarantory or, o the case of the Guarantur, make a pavment under any
applicable guarantee in respect of a dividend or distriburion, om anv of the ordinary share capiral,
preference share capural, ardinary stock, preference stock or other tssued Tier | Capital of the Dssuer or
the Guaranrar untl such time ax such resolution has been passed by the sharciolders jor siock holders, as
the case may bel of the relevant company ar, if 2 similae eestriction on payments is already in place
pursiant i Condiion {a)iin or Condirion 0D, unsil such tme #3f laterd as such restricium ceases
L apply,

{a} Market Disruption

Motwithstanding rthe provisions of Condition bl if there exists, in the opition of the Jssuer or the
Cuarantor {snbject, where necessary, o determinarions made by the Calealation Apenti. a Market
Thsrpprion Event om o afiee the 1ath Business Day precediopg any date spon which a Pavownt or, in the
case of an insufficiency as provided in paragraph [d) above, parr thereof, is due wbe satisfied in accordanee
with this Condition &, then the Issuer or the Guarantor may mive a notice o the Lrustee, the Principal Paving
Ageat, the Caloularion Agent and the Holders as soon as possible after the Market Discuption Pyent has
acren ar ocowcred, whereapon the selevaus Tavmaont o pae thereaf may be deferred uitil such sine as in
s opinian of the lssier o the CGoaranior) the Market Disraprion Event no limger exists,

Any such deferred Payment or part thereot will be satished as soan as practcable following such mine as the
Aarket Discuption Evett no longer exists, Ingprest shall ne acenie on such deferred Fayment or part thereot
unless, a5 a consegueneg of the existenge of a4 Marker Disrupuon Evenr, the Tssuer does not make the celevam
Pavmwnt ar parr thereof For a perod of 14 dayvs or more afier the due dare thersfor, mowhich case interese
shall acerue oo sueh deferred Pavment o parr thereof from {and incloding! the date on which the relevan
yment or part thereof was due o be made o thor exctuding the date on which such Favmenr or part
thereof 15 made. Any such inrerest shall aceroe at a rate determined 1 aceordance with Condidon #hiii)
{in the case of a Delerred Coupen Payment) or Condition 5 (e any ather cased and shall be sanstied ooly in
accordanee with thiy Candition & and as soon as reasonally practicable afrer the relevane deferred Paviment s
made, Nov Lability shall actach o the Trustee or its agents i, a5 2 resnlt ot 2 Market Disrupuon Evene or any
ather event outside the comerol of the Truses or any such ageat, the Urustee or any such agent 5 wnahle 1o
camply with the provistons of Condition #ih),

T. ALTERNATIVE GUARANTEE SATISFACTION MECHANISM
[a} AHemative Guaramtee Satisfaction Medhanism

{ib The Guarantor may only sansfy any Goacanes Coupon Payment in respect of either a Pleferred Coupon
Fayment or an Feeeptionally Deferred Caupan Pavment ehrongh the issue of units of Ordinary Stock to
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the Trustee in accordance with this Condition 7, and may elect to so satisfy any other Guarantee Coupon
Payment m full or in pact (in which case any reference wn this Condition 7 o a “Guaranwe Coupon
Payment” shall be construed accordingly).

{ii} The Guarantor may only satisfy a Guarantee Coupon Pavment in accordance with this Condition 7 i it
is Solvent af the time of sausfying sech Guarantee Coupon Payment and would be Solvent immcediacely
thereaftor,

{ifi} i the Guarantor clects 1o satisfy any Guarantee Uoupon Payment in accordance with this Condition 7,
then it shall notify the Bssuer, the Trustee, the Principal Paying Agent and the Calculatiion Agent nor less
than 16 Business Days prior to the relevant Guaranwee Covpon Pavment Sansfaction Dage.

{iv) The Guarzntor has agreed in the Trust Deed thar any obligation owed by the Issuer to the Gwaranoor in
respect of payments made under the Guarantes will be satisfied only by the issue of lssucer Shares,

{b} Issue of Stock

i any Guarancee Coupon Payment is w0 be sausfied in full or in part through the ssue to the Trusae of
Ordinary Siock then, subject to Conditions 7(d), 7e) and %{d):

(i1 by close of busimess on or before the seventh Business Day prior o the relevant Guarantee Coupon
Payment Sansfaction Date, the Goaranvor will issue wo the Trostee {or, iF so agreed bebween the
Guarantor and the Trustee, tov an agent of the Trustee) such number of units of Ordinary Stk {the
“Guoarantee Payment Ordinary Stock™} as, in the determination of the Calcolation Agent, have a
marker value of not less than che relovant Guarantee Coupon Payment to be satished in accordance
with this Condition 7, provided that the Guarantor shall not be obliged w issue Ordimary Stock if i is
not Solvent at che time of such issue or wouold not be Solvent immediately thereafrer; and

(i) che Trustwee will use ccasonahle endeavounrs to effect the transfer or instruct s agent o effect the teansfor
af such Guarantee Payment Ordinary Stock to or to the order of the Caleulation Agent {subject to any
necessary consents being obtained) as soor as praceicable and in any case not lawr than by close of
husiness on the sixth Business Day prior o the date on which the relevamt Guarantee Coopon Pavment
is due and the Caleulation Agent has agreed to use reasonable endeavours to pracute purchasers for such
Cuarantee Payment Ordinary Stack, The Calculation Agenr has further agreed w deliver the procecds of
such sale ta, or hold such procesds to the order of, the Trustee wheo shall pay or procure dhat its agent
pays such proveeds as it holds morespect of the relevane Guaramee Coupon Payment on i doe dare o
the Principal Paying Agent for application m accordance with Condiion Tic).

(€] Issue Satistes Guarantae Coupon Payment

Where the Gonaranior elects fo satisfy a Goaraneee Coupon Payment hercunder by issoing Ordinary Stock to
the Trustee and in accordance with its obligations under the Truese Deed issues such Ordinary Stock, such
issie shall (subject to Condision Tieh sacisby the relevant Gearanwe Coupon Payment or, in the
circumstances referced o in {(d! helow, the relevant parr of such Guarantee Coupon Pavment of made in
accordance with this Condition 7. The proceeds of sale of Ordinary Stack shall be paid by the Principal
Paying Agent to the Holders in respecr of the relevant Guarantee Coupon Payment,

{d} insufficiency

{1} If the Guarantor is to satsfy a Guarantee Coppon Payment in acenrdance with this Condition 7 and it
does not, on the date when the number of vnits of Grdinary Stock required 1o be issued is determined in
accordance with this Condition 7, have a suffcient number of units of Ordinary Stock available for issue,
then it shall nocfy the Issuer, the Trustes, the Principal Paving Apent, the Calculacion Agent and che
Hualders thar all or part, as the case may be, of the relevant Goaraniee Coupon Pavment cannot he so
satisfied due to the circumstznces described in dhis paragraph, in which case the same shall he satisfied
following the date of the rext annual gencral conre or extraordinary gencral court of stockholders of the
Guoarantor at which a resolution is passed making a sufficient number of ueis of Ocdinary Stock
available to sacisfy all or such part of the relevant Guarantee Coupon Payment, provided chae if he
number of units of Ordinary Srock authorised to be ssued at any such meeting is insufficiont o satisfy
all ar sech part of the relevant Grarantee Coopon Payment then those vnits of Ordinary Stock so issued
shall be applied by it in part sansfaction of all or such part of the relevant Guaranree Coupon Pavment,
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Following the passage of any such resolonon, rhe Guarantor shall notify the Tssuer, the Trusiee, the
Principal Paving Agent. the Calewlanon Agens and the Holders of the date apon which the relevant
Guaraneee Coupon Payment or, as the vase way be, the pant thereof is w be made in accordance
hetewith om mol less chan 16 Business Pravs’ nouce, Unless sach Paymenr s an Exceptionally Deferred
Coupnr Paymcent, in which case oo interest shall acorue thereon, interese shall continue o accrue w
accordance with these Uonditions on all or the appropriate pars, as the case may be, of the Pavmene
gurresponding to the Guaranee Coupon Pavment, or part thereof, which is nor so sanished,
Notwithstanding anythiag in these Condiriomns 1o the contrary, such ineerest shail accrue ar the rate
determined in accordance with Condidon d4{b)giii} from (and including} the date on which the
applicable Guaraniee Coupon Payment would otherwise have been due o (bot excluding) the date on
which such Guarantee Coupon Payment or part thereof is sasficd or, in the cvent of a Marker
Ersruption Evene as described in Condidon (e, the daee an which suck Guarantee Coupon Fayment
or pare thereof would, but for die occurrence of such Market Disruption Bveni, have been satisficd
(From which date interest 1iF amy) shall aceree on sych pavmene as provided in Condition 7o), I the
Guarantor daes ot hold an annwal general court weithin six mondhs of giving the above Brse-mentioned
neice, ar wlhich 3 resolution to make o suffcient namber of woits of Ordhirary Stock 5o available s
passed, the Urostee shall by notiee requice the Guassntor w convene an extraatdiary general court at
winch such a reselution shall be proposed on a date falling within 10 weeks of such notice from the
Truseee,

tisy Ire the cvent thar any sech resoladon proposed ac any such annwoal general court o extraordimary general
court 15 rejected, such resciution wilk then be proposed at the nexe fullowing annual gereral court of the
Cuarantar and, if at such annual geperal court such proposal is refecied again, from the date of such
secomd repection neither the Dssver nor the Guaranror may declare or pay 3 dividend or distribution
{other than a dividend or disteibocgon paid by the lssuer 1o the Guarantor, any holding company of the
Guarantor or wo another Wholly-Owned Substdiary of the Guarantor, or, in the case of the Guarantor,
make a paymcent under anv applicable pearanges in respea of a4 dividend or distribotion on any of the
ordinary share capital, preference share capital, ordimary stock, preference stock or other ssucd Ter 1
Capital of the Issuer or the Guaranwoe unntl such ome as such resolution has been passed by she
stackholders of the Guarantor or, oF a sibnilar restricton on paymenes is alrcady in place poarsuane o
Condition $afiing or Condition 4(bpnil, wagl such vmwe (Gl lacery as such testnction ceases e apply.

{e} Market Distuption

MNomwithstandimp the provisions of Condimon 7{by, if there exisis, in the opinion of the Guarantor (subject,
where necessary, o determinarions made by che Calenlacon Agenr), a Marker Disroption Event on or after
the 1ath Business 3ay preceding any dare npoty which o Guaremee Coupon Pavment or, in the case of an
insufficiency as provided in Condition Fid). parr thereod s dee to be satisfied i accordance with this
Condicton 7, then the Guaramor may give 8 notice w the Trustee, the Prinapal Paving Agent, the
Caleulation Agent and the Holders o5 sonn as possible after the Market Disruprion Event has 2risen or
occurred, whereupon the relevant Guarantee Conpon Pavment o part thereaf may be deferred uneil such
time as {in the opinien of the Guaraniror) the Marker Disrupnion Dvent ne longer oxists.

Any such deferred Guarantee Coupon Payment will be satished as soon oy practicable tollowing such aime as
the Marker Disruption Event no longer exists, Notwithstanding anvihing in these Conditions to the conerary,
wnterest shall not acerue on the Pavment, or part thereof, corresponding wo the Guaramer Coupon Pavinent or
part thereot which s deferred unless, as a consequence of the existence of a AMarket Disroprion Event, the
Cparantor does gor make the relevam Guaranee Coupon Pavinent or part therenf for 2 perind of 19 davs
or more after the due dare therefor, in which casc inrerese shall accrue on such Pavmeno or paro thereod fram
tand wncluding} the date o which the relevant Guoaraneee Coupon Pavment was due 1w be made wobot
excluding) the dare on which soch Guaranwe Coupon Payvment or part thereol is mmade. Motwithstanding
anvthing in these Condiions o the congeary, any such interess shall acoree oF & rate determined in
aveordance with Condinon dthiim) (where the Payment o which che CGuaranice Coupon Payment relates is
a Deferred Coupon Paymesr) or Condinon 3 (ie any other case) and shall be satisfied only b aceordance with
this Condicien 7 ard a2t soon 2s reasonakly pracicable afer the relevant Jeferred Guarames Coupon
Paviment s made, N habilicy shall attach to the Trustee or its apents if, as a result of a Marker Disruption
Event or any other event outside the conerol of the Trustee or any such agenr, the Trustee ot any suvh agem s
unable o comply with the provisions of Coadition 7ibh. For the avordance of doubt, mterest accruing in
respect al a Guarantee Coupon Payment purseans o this Condition 7 shall nor separacely acere an the
Payment ta which che Guarantee Coupon Pavoent eelates.
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8.
(a)

EXCHANGE, VARIATION OR REDEMPTION
Mo Fixed Redenyption Date

The Preferred Sccurities are perpetual seeoritics in respece of which there is no bred redemption dawe and the
issuer shall (subject e the provisions of Conditiops 2 and 3 and without prejadice to the provisions of
Condition 13} only have the vight w repay them in accordance with the following provisions of this
Condition # or in the arcumstances provided for in Condiion 9(d).

Any redempeion or purchase of the Preferred Sccurities is subjeet to the prior consent of the Central Bank of
Ireland.

ib)
(il

(il

(£}

Issuar's Call Option

Suhject 1y Condition 2{aNiili 1), the Issver may, by giving not less chan 30 nor more than 60 days' notice
to the Fiolders in accordance wich Condition 17 and o the Principal Paving Agent and the Trostes,
which notice shall be irrevocable, elect, with the consent of the Guarantor, w redeem all, or some only,
of the Preferred Sccurities on the First Reser Dawe or any Coupon Payment Dare thereafter ae cheir
principal amount wgerher wich any Quistanding Payments.

in the case of a parual redemprion of Preferred Secarites, the Preferred Secunties o be redecmed will be
selecied in such place as the Trostre may approve and in swch manner as che Trostee shall deem
appropriate and faiz, not more than 45 davs before the date fixed for redemprion, Naotice of any such
redempiion will be given not less than 13 days before she date Axed for redemption. Each notice will
specily che dae fixed for redemiprion and the aggregare principal amoune of dwe Preferred Secarites
be redeemed, dhe serial numbers of the Prekerrod Secorities called for redemption, the serial nombers of
the Preterred Secworities previpusly called for redemption and not prosented for pavmenr and the
aggrepate principal amount of the Preferred Securities which will be oustanding after the parual
redempiion. Following cach pargial redemprion of the Preferred Securities, the issner will notify the
Luxembourg Stack Exchange of the oustanding prinvipal amaone of the Preferred Securites,

Exchange, Variation or Redem priion dua to Taxation

B the lssuer satishes the Trusee immediately prior o the giving of the nodce referred o below thae, on the
niext due dave For a Coupon Pavticnt:

(il

(i}

{iti)

either {1} the lssuer would be vnable to make such payment withont bring required to pay addinional
amounts as provided in Conditien 12 or (20 the Guaranter would be upable for reasons oowside its
contral b procere pavment by che lsswer and i making such payment itselt woold be required to pay
any additional amouns as aforesaid in each case as a resuln of any change in, or amendment to, the laws
ur regulanions of the United Kinpdom or [reland or any political subdivision ar any aurhority thereof or
thercin havieg power to tax o any change in the application or official buterprecation of such laws or
reguiztions, which change or amendiment becomes effective on o after 28 Februaey 2001 and the
requirement cannet be avended by the lssuer or, as the vase may be, the Guaranwor rzking reasonalble
measures aotng m good faith bue sot involving material cost or expensel available w ic, or

in respect of the [ssuer, pavinents of amounts in respect of terest on the Preferred Sccurivies including,
tor the avoldance of doubt, the wssoe of Issuer Shares purswang to Condition &, may be treared as
“distributicns” within the meaning of Seceion 83241} of the Income and Corporanon Taxes Ace 1988
{oor such orher Section andfor Ack as may from Bme to tme supersede or replace Section 832(1) of e
Incoine and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 tor the purposes of such definition) and such requirement or
circumstance cannot be avoided by the issuer taking such measures as it lacting i good faith ot not
fnvedving material cost or expense) deems appropriare; of

i respect of the Issuer, a3 a result of any change in or proposed change in, or amendment to or proposed
amendment o, the laws of the United Kingdom or any political subdivision or authonty thereof baving
power tn tax, or any change in or proposcd change in the applicanon of official or generafly published
interpretacion of such laws, or any mierpretation oe promcuncement by any relevant 1ax authoriy that
provides for 2 posioon with respect to such law or regulations thae differs from the previously generally
accepred posimion i relation o similar transactiens or which  differs trom any specthc writen
conhrmation given by a2 rax authoriey 0 respect of the Proferred  Secoridies, which chanpe or
amendment hocomes, or would hecome, effeceive, or in the case of a change or proposed change in law
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il such change is cnacted [or, in the case of a proposed change, is expecred o be enacted) by Act of
Parliament or made v Statwtory Instrument on or after 28 Pehroary 2001, there s more than an
itsubstantial risk that the Issuer wall nou obrain full or substannally full reliel far the purposes of
Lnited Kingdom corporation ax for the nexr following payment of interest ineluding, for the
avordance of doubt, where the payment of interest i$ to be satished by the issue of [ssuer Shares and
Ordinary Stock pursuan to Condition 6 on, as a1 result of the Preferred Sccurnitics being in issue, the
Issuer may be unalde o claim or sutrender losses as group relict, and such requirement or circumstince
cannot be avoided by the Issuer taking such measures as it facting in good faith but not involving
matertal cost or expenset decms appropriate,

then the lssuer may {subject to the prior comsent of the Central Bank of leeland and of the Guarantor bur
without any requircment for the consens or appeaval of the Holders or, save as specified below, the
Trusteed, having given not less than 30 nor more than 60 days' notice to the Truseee, the Principal Paying
Agent and, in accordance with Condition 17, the Holders {which notice shall he irrevocablet either (xx)
exchange the Prefereed Securities tar, or vary {tagether with, in the case of the Guarantar, the Guzrantee!
the terms of the Preferred Sceurities and the Guarantee so that they become, Upper Tier 2 Securities on
terms which preserve any existing rights under these Terms and Conditions o Qutstanding Payments or
{vv) isubject iy Condirion Ha)jin( 1)} redeem, m accordance with rhese Terms and Condirions, all, bue not
some only, of the Prelerred Sccurities at their principal amount oe {in respect only of a redemption by
reasom of the circumstances referred to in paragraph (i) above where the relevant requirement or
crcumstance does not result from a chanpe ar amendment to che lows o cepulations of the Umited
Kingdum or Ireland or any polidcal subdivision or any auchority chereot or therein having power to tax or
any change in the application or official interprecation of such rules and regularions) ac the Redemprion Price
at any time on or prior 10 the First Reset Dare or on any Coupon Payment Date thereafter, in cach case
wpeiher with any Ourstanding Mavments.

The Trustee shall use irs reasonable endeavours roo assist the [ssuer in the exchanpe or variaton of the
Preferred Securities (and the Guarantee) [or or oo Upper Tier 2 Sccuritics, provided thar the Trustee shall
it he obliged o participate or assist o any sech exchange o variation if, in s opinion, the wrms of the
seeurities into which the Prefereed Securities are to be exchanged or are to be varied impase, in the Trustee's
opinion, mone oercus oblizatens vpon the Trustee. [E the Trustee dues not so participare or assist as
provided abowve, the lssuer may redeem the Preferred Securitics in accordance with the foregoing provisions
at their primcipal amout on any Coupon Payment Date together with any Outstanding Pavinents.

IF, where the Tssuer has clected o exchange or vary the Preferred Securittes for or into Upper Tier 2 Securieies
in aceordance with (vx) ahove, (a) the consent of the Ceneral Bank of Ireland ro such exchange or variation js
not given of, ib) the Preferred Securities cannot be so exchamed or varied fur of ieo Upper Tier 2 Sccuities
{in which case the lssuer shall deliver w the Trustee an opimon of independent legal advisers of recogniscd
standing stating thai (i their opinion) che Preferred Securiries cannet be exchanged for or varied into Upper
Tier 2 Securitics and the Trustee shall accepe such opinion as sufficient evidence thereof in which event it shall
be conclusive and tanding on the Holders), or 10 any of the conditions Tisted in paragraphs €0 to i) above
apply or continue to apply to Upper Tier 2 Securities for ar ineo which the Preferred Securitics have been
exchanged wr varied, or [d) the lssuer shows to the sadsfaction of the Trustee thar any of the conditions
listed in paragraphs (1) o (i) above waould apply if such exchange or variaton were o take place, the
Issuer may, subjeet to Condidon 2{a3ill 1) and, having given not fess that 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice
tor the Trustee, the Primcipal Paving Apent and, i accordanee with Condition 17, the Tolders (which notce
shall be irrevocablel, redeem, in accordance with these Tenms and Conditions, at any time on or prior to the
First Reser Prate or on any Coupon Pavmenr Date thereafrer, all, but not some only, of the Prelereed Securities
or any such Upper Tier 2 Sccurities fur or inco which they have been exchanged or varied at their principal
amount ropether with any Ourstanding Payments,

Prior to the publication of any notice of exchange, variation or redemprion pursuant to this Conditton Ble),
the 1ssuer shall deliver to the Truskee a certihcare signed B rwo Threctors of the Issuer or, i the Issuer is in
the course of being wound up, by the liguidater stating that (in their ar, as the case may be, its opinion) the
relevant requiremient or circumsance refeered 1o in parageaph (i), (i or (i) abeye eicher is satished or (as the
context may require] would be satisfied were such exchanpe or variation 1o take place. The ‘Trostee shall
aceept such certdficate as sufficient evidence of the satisfaction of the condinons precedent set oul above in
which event it shall be conclusive and binding on the Holders,
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{d) Exchange, Variation or Redemption for Regulatory Purposes

If the lssucr satisfies the Trustee immediagely poior 1o the grving of the notice referred o below thae the
Central Bank of [reland has determined thar the Prefecred Securites no longer gualify as Tier 1 Capital of
the Guaranter, then the Issuer may (subject to the prior consent of the Central Bank of Ireland and of the
CGuarantor bur withour any requirement For the consent or approval of the Holders or, save as specified
below, the Trustee), having given not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notiee v the Trostee, the
Principal Paying Agenr and, v accordance with Coaditon 17, the Holders (which notice shall be
irrevacable} either (aa) exchanpe the Preferred Securmics For, or vary (rogerher with, mothe case of rthe
Guaranee, the Guarancor) the wems of the Peeferred Securities and the Goarantee so thar they hecome,
Upper Tier 2 Securities on ferms which proserve any existing, rights under these Terms and Conditions o
Curstanding Payments or {hh) {subject to Condition 2iakiii Y redeens, tn accordance with these Ternrs and
Conditions, at any time on or prior o the First Reser Dare or on any Coupon Payment Bate thereaker, all,
butr not some only, of the Preferred Securities ar the Redemprion Price together with any Oustandimg
Paynents,

The Truster shall use s reasvmable endeavours to assist the Lssuer in the exchange or variation of the
Preferred Securtites for ar irdn Upper Tier 2 Secarines, provided chat the Trustee shall aor be abliped @
participaie or assist noany sech exchange or vanaton if, in it opinien, the wems of the securittes ineo
which the Preferred Specurnitics are to be exchanged or are o be varied impose, in the Trostee’s opinioa,
ulore onetous ohligacons upon it IF the Trusee does not so parncipate or assist as provided above, the
Issuer may, subject as pronided above, redeem the Preferrcd Securitics im accordance with the foregomg
pravisions at ther principal amoune 2t any time on or prior to the Firse Reset Date or on any Cowepon
Pavment {date thereafter together with any Qutsianding Payments.

if, where the Issuer has elecied to exchange or vary the Prefermed Secorives for or into Upper Tier 2 Securities
i accordanee with {aat above., {2} dre consenr of the Cenreal Bank of freland o such exchange or varéation is
naxk given or, (b the Preferred Securizies cannot be so exchanged or varied for or inta Upper Tier 2 Securisics
{in which case the Issuer shall deliver ta che Trustee an opinion of independent legal advisers of recognised
standung skating that {in ther opinion ) the Preferred Secuiwies cannot be exchanped for o varied o Upper
Ticr 2 Secwrinies and the Trustee shall accept such opinton as sufficiens eviderce therent in which cvene it shall
be conciusive and binding on the HHolders), do not (or would nor, of so exchanged or varicd! gualify as Upper
Tier 2 Capital, ar (¢} any of the conditions fisted in paragraphs () re (i of Condidon 8(¢) abave apply, or
would apply, to such Upper Ticr 2 Securiues (in which case the Issuer shall deliver v the Trustee a certificawe
signed by twa Directors of che Issuer or, of the Lssuer is in the course of being wouond up, by the hguidacor
stating thae (in their or, s the case may be, its opinion) the relevann requirement o circumstance referred o
i paragraph (i}, (4) or (i of Condition 8c) either is satisfied or {as the coniext may reguire) woald be
satished were sach exchange or variation re take place, and the Trustee shall accept such corificate as
sufficient cvidence thereod, it which event it shall be conclusive and bindimg on the Helders) the lssmer may,
subject to Condition Maniiltl) apd having given not less chan 30 nor more than 60 days’ eotice ta the
Trostee, the Principal Paving Agent and, m aceordance with Condition 17, the Holders (which notice shall
be irrevocable), redeem, in accordance with these Terms and Conditions, at any time on gr prior 1o the First
Reser Dare or oo any Coupon Payment Dare chereafrer, all, but not some only, of the Preferred Securities or
any such Upper Twer 2 Securities for or into which they have heen exchanped or varied at their principal
amount together with any Ouistanding Paviments,

{e) Purchases

The Issuer, the Gearanior or any other Subsidiary of the Guarantor may (subject w (i} the prioy consenr of
the Cenrtral Bank of freland and, in the case of the Issuer or another Subsidiary of the Guarantor, the
CGuarantor and i} Conditions 2{a){ii{1] (in respeee of the issueri and 2{biid(1) {in respece of the
Cuoaramtor o any other Subsidiaey of the Guaraneor)) ar any time purchase Preferred Sccurities in oany
mamer and at ony price. [0 cach case purchases will be made together with all vomatured Coupons and
‘Tatons (if any] appertaining thereco, The restricions contained in this Condition shall not apply to any
purchase of Preferred Securities where such purchase is made {1} m the ordinary course of a business of
dealisygz in securibies and (§i) for the account of 3 person other than che Tssuer, the Guarantor or any other
Subsidiaty of the Guarantor.
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(f] cCancellation

Al FPreferred Sccuritics so redeemed by the bsuer and any unmatured Coupons and Talons {if anyt
appereaining thereio will be cancelled and may not be reissocd or resold, Preferred Secorities purchased by
the lssuer, the Guoarantor or any other Subsidiary of the Guaranor may be held, reissued or resold or,
where purchased by the lssuer, ar the opnon of the Issuer surrendersd to any Paying Agenr for cancellation.

9. PAYMENTS
[a} Method of Paymernt

1 Pavments of principal and Coupon Amounts will be made by or on behalf of the lssuer agaivst
presentation and surrender of Preferred Securitics or the appropriate Coupons at che specified office of
any of the Paving Agents excepr that paymenrs of Coupon Amounts in respect of any peviod nor
erding on a Coupon Payment Thare will only be made upan surrender of the relative Pretereed Security,
Such pavments will be made. at 1he eption of the payes by eure cheque drawn on, or by tronsker to a
vuro account naintained by the pavee with, a bank in the Euro-zone,

tul Upon the due date for redemprnn of any Preterred Security, any onexchanged Talon relating co such
Preferred Security jwhether or not attached) shall become void and no Coupon shall be delivered in
respect of such Talun and wnmarured Coupons celaning 1o such Preferred Sccurity {whether or nor
attached) shall also become vold and ne payment shall be made in respect of them. If zny Preferred
Security 15 presenced for redemption seithout all unmatared Coupons and any unexchanged Talon
relaring to ir, redemption shall he made only against the peovision of such indemniry as the lssuer may
require.

(il On or after the Coupon Payment Drate foe the inal Coupon forming pan of & Coupon sheet msued in
respect of any Preferred Sccouriry, the Talon forming pare of such Coupon sheot may be surtendered ar
the specified office of the Principal Paving Apent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet {and anocher
Talan for a further Coupon sheet! tbot excluding anv Coupons thar may have become void pursuant 1o
Coandigien 130

{ivi The names of the initial Paving Agenes and ther imial specified offices are set aut below, The Issuer
reserves the right, sulyect w the prior woteen approval of the Trostee, such approval not o be
unreasomahly withheld, at any time o vary or terminate the appointnent of any Paving Arzent and o
appoint additinnal ar orher Paving Agents provided that it will at all times maintain (1a) 2 Paying
Apent having a specified office ourside Ireland and the Leed Bingdom, (Bb) iwhere applicable) a least
ane Paving Agent located in a jurisdiction which has opted {for exchange of information, rather than
withholding or deduction, purswint @ any Futepean Uniom Diregrive on the raxation of savings
implementing the conclusions of the ECOFDN Councl meeting an 26-27 Navember 2000 ar any law
implementing or cumplving with. or intraduced 10 order o conform o, such Direcrive and e for so
lonp as the Proferced Secuntios are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of thar
Fxchange so cequire, 2 Paving Agent having a specified office in Luxembourg, Nooee of any such
termination or appaintment and of any change in the specified offices of the Paying Agents will be
piven to the Holders in accordance with Condition 17,

(b} Payments Subjoct to Fiscal Laws

Without prejudice o the s of Condimon UL all payments made w0 aceordanee with these Teoms and
Conslitions shall e made subjpect to any Ascal or other lyws and repulations applicable in the place of
pavment, No commisstons or expenses shall be charged 1o the Holders in respect of such payments.

[c} Payments on Payment Business Days

A Preferred Security ora Coupon may only be presented for pavment on a day which is a Pavment Business
Dav. Mo further interese o other payment will be made as a consequence of the day on which the relevant
Preferred Security or Coupon may be presented for payment wider this paragraph falling after the duc dace.

(d} Suspenslon

If, following any take-over offer made under the Irish Take-over Panel Ace 1997 Takcover Rules 1997 or any
reorganisation, restructunng or scheme of arrangement, the Guarantor or any sehsequent New Ohwner ceases
i be the ultimate holding company of the Governor and Company of the Bank of Irelund groop of
companics, then the lssver o the Guarantor shall as soon a8 practicable pive aodee o the Troser, the
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Calculation Agent and the Holders, whereupon the Issuce™s right or obligasion to satisfy a Payment by the
method contemplated by Condition & and the Guaranior's cight ar oblipation o sadshy a2 Guearantee
Coupon Payment by the method contemplated by Condition 7 shall cach he sospended (such event being a
“Suspension”). In such event an independent imvestment bank appointed by the Essuer (at the Issuer’s (faling
whom, the Guarantor’sh expensel and approved by the Trustee shall devermine, subject w ehe reguirements
that (i) neither the ksuer nar the Guaraitor shall be obliged 10 reduce its ner asses, (M) no amendment may
be proposed or made which would alter the regolatory capital creatment of the Preferred Secunties for
banking capital adequacy parposes without the prior consent of the Ceneral Bank of lreland, and (i) no
such amendment mayv be made which would, s the Trostee's opinion, impuse more onerous oblipations on
the Trustee without its consent, what amendments (if any) o these Terms and Conditions, the Trost Deed
and any other relevane documents are appropoate m order 1o preseeve substantially the economic effect for
the Holders, of a holding of the Preferred Securities prioe o the Suspension. Upon any such dererminarion
being reached and nopified to the Trustee, the bwuer and the Goarantor by such investment bank, the
Trusree, the Issuer and the Guaranter shail, pursvant o rthe terms of the Trost Deed and withowot rhe
consent of the Holders or Couponbolders, effect any necessary conseguential changes o these Terms and
Condittons and the Trose Deed and any ather relevant documents, whercupon the lssuer’s righe or
obliganen to satsfe a Payment by the method conremplared in Condition & and the Guaranror's righn or
obligation to satisfy a Guaraneee Coupon Payment by the method conremplated by Condicion 7 shall no
loanger be subject to the Suspension,

if, after using all reasonable endeavours, such imvestmient bank is unable w formuolate such amendments, it
shall so nonfy the Tssuer, rhe Guaramtor, the New Owner, the Trustee, the Pomapal Paying Apent and the
Calenlabion Agent and cach Preferred Secwority shall {subject to the prior consent of the Central Bank of
Ireland) be redeemed by the Isuer, follivaing nouce w the Holders by the Issuer of such redempiion as
soom as practicable after recoipt of the consent of the Central Bank of Ireland, at the Redempiion Price,
ogether with 2ny Ouestanding Payments, not later than the 60th Bosiness Day following the giving of such
natice by the Tsswer o the Holders, Sech redemption will, unless otherwise agreed by the Issuer. the
Cuarantor and the Trustee, and with the consent of the Central Bank of Ireland, be cffected through che
issue of Tsseer Shares, such lssuer Shares to be transferred to the New Owoer in consideratinn for which the
New Owger issues and transfers s ordinary shares {or share capital of an egueivalent class) i accordance,
wretatis wawbaidis, with Condiions 8{bh, {c), (d) and {e) {with references w the Payment Ordimary Stack
being conserued as referenves ta such ordinaty shares o stock or cguwivalenn share capiral or stock of the
New Cwener as, when sold (and, of necessary, converted intu eura by the Caleulanion Agent) provide 2 net
vash amount of not less than the redemprion amount so pavable by the lasuer),

{a} Alermative Setdement

The Issuer may elect ro satisfy any Pavmene (in full or in party throegh the issue of Jssuer Shares o the
Truster (with the subseguent Bsue by the Grarantor to the Trustee of ynits of Pavmenr Ordinary Stock n
exchange therefur) in accordance with the procedutes set out in Condition &,

10. PREEMFTION

The Issuer shall, from time o tme, keep available for ssue such number of Tssuer Shares as it reasonably
considers would be required e be issued i order o sassfy the requirement o ssue Payment Tssuer Shares
in accordance with Coaditinn £ in connrection with the pexr Coupon Pavment or, following the First Reset
Prace, the nexe four Coupon Paymenes,

The Guaranwor shall, from ame o ome, keep available for issue such onits of Ordinary Stack as it reasonably
cemnsiders wonld be requneed e be issued in order o satisfy the requirement o ssye Payment Ordinary Stock
in accordance with Condition & or Guarantee Pavment (Ordinary Stock m accordance with Condinon 7 in
omnection with the next Coopon Pavment or, following the First Beset Dare, the nexo foar Coupon
Paymenets,

Mo damapes will be payzble For breach of this covenant bur, in the event of breach by the lssoer or the
Cuarantor of this Condirion 10, the Trustee may require the lssyer or, as the case may be, the Guarantor o
put before the next general meeting of the sharcholders of the Issaer or, as the case may be, the stockholders
uf the Guarantor a resobubon w remedy the breach,
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The Trustee shall not be obliged to monitor compliance by the lssuer or the Guaransor with this Conderion
and shall be entitled to assume, unless it has actual knowledpe 1o be conerary, that cach of the [ssuer and ¢he
Cruaramior is complying sith s obligations under this Condiuon.

1. NON-PAYMENT WHEN DUE

Motwithstanding any of the provisians Below dn this Condition [, the right to stitute winding-np
freoceedings f5 Thnited o circwmstances where pavirent bas become due, Purspant to Condition 200 1)
drd sulrject ws previded i the next sentence wo princpal or Payment wll be due By the Isiier if the Iszaer
65 st Sofverrt. Purstant to Condition 208 {II7E) o principal ar Paymient will B due by the Guarator wnder
the Guarantee 3f the Guarantor 1s not Solvent provided thar pavmenis of principal andfor Pavesents in respect
of the Preferred Securities shalf be deemed fo be dne and payalble m full by the tsuer for the purpuse of the
obdigations of the Guaramtor wnder the Guarantee mofwsthstanding thad, as o result of the aperation of
Conditions 2{a} andior 3ia), they are not in fact due and payabie by the Isswer. Also, in the case of anv
Payment, siich Payerent will not be due if the Dswer bas been requeived or bas olected fas the case may bel
ter defer that Poyment purstiane o Condifion #{a) av 4ih) or f the crcamstunces peferved to i any of
Comaditions &idh, ee) ar W) then apply. Fop the purpose of the obfiyations of the Gudrantor under the
Crarantee, wo Guarantee Coupon Payment shall be due and pavable | the Guarantor 5 obliged or bas
cfected to satisfy any Guarvantee Compon Payment thrawph the issie of nails of Ordinary Stock to the
Trustee in accordance with Condition 7 and the crrenmstances referred to fr Coendition 7idl Tre) or
thar dppdy. The Trust Deod comtaing proadsions entithing the Trustee 2o claim feoom the Dssner (failing relom
the Cirwrantor), inter alia, the fees, expenses and liabilities fncoveed by it i carrvmg el ofs dities woeder the
Trase reed, The restrictiung o commencing proceedimgs descriled below wil nor apply o any such claim,

{a} T the Isstror o the Cuarantor shall nor make payment in respece of the Prefereed Seenrfeies tn the cuse of
payment of principal) for a period of 14 days or more after the due Jare Far the same or (in the case oi
any Coupon Amaunt, Deferred Coupon Pavment, Exceptiomally Deferred Coupon Bayment or Aceried
Coupon Pavment ar any payotent under Clause 206 of the Truse Deed in oespect of a payrmem shonfall)
shall ne imake pavment for a period of 14 days o are after the dare on which sich payment is doe, the
Issuer gr, as the case may he, rhe CGuaranror shall be deemed o be i detaole under che Truse Decd, the
Preterred Securities and the Coupons and the Trostee may, notwithsranding the provisions of parageaph
(bl of this Condition 11, insntute proceedings for the winding-up of the Issuer andfor the Guarantor {as
the case may b,

fh} Subjeer as provided in thiv Condipon 1 the Trepstee mav at ies diseretion and withour forther notice
institute such proceedings against the lssucer or the Guarantor {as the case may be) as it may thank fit
enforce any werm or conditipn hinding on the lssuer or the Guaranwor as the case may be) under the
Trust Deed, the Preterced Sccurivies or the Coupons (other than for the payment of any principal or
satisiacrion of any Paymenrs in respear of the Preferred Secaritics ar the Coupons, inclading any
payment nnder Clause 2.6 of the Trust Dead) provided that the ssuer or the Guarantor [as the vase
may bed shall noe by virtue of dhe institetion of any such proceedings be obliged (14 0 pay any sum or
sums, in cash of otherwise, sponcr than the same would otherwise have been pavable by ik or (1} o pay
any damages,

et The Trustee shall not he hound o take any of the actions referred to m paragraph (2] or (h) abave
against the ksuer andfor the Guaraniar (as the case may el to enforce the terms of the Trast Beed, the
Cruarantee, the Preferred Securtios or the Coupans unless 113 i shall have beea so equested by an
Exteaordinaey Mesalution of the Holdees or in weiting hy the Hotders of at least one-tifth in pringipal
amount of the Preferred Sccunitics then ouwstanding and (i) it shall have been indemniticd o its
sarisfacrion.

el Wo Halder or Coupanholder shall be entitled to procesd directly againse the Jssuer ar the Guarantoe (as
the case may bl pursuant wo patagraph (bl above, ar o institoee procecdings fov the swinding np of the
lssuer or the Guarantor [as the case may bed under any of the provisions of this Condition 11 or @ prave
in such winding-up unbess the Trusree, having become so bound o proceed or heing able to prove n
such winding-up, fails to do so within a reasonable period and such failure shall be contineing, in
which case the Holder or Couponhelder shall have only such righes againsr the Issuer or the Guaranior
(a5 the case mav be) as those which the Trustee is entitled to exercise, No remedy against the Isuwer or
the Cruarantor [as the case may hed shall be available tao the Trusiee or any Holder o Coupenbolder {11
for the teeovery of amounts owing in respeer of the Preferred Sceuritics or the Coupons lincluding any
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payment under Clause 2.6 of the Trust Deed), other than the institution of proceedimgs for che winding-
up of the Issuer or the Cruarantar (as the case may bel andfor proving in such winding-up and (i} for the
breach of any other term under the Truse Deed, the Guarantee, the Preferred Sceurittes or the Conpons,
other than as provided in paragraph (b) above.

fev  Any proceedings for the winding-up of the Issuer or the Guarantor may be instituted (i) m the case of the
Issuer, in Northern Ireland (W) in the case of the Guarantor, in Treland. No such proceedings may be
wstivaresd in any other jurisdiction,

12, TAXATION

AN pavments by the Issuer or the Guarantor of principal, Coupon Amounes, Deferred Coupon Payments,
Exceptionally Deferred Coupon Payments, Accrued Coupon Payvments and Winding-Up Claims in respect of
the Preferred Securicies will be made without withholding of or deducton for, or on any account of, any
present or future taxes, duties, asscssments or governmental charges of whatsoever nature imposed or levied
by ar on behalf of the United Kingdom or Indand or in each case any palitical subdivision thereof or any
authority therein or therenf having power to tax, unless the withtholding ar dedoction of such taxes, dutics,
assessments or governmental charges is cequired by law. In thar event the [ssuer or, as the case may be, the
Guarantor will pay such additional amounts as may be necessary in order that the net amounts ceceivable by
Holders or Couponholders after such withholding or deduction shall equal the respective amounts of
principal and interest which would have been veceivable in respect of the Preferred Sccurities o, as the case
may be, Coupons in the absence of such withholding or deducrion, exeept that no such addimional amoanes
shall be payable in refation w any payment with respecr wo any Preferred Security or Coupon presented for
PayMENE:

tal by ot ¢n behalf af a holder whao is liable v such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges in
respect of such Preferred Securiry or Uoupon by reason of his having some comnection with the Unied
Kingdom {in the case af payments by the Isseer) or Iecland {in the case of pavments by the Guarantor or
the Issuer] other than the mere holding or ownership of such Preferred Securicy or Coupon; or

{by unless it is proved to the sansfaction of the Paying Apent to whom the same is presented that the holder
would not be able 1o avoid such withhelding ar deduction by satisfying any statutory requirements and/
or by making a declaration of non-residence or uther similar claim for exemption but, in either case, fails
to do so; or

i) i the Unied Kingdom (in the case of paymenrs by the Tssuer) or Ireland (in the case of payments by the
Giuarantor or the [ssuerd; or

{d} where such withholding or deducton is imposed on 2 pavment to an individual and is tequired 1o be
wiade pursuant to any Furopean Union IDirective on the taxation of savings implementing the
conclusioms al the FCOFIN Couencil meeting of 26.27 November 200 or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in ocdor 1o confontt o, such Directive;, or

(¢4 by or on behalf of a holder who would have been able o aveid such withholding or deduction by
presenting the relevant Preferred Security or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a Member State of the
Furopean 1inion; or

(£ mare than 30 days after the Relevane Date except o the exeent that the holder thereof woould have been
entitled ke such additional amoeunts on presenting the same for paymenr on the tast day of such period of
30 days.

Beferences in these Terms and Conditions to principal, Coupon Amounts, Deferred Coupon Payments,
Excepriomally Deferred Coupon Payments andfor Accreed Coupen Faymenes shall be deemed to include any
additional amounts witich may become payabde in respece of any such sums in accordance with these lerms
and Condinons and the Trust Deed.

13. PRESCRIPTION

Proferred hecuriries and Coupons (which for this purpose shall not nclude Talons) wili become void unless
presented for payment within a period of 10 years in the case of Preferred Securities and five years in the casc
of Coupuns from the Relevant Date relating theretn. There shall be no prescription period for Talons but
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there shall not be icluded in any Coupon sheet issued in exchange for a Talen any Coupon the claim in
respect of which would he voud pursuant o this Conditon or Condition #(aii] or any Talon which would
be void pursuant ro Condimon Hakiinh

14. MEETINGS OF HOLDERS, MODIFICATION, WAIVER AND SUBSTITUTION

The Trost Deed contains provisions for convening meetings of Holders ro consider any marter affecring their
interests including the modiication by Exiraardinary Resalution fas defined in the Trost Deed) of these Terms
and Comditiems o ather provisisns of the Trust Deed.

The quorum at any such meering for passing an Exreaordinary Resolution will be one or more persons
holding or representing a clear majorivy in principal amount of the Preferred Securities for the time being
outstanding, or at any adjourned such meeting one or more persons being or representing Holders whatever
the principal amount of the Prefereed Securitics so held or represented, except that at sny adjourned meening
rhe husiness of which includes the modificaton of cortain of these Teoms and Condiriens lincluding. inter alfa.
the provisiens regarding subardination referred to in Conditions 2 and 3, the rerms conceriing currency and
due dates for pavment of principal or Coupon Payments in respect of the Preferred Securities and reducing or
cancelling the principal amount of any Preferred Security or the Coupon Rate] and certain other pravisioans af
the Trust Deed the quorum will be one ar more persons holding or representing niot less than one-thied (n
proncipal amount of the Preferred Securitics for the nime being ourstanding.

An Exrepordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of Flolders wall be hinding on all Holders, whether o oot
they are presens at che meeting, and on all Coupenbinlders,

Notwithstanding any other provision of these Terms and Condinons, the Trustee way agree, withootr the
consent of the Holders or Couponhaolders, w any aadification (subject tr certain exceprions? of, or o any
wiiver or authorisation of any breach ar proposed breach of, any of these Terms and Conditiens or any
ather provisions of the Trust Deed which, in the opineea of the Trostee, 18 not materially prejudicaal to the
interests of the Holders or to any modiication which is of a furmal, ntiner or technical nature or to correct a
anifest error or tr comply with the mandatory provisions of the Law of the jurisdicnon in which the Tssaer
or the CGuarantor is ineorporaced.

No madification to these Terms and Conditions or any other provisions of the Trust Deed shall beeome
effective unless the prior consent thereto of the Ceneeal Bank of Ireland shall have heen ahtained.

Subject wr the prior consent of the Central Bank of leeland and as pravided in the Truse Deed, the Trosres
way apree wish the Issuer and the Guarangor, withour the comsent of the Helders or Couponholders, 1o the
substitytion on a subordinated basis cquivalent ro that refereed w in these Terms and Conditions in place of:

tab the lssuet fur any previous Substituted Issuer under this Comdition 14) as a new msuing party under the
Trust Deed, the Preferred Securines and he Coupons, of the Guarantor, any other Subsidiary of che
Guaranmor, ary successor in business of the Issuer or any Subsidiary of any successor i business of the
Cuarantor or any holding company of the Guaramwor (the “Sobsricured Isseer™); or

i) the Guarantor [or any previoes Subsotoed Guarantor under cthis Condition 143 as the guaranior of the
ohligarions of the Lisuer under the Trnst Deed of any sucoessor in business of rthe Guaranmor or any
halding company of the Guaraneae (the “Subsinuted Guarantor™),

in connection with the exervise by i of any of s eruses, powers, authorities and diseretions (including,
withour mitatien, any modification, waver, authensation or sulstiiaaon), the Truseee shall have regard to
the general interests of the Haolders as a class but shall not have regard o any interests arising from
circustanves particular @ individual Holders or Couponhulders {whatever their number) and, in piarricular
but wirthout [imitatien, shall not have regard to the consequences of any such exercise for individoal Holders
i Coupenholders (whatever their nomber? resulting from cheic being for any purpose domiciled or resident
i, or otherwise connecred with, or subject ra the yurisdiction of, any particular weeiory or any politicai sub-
divigion thereof and the Trustee shall noc be catiled wr reguire, nor shail sny Holder or Coupanbnelder be
entitled o claim, from the Issuer, the Sobstituted [ssuer. the Guarancor, the Substicoeed Guarantor, the
Trustee or any other person any indemnification or pavment in respect of any ax coasequence of any such
exercise upon individual Holders or Couponbidders excepe to the exen already provided for in Coadition 12
andfor any ondereaking given in addiwwn o, or in substiturion tor, Condition 12 pursant to che Trost Deed.
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Any such meodificarion, waiver, purhorisation or substitution shal)l be binding on all Holders and all
Conponholders and, unless the Trustes agrees utherwise, any such maodification or sebstitution shall be
notifed to the Holders in accordance with Condition 17 as sonn as practicable thereafier,

15. REPLACEMENT OF THE PREFERRED SECURITIES, COUPONS AND TALONS

Shouid any Preferred Security, Coupon ot Talon be lost, stolen, mutilated, defaced or destroyed it may be
replaced at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent (or any other place of which notice shall have
been piven in accordance with Condition 17) upen payment by the claimant of che expenses incurred in
comnection therewith and on such tecms as m evidence and indemnity as the Tssuer may reasonably require.
Mutilated or defaced Preferred Sccurities, Coupons or Talons must be surrendered before any replacement
Preferred Securities, Coupons or Taloas will be issucd.

16. THE TRUSTEE

The Trust Decd contains provisions for the indemnificarion of the Trustee and for its relief from
respansibility, including provisions relieving it from taking any action enless indemnified e ies satisfaction.
The Trustee s entitled o etwer into business trapsactions with the [ssuer, rthe Guarantor or any other
Subsidiary of the Guaranter without accounting for any profic resulting therefrom. The Trustee is entitled
under the Trust Deed to rely on reports and certificates addressed andfor delivered to it by any wwo
Dhirectors or the liquidator of the Lsuer or the Guarantor {as the case may be) whether wr not, in the case of
a luquidaror, the same are subject to any limitation on the Lability of such liguidator and whether by reference
t a monetary cap or otherwise,

17. NOQTICES

Motices to Holders will be valid of published in a leading newspaper having general circulation in London
{which is expected tw be the Frmanciaf Times) and for so long as the Preferred Securities are listed on the
Luxembourg 5tock Exchange and the cules of thar Exchange so reguire, in Luxernbourg {which is expected
to be the Laxemburger Wort), Any such notice shall be deemed 1w have been given on the date of such
pullicarion or, if published more than onee or on different dares, on the first date on which publication is
made. Couponholders will be decmud For all purpeses o have notice of the conrents of any notice given to
the Elolders in accordance with this Condition.

18. FURTHER IS5UES

The bssuer shall be ar liberny from fime o time withoue the consent of the Holders or the Couponholders to
create and issue furcher Preferred Secarities ranking parf passe in all respects [ar in all respects save for the
date from which interese thereon accrues and the amount of the first payvment of interest on such further
Freterred Securities) and so thar the same shall be consolidated and form a single series with the putstanding
Preferred Securitivs, Any such Preferred Securities shall be constitured by a deed supplemental to the Trust
Dreed,

19. AGENTS

The Issuer and the Guaranter will procure thart there shall ar all dmes be a Caleularion Agent and a Principal
Paying Agent so long as any Preferred Security is outstanding, IF eicher the Caleulation Agene or the Principal
Paying Agens is unable or unwilling to act as such or if it fils to make a determination or calculatdon or
otherwise tails e perform its duties woder these Terms and Conditions or the Caleulation  Agency
Agrecment or the Agency Agrecment, as appropriate, the Issuer and the Gueranter shall appoing, on rerms
acceptable o the Trustee, an independent investment bank acceptable to the Trustee 1o act as such in v
place. Neither the termination of the appomument of a Calculation Agent or the Principal Paying Agent nor
the resgnation of either will be effective without a seccessor having been appointed,

All calculariens and determinations made by the Caleulacion Agene or the Principal Paying Apent in relation
tir the Preferred Securines shall (save in che case of manifest error) be final and binding on the [ssuer, the
Guarantar, the Truseee, the Paying Agents, the Halders and the Couponholders.

None of the lssuer, the Guarantor, the Trustee and the Paving Agents shall have any responsibility to any
persun for any errors of omissions in any calculation by the Calculation Agent.
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20. GOVERNING LAW AND SUBMISSION TO JURISDICTION

The Trusr Devd, the Preferred Securitics, the Coupons and the Talons are governed Twe, and shall be conserued
i accordance with, e laws of England cxcepr that {0 the provisions reladng to subordimanen aned
winding-up comtained 1 Conditions 2021 and ) and, in celation o dhe Lsswer, Condiron 21ch and the
equivalent provisions of the Trost Deed are governed by, and shall be construed i accordance with, the
laws of Northern Ireland, and 0} the provisiens relating v subordination and winding-up contained in
Conditons 2ib} and 3ihi and, in relation to the Guarantor, Condivion 2(c) and the cquivalent provisions of
the Trust Deed are governed by, and shall be constraed in aceordance with, the Taws of Ireland,

Each of the lswer and the Guaranctor has in the Truse Deed irrevocably and uncondioonally agreed for the
exclusive henght of the Trisree, the Holders and rhe Coupenbolders thar the courts of Tngland are to have
jurisdiction w sertle any dispures which may arise cut of orin <onnection with the Trust Deed, the Preterred
Securitivs or the Coupons and that accordingly any suit, action or proceedings arwing chereont or in
conngerion therewith (together referred ro as “Proceedings™) may be brought in the conrs of England.

Each of the lssuer and the Guarantar has i the Trust Deed irrevocably and uncondiionally waived and
apreed now 1w raise any objecuon which it may have now or subsequently to the laving of the venue of any
Proceedings in the courts of England and any claim rhar any Proceedings have been brought in an
inconvenient forum and has further irrevecably and uncondiiconlly aprced b @ judgment o anv
Procecdings rought o the courts of Fagland shall he conclusive and binding upun i and may be enforeed
m the courts of any other junsdiction. Nothing inthis Candition shall e any right o rake Procodings
apainst the Isswer ar rthe Guarantar in any other court of comperent jurisdicrion, nar shall the taking of
Procecdings in one or mooe jurisdictions preclude the taking of Proceedings in any ocher jurisdiction
whether concurrently or not.

)

Each of the ssuer and the Guarantor has in the Trust Deed irrevocably and unconditionally appoinred the
person for the time being nominaed by the Guaraneer under Pare 3000 of the Companies Ace 1983 a5 11s
agent tor seevice of process in England in respect of any Preceedings and has vndertaken chan in the event of
the Cmiarantor ceasing to be registered under Part XX of the Compannies Ace 1985 10 wilk appoeint such other
person as the Trustee may approve s its agent for that purpose. At 7 March 2001, the name and address of
stch person is Margaret (O"Flanagan of 36 Queen Soreet, London EC4R 1B,

Notwathstanding the foregeing, the mstitution of winding-up proceedings againse the [ssuer and the
Guarangor is gowerned by Cundition 110e),

2. CONTRACTS (RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES} ACT 1999

Mo persom shall have any right w enforce any term or condition of the Preferred Securities under the
Cuonteaces 1 Righes of Third Parties) Agr 1999,

22. DEFINITIONS

In these Terms and Conditions:

“Accrued Coupon Payment™ means, as at any time, where these Terins and Conditions provide that interest
shall conrinue 1w accrue afrer a3 Coupon Pavment Date inorespect of a Preferred Security, the amouns of
st aocrued thereon in accordance with Conditions 4ih1, 5, &(d), sie), Fid) aml Ficy,

CAgeney Agreement means the agency agreement dated T March 2001 betworn the [ssuer, the Guarnator,
the ‘Trastee and the Paying Apents relating 1o the Peeferred Securities under which cach Paying Agent agrees
oy perform the duties required of it under these Terms and Condidans, as amended, supplemented andfor
testated from time to time:

TARACTT meang, in respet of the Tssuer or the Guarantor [as the che mav bed, ws snconsobidated geoss assets,
all as shown i oits [atest published audited balance sheer, bur adjusted for contingent asscrs and for
subsequent events, all in such manner as the direcrors or the hguidator tas the case may bej may determing;

“Auditors™ means the statutory auditors o the 1ssuer or the Guarantor tas the case may bed or such ather
auditors 1o the lssuer or the Guaranror {as the case may bed as mav be appointed from time to tme;

“Auihorised Dicnontinations” means €1 000, € L0000 and €100,000,

i



Terms and Conditions of the Preferred Securities

“Business Day” means a day, other than a Sawrday or Sunday, which is (1} 2 TARGET Bpsiness 1ay and (i) a
day on which commoercial banks and forcign exchange markets are open for general bosiness in London;

“Lalculation Agency Agreement’” mezns the calcolztion agency agreement dated 7 March 2001 berween the
Tssuer, the Guarantor, the Trosree and the Calculation Agent, relaring to the Preferred Secunities under which
the Calenlation Agent agrees w pecform the duties required of it under these Terms and Conditions, as
amended, supplemented andfor restated from vime to time;

“Calculation Agear”™ means Cazenove 8 Ca., as caloulation agent i relackon to the Preferred Securities, or its
SHCCUSSOr O seccessars for the time boing appointed under the Calealation Agency Agrecrnent;

“Capital Regulations™ means at anv onwe the regolations, reguicements, guidelines and policies relaong, o
capital adequacy then in effect of the Central Bank of cland or such other governmental authority in
ireland jor, f the Goarantor hecomes domiciled in o jurisdiction other than Ireland, in such other
jarisdiction) having primary bank supervisory anthority with respect o the Guarantor;

“Coupon” means an inwrest coupon relating w2 Preferred Securior and includes, where the context so
permits, a Talon;

“Conpon Amount”™ means (i in respect of 3 Coupon, the amount of interest payable on the presentation and
surrender of such Coupon for the eelevant Coupon Period in accordance with Condition 5 and (i) for the
purposes of Conditons Bict, Bidi and Hd), any interest acorued from and including the preceding Coupon
Payment Date (or, if nonc, the Issue Date) oy bot excluding the due date for redempiion if nor 2 Coupen
Pavment are;

“Coupon Determination Dace™ means, im relation o cach Reser Dare, the second Business Day prior to snch
Reser Dae;

“Coupon Payment” means, i respect of 2 Coupon Payment Dag, the aggrepare Coupon Amounts for che
Conpon Penod ending on such Coupon Pavment Dare;

“Coupon Payment Bate™ means (1} in respect of the pertod from the ssue Date 1o jand induding) the First
Reser Daee 7 March in each vear, staring 7 March 2002, and (i} aleer the First Reset Dace, 7 March, 7 June,
7 Seprember and 7 December i each year, starting 7 june 211, provided that if any Coupon Paymene Date
after the First Reser Dage would otherwise Rall on a day which is not a TARGET Business Davy, ic shall be
postponed to the next day which is a TARGET Business Day;

“Coupon Period” means the period beginining on [and inclading) rthe ssue Date and ending on (bhut
excluding) the first Coupon Payment Date and each suceessive period bepinning on (and including) a
Coupon Payment Date and endimg on (bur excleding) the next suecceding Coupon Payment Dane or, if
applicable, the due date for redemprion, if nor a Covpon Fayment Daze;

YCaupronholder™ means the bearer of any Coupon;
“Crapon Rate” has the meanimg goven 1o 1t in Condition Sthi;

“Dated Subordinared Debe™ means (10 che £100,000,000 975 per cont., Sobordinaied Bonds dae 2005, (i) the
USE175,000,000 Subordinared Fleating Rare Wotes due 2007, (i} the £200,000,000 Subordinared Floaring
Eate Nowes dee 2009, and (ivh the €7 50,000,000 6.45 per cent. Subordinared Motes due 2010, in each case
wsued by the Grarantor, 2rd (v} any ather obligations of the Guarantor which rank or are expressed ta rank
purt passie with the aforesaid obligations:

“Dray Count Fraction” means H) o respect of the period from (and including) the issue Date w (but
excluding) the Firse Reser Dare, the acteal nember of davs elapsed divided by the actual number of days in
the relevant Coupon Period and (i) in respect of cach Coupon Period afier the First Reset Date, the acrual
number of davs elapsed divided by 360

“dealing day™ means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which the Frankfure Secck Exchange {or
such other stock exchange on which the Reference Bond (as che case mav be) is ae the celevane time listed)
is ordinanly open for the trading of sccurities;

n
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“Deferred Coupon Pavment™ means any Pavment, or part thereot, which, pursuant to Condinen 41by, che
lssuer has elecred to defer and which has not been satistied:

“Deferred Coupon Sansfaction Date™ means the date on which the Issuer has resolved to satisfy a Deferred
Caoupon Payment, as notihed by the Tssuer 1o the Truscee, the Holders, the Principal Paving Agent and the
Calcularion Agent in accordance with Condition 4{b;

“Director’ has the meamng ascribed to it undet the Trust Deed;

“distribution”™ means any cash payment other than in respect of poncipal made in respect of an mnovatve
Tier 1 Caputal instrumene ranking parf passs with or junior to the Preferred Securitics

“Euro-zone™ means the region comprised of member states of the European Union that adopr the single
currengy in accordance with the Treaty;

the “Exceptiomal Deferral Condition™ will be sarished it, m the deermination of the Tssuer, an the rolevang
date, the Guarantor 5, or payment of the relevant Payment by the [ssuer or by the Guarantor under the

Ciuarantee will result int the Cruarantor being, in non-compliance with the applicable Capital Regulations;

“FExceptionally Deferred Coupon Paymenc” means a Payment, or part thereaf, which has been deferred in
aveordance with Condition #4a) and has oot subsequently been either (1) sanshied, or (1) deferred in
avcordance with Candition 4{h);

YExceptionally Deferred Coupon Satisfaciion [ate” means the date on which the Issuer has resolved o satisty
an Exceprionally Deferced Coupon Payment. as notifed by the Issuee o the Trustee, the Holders, the
Principal Paying Agent and the Caleularion Agent in accordance with Condition 4éa);

“Fiest Reser Date” means 7 Marcch 2011
SOumarantee’ bas the meaning ascribed to it in Condicon 2{bit;

“Cuarantee Coupon Payment™ means any payment due from che Guarantor porsuant ro the Cuaraatee in
respect of a Pavment;

“Guarantee Coupin Faymene Sansfacton Dane™ means any Coupont Payment ace, Deferred  Coupon
Satisfaction [Jare, Exeeprionally Doeferred Coupon Sarisfacton Date or other diate on whoeh the Guarantoe
nas resolved o make & Cuaranoes Coupen Pavment pursuant to Condition 7,

“Cuaranree Payment Ordinary Stock™ has the meaning ascribed o ic in Conditien 7(h){ii);

“Cvarantor” means The (Gavernor and Company of the Bank of Treland;

*“alder™ means the bearer of any Preferred Sccuriey;

*holding company™ has the meaning ascribed o it under Section 133 of the Companics Act, 1963 of [reland:

“interest™ shall, where appreopriare, include Coupon Amounts, Deferred Coupon Payments, Laceptionally
Deterred Coupon Pavmenes and Acerued Coupon Payiments;

“Irish Stock Exchange' means The Irish Stock Fxehange Limited;
“Issue Dae”™ means 7 March 2000, being the date of initial issue of the Prefersed Securicies;
“lssuer” means Bank of Ireland UK Doldings ple;

“lisuer Shares™ means ordinaey shaees of the Iisucr (and includes any stk or other units of capital into
which such shares may be convered);

“Liabilittes™ neans, mrespect of the Issuer or the Guaranoor (as the case may bel, its unconselidansd gross
liabilitivs, all as shown inits latest publshed aodited kalance sheet, but adjusted for contingent liabalities ang
tor subsequent events, all inosuch mannee as the directors or the liquidamr {as the case may be) may
derermine;

Ery
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“London Stisck Exchange' means the London Stock Fxchange ple;

“Market Disruption Event” means (1) the vccurrence or existence of any suspension of or imitation imposed
en rading (by reason of movements in price exceeding limits peemitted by the Inish Stock Exchange and che
Londom Stock Exchange or otherwise) or on sertement procedures for rransactions in the Ordinary Stock on
both the Irish Swock Exchange and che London Sreck Exchange if, in any such case, thar suspension or
limitation s, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, marerial in the context of che sale of the
Ordinary Stock, or (i) in the opinion of the ssuer, there has been a substantial deterioration in the price
and/or value of the Ordinary Stock or circomstances are such 2s 10 prevent or o 4 material extent restrict
the issue or delivery of the relevant Pavment Ordinary Stock or Guarantee Pavmene Ordinary Stock (as the
case may bel, or (i) where, pursuane to these Terms and Conditions, meoneys are required 1o be converred
from one currency into another currency in respect of any Payment, the occurrence of any event thae makes it
impracticable to eHect such conversion;

“iNew Owner” means any new ultimare holding company ot The Governor and Company of the Bank of
Ireland group of companies;

“Ordinary S1ock™ means the ordinary stack of the Guarantor and “units of Ordinary Stock® shall be
constroed accordingly {and includes any shares or other units of capital into which such stock may be
comvered);

“Ouistanding™, in relation o any Coupon Payment, Deferred Coupon Payment, Exceptionally Deferred
Coupen Payment or Coupon Amount not talling within the definition of Coupen Pavmenr, means that such
payment {a) has either become dee and pavable or would have become due and payable excepe for the non-
satisfaction om the relevane date of the conditions referred to in Condition 2{aiiili1y or the deferral,
postpenement o suspension of such payment in accordance with any of Condidan 4(a), 4¢b), &[d), éte) or
S(d}, and (b} in any such case has nor been satisfied, and, in relation to any Accrned Coupon Payment,
means any amount thereof which has not been satished whether or nog paviment has become due;

“Paving Agents™ means the paying agents appointed pursuant to the Agency Agreemcent and such werm shall,
unless the context otherwise requires, include the Principat Paying Agenr;

“Payment”™ means any Coupon Pavment, Deferred Coupon Payment, Excepticnally Deferred Coupon
Payment, Accrued Coupon Payment or Coupon Amount not falling within the definition of Coupon
Favyment,

“Paymenr Business 17ay™ means a day {other than a Sacurday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are
open for general business in London and, in the case of the presentation or surrender of a Preferred Security
in the place of the speafied office of the relevant Paying Agent 1o whom the Preferred Security or Coupon is
presented of surrcndered and, in the case of a payment by transfer w 4 euro account, 2 day which is a
TARGET Business Day;

“Payment Issuer $hares™ has the meaning ascribed w e in Condition &{b);
“Payment Ordinary Stock”™ has the meaning ascribed to it in Condition 8(bj,

YPreferred  Securites™ means the €600,000,000 740 per cent. Caranteed Step-up Callable Perperual
Preferred Securities, and such expression shall incdude, unless the conwxt otherwise requires, any further
instruments issued pursaant o Condition 18 and forming a single series with the Peeferred Securicies;

UPrincipal Paving Agent” means she principal paving agent appainted pursuant to the Apency Agreement;

“Redemprion Price™ means, in tespect of cach Preferred Security, {a) the Authorised Denomination of such
Preferred Scearity or, if higher, (b) the price, expressed as a percentage (rounded b three decimal places,
{10005 being rounded opwards), at which the gross redemption yield (as calculated by the Calcubation
Ageni} on the Preferred Securities, if they were tor be purchased at such price on the third dealing day prioe
to the date fixed for redemption, would be equal o the gross redemption vield on such dealing day of the
Reference Bond plus 0030 per cent, on the basis of the middle marker poice of the Reference Bond
prevailing at 1L0O0 a.m. (Central European dme) on such dealing day;

“Reference Banks™ has the meaning ascribed o ic in Condition Sie);

iz
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“Reterence Bond™ means the 5.23 per cent. Bundesobligatonen duc January 2011, or if such bond 5 no
longer in issue, such other Buropean government bonds as the Calculaton Apent may, with the advice of
three brokers of, andfor warker makers ine Fueepean goverament bonds seleceed by the Caleulation Agent,
determine 1o he approprinie for determining the Redemprion Price;

“Relevant Pace™ means (1) 10 respect of any pavment other than a Winding-Up Claim, the date on which such
pavment Aest becomes due and pavable bur, if the fall amount of the monevs pavable on such dme has nor
been received by the Principal Paving Apent or the Trustee on or prior o such dare, e “Helevant Daee™
meane the dare on which such monevs shall have heen s recvived and notice 1o that effect shall bave been
given re rhe Holders in eccocdance with Condimion 17, and (i} i respect of a Winding-Up Claim, che daic
which s one day prior oo ihe convnencement of the winding op;

“Resetr Duke™ means the Fiese Reser Dare and thereafter, cach Coupos Payment Drace,
“Semor Creditors™ means:

{il 1o respect of the Bsuer, credioes of the bssuer (at who are unsubordinared coedivers of the Issuer or {b)
whose clabms are, or are expressed w be, subordinated {whether enly in the cvent of the winding-up of
the lssuer or otherwiset o che claims of ansebordimated credivors of the lsuer Bar nes further or
otherwise wr () who are sobordinated credicors of the Bssuer, other than thase whose claims rank, or
are expressed we rank, parf passe wich, o junior ta, the claims of che Elolders: and

{ith m respect of the Guaranwor, creditors of the Guarantor (4] who are depositors or other nRsubordinated
credicars of the Guarantor, or (b whose claims are, or are expressed ra be, subordinated (whether only
m the evene of the winding-up of the Gearantor or otherwised o she caims of depositors and oather
pasubordinaced credivors oif the Guarantor (ncduding those whose claims are in respeer of Dated
Subordinated Debt andfor the receipess and coupons f anvt relating therceol (ot not turcther or
vtherwise) or (cb whose claims are or are expressed fo be (whether anly in the event of the winding-up
of the Guarantor or otherwisel subordinated e vhe claims of other credimovs of the Guarantor, wicther
subordimated or unsubordinared (ncleding those whose claims are in respece of Undated Subordinaed
et and the coupons (iF any) relating thereia) other than those whose daims cank oF are expreessed to
rank {whether anly in the event of the winding-up of the Guarmikor oo otherwise) pari passi with, or
jurioe e, rthe claims of the Flolders;

SSolvent™ mwans, in celanon to the lisuer or the Guaranror ar any relevant fime, that it meers both of (he
tolkrwimg Conditions

ta) it is able ea pay ies debes to s Senior Credivors as they fall dues and

(he its Asscts exceed s Liabilies toois Semor Credivors das determined in accordance with generally
aveepted accewmnting privoples indls junsdiction of incorporationd;

“Subsidiary ™ has the meamng aseribed wor wader Sectian 155 of the Companices Act, 1963 aof Ireland;
“Substicuted Guarantor” has the mcaning ascribed o ivin Condinon 14,

“Subsetuted Issuer™ has the meaning aseribed w i in Condivon 14;

*Suspension’ has the meaninp, ascribed o i i Condition 91d};

“Talon™ means a alon for farther Coupons;

“TARGET Business Day™ mwans a day on which the Trans Eoropean Real-Time Gross Serlement Expross
Transter {ITARGET) Systen is operating;

“Tier | Capieal”™ has the meaning aseribed o it in the Cenvral Bank of Ireland implementation Notice daled
13th june, 2000 in respect of the Implesentation of the EC Owe Funds and Solvency Ratio Dircotives for
Credic nsatutions Incorporated in beedand (B50 5 LA or any successor nouficaton replacing such notice;

“Treaty™ micans the treaty establishing the Evropean Communicy, as amended {eoma time to ome;
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T rust Deed™ means ehe trust deed daeed 7 March 2001 berwern the issuer, the Guarantor ond she Trustee,
as pmended, supplemented andfor restared from rime o dnee;

“Trusiee” means The Bank of New York as trustee For the Holdees and includes ies seccessoris);

“Undated Subordinated Debr™ means the USH 50,000,000 Undared Floaang Rate Prmary Capital Notes
igsued by the Guarantor and any ather obligations of the Guarantor wiich rank or are expressed o rank
prari prassw therewith;

“UHpper Tier 2 Capial™ has the meanuig asceibed ter icin the Central Bank of ireland Implementation Motice
dated 13th June, 2000 in respect of the Implementation of the BC Own Fands and Sobvency Rano Direcrives
for Credi instivuncns corporated in Ireland (BSTY % V0D or any successor nobhcirion replacing such
NOTICE

“Upper Fier 2 Sccurities” means seonritics of the Issuer that have substantially simnbar terms in the apinien of
the Trustee as the Preferred Secunmies {indluding for the aveidance of doube the bencht of the Guarantes) save
that {1 rhey and the pearantee of the Guarantor shall each contam terms no less favourable so an investor
than the then current muwnimum requirements of the Central Bank of Ireland m relation wo Upper Tier 2
Capital, and (21 the Coupon Rate of such securities shall be determined in sech manner as shall resule in i
being 040 per cont. per anawin below the Coupon Rate from tme o tme {and whether before or after the
First Reset Uare) applving to the Preferred Secuninivs:

“Whaolly-Crwned Subsidiary™ means, 1 respeet of any entity, a dircctly or indicectly whally-owned Subsidiary
of that varity;

“Winding-Up Clain™ means, 2s the conexst may regeire, eicher a Winding-Up Claim of the ssuer or a
Winding-Up Claim of the Guaranwr and “Winding-Lp Claims™ shall be constroed accordingly;

“Winding-Lp Claim of the Guaranior” has the meaning ascribed o i in Conditen 2ibiini2); and

“Winding-Up Claimy of the Issuer™ has the meaning ascribed to it in Conditon 2{a)iiin2).
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Summary of Provisions relating to the Preferred Securities while in Global
Form

Exchange

The Preterred Securities will bie represented initially by a Temporary Glolal Preferred Security in bearer torm
without Coupans or Talons which will be deposited outside the Unired Staes with a common depositary for
Clearstream Bankmg, socieid anonvme (“Clearstream, Luxemlnwurg”) amd Foroclear Bank S.ASNV, as
aperator of the Furoclear System “Furoclear™ an or aheur 7 March 2001, The Temporary Global Preterred
Security will be exchangeable im whaole ar in pare (free of charge to the holdee) for inrerests in & Pormanent
Global Preferred Security in bearer form witheur Coupons or Talons on of after a date which is expecred to
te 16 Apnl 2001 (the "Exchange Date™i upon certificanion as 1o non-US keneheial ownership as requited by
US Treasury regulations and as described in che Temporary Global Preferred Security. Upon deposic of the
Temparary Global Prefeered Security or the Permanenr $lobal Preferred Secunty (cach a “Global Preferred
Secuniry™) with o commuon  depositary foc Clearsercam,  Luxembourg and  Boreclear,  Clearstresm,
Luxembourg and Furaclear will credit each subscriber with a principal amount of Preferred Sccurities equal
ter the principal amount thereaf for whick it has subscribed and pail.

Each of the persons shown o the records of Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear as the holder of a
Proferred Security represented by a Global Preferred Security must laok solely to Clearstream. Luxembourg
ar Euroclear (as the vase may be) for his share of each pavment made by the ssuer to the bearer of such
Global Peeferred Security, subject ro and i accordance with the respecrive rules and procedurces of
Clearstream, Lusembourg or Luroclear tas the case may bep,

The Global Preferred Securivies will contain provisions applicable o the Preferred Securivies represented
theeeby, some nf which madify the effece of the Terms and Conditions of the Preferred Sccurities. Certain of
these are siimarnised in thiy section,

Faor so long as any ot the Prefeered Securivies is represented by a Global Prefeered Security, the hearver of the
Global Preferred Security may, except as ordered by a court of comperent jorisdiction or as reguired by law,
b weearedd by the lssuer, the Guaranoor. the Trustee and the Paying Agents as the owner thereof and of all
rights thereunder free trom all encumbrances {in accordance with and sulject to s terms and the Truse
Precilt and the expression “Holder™ and relaeed exprossions shall be comstroced accordingly, Tntereses in
Preteered Securitics which gre represenced by a Global Preferred Security will enly be transferable in
aueardance with the reles and procedures for the nme beng of Clearseream, Luxembourg andfw Furaclear,
as rhe case may be,

If any dare on which a payment is doe on che Peeferred Securitics occurs prioe o the Exchange Date, the
relevant payment will be made on the Temporary Glolal Preferred Securicy only to the extene that
certification as to non-lS heneficial ownership as required by US Treasury regolarions fin suhsrantially the
torm referred 1o m the Temporary Glehal Preferred Security or m such other farm as is customanly ssued
in such circumstances by the relevant <learing svatem or depositary] has been received by Clearstream,
Luxembourg or Furoclear. Payment of amounts due in respect of the Permanent Global Prefecred Securine
will be made through Clearsiceam, Lusemboury or Fureclear without any reguirement for certificarion.

The Holder of the Temparary Global Prefereed Sccurity shall mor junless, upon due presentation of such
Temporary Global Preterred Security for exchange oo whaole ar inopartd for intereses in the Permanenr
Gelohal Preferred Security, such exchange is improperly withheld or refused and such withbaotding or refusal
15 conrinuing at the relevanr pavment date) be entiled w receive any payment in respect of the Preferred
Secorinies represented by soch Temporary Global Preferred Security which talls due on o afrer the
Exchange Dare.

Interests i the Permanene Global Prefereed Sccurity will be exchangeable in whaole bt non in parer {freq of
charge o the holderd for definitive bearer Preferred 3ecurities (a) if the Permanent Clobal Preferred Security
is held on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg or Furoclear or an Alternative Clearing System {as defined
below! and any such clearing system s closed for business for a courinuous peciod of 14 davs (othee than
P reasan of public holidays, stamrory or otherwised or anpounces an intertion permanently W cease
Lasiness of dowes am Faet dber sooor () ag any dmwe at the epeion of the lssoer, by che lssuer giving notice o
the Principal Paving Agent and the Holders of s intenmon to exchange intersses in che Permmanent Global
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Ssummary of Provisions relating to the Preferred Seaurities while in Global Formn

Preferred Security for definitive Preferred Securities on or after the Permanent (obal Exchange Dare (as
definied below) specified in the notice.

On ar atter the Permanent Glokal Exchange Date the holder of the Permanent Global Preferred Securiry shali
surrender the Persnanent Global Preferred Secuniy o or o the order of the Principal Paving Agent. in
exchange for the Permanent Global Preferred Securiey, the Issucr shall deliver, or procure the delivery of, an
equal aggregare principal amount of duly execured and authenticated debnicive Preferred Sccuribies having
attached o them all Coupons i respect of interest which has nor alrcady been paid on the Permanent
Global Prefereed Securicy and a Talon,

“Alernative Clearing Svstem’” means any such other clearing system #s shall have been approved by the
Trustee.

“Permancnt Giobal Exchange Date™ means a day falling not less than &0 days after thar an which the notice
requiring exchange is given and on which banks are open for bosiness in the cicy in which the specified office
of the Principal Paying Agent s located and, excepe in the case of exchange pursuant e {2} above, in the citics
in which Buroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg or, if relevant, the Alrernative Clearing Svstern are locaeed.

Paymeants

Principal and interest in vespect of the Permanent Global Preferred Securicy shall be paid v s holder apainst
presentation and {if no further payvment fails v be made on it} sorrender of & ta ot (o the order of any Payiog,
Agent which shall endorse such payment o cause paymene to be cndorsed in the appropriate schedule to the
Permarent Global Preferred Security. No person shall however be entitled w receive any payment on the
Permanent Global Preferred Security falling due akeer the Permnanent Global Exchangs Date, onless exchange
of the Permancnt Global Preferred Security for definitive Preferred Secorines s improperly withheld or refused
bv or on behalf of the Tssucr.

Call Option

So long as the Permanent Clobal Preferred Securwy s held on behalf of Enroclear or Clearsiream,
Luxembourg or an Alternacve Clearmg Systern, no drawing of Preferred Secunmies will be required uncdet
Condirion E(bWil) in the event thar the Issuer exeroses s call option purswane o Condition B{b)ii) in
respect of less than the apgregace principal amount of the Preferred Securities castanding at such time. In
such event, the standard procedures of Eurodear, Clearstream, Luxembourg andfor any Alternative Clearing,
Swstern shall operawe ©o determine which interests in the Permanent Global Preferred Security are to be subjec
tor suiech oprion.

Notices

Sn long as the Permanent Glokal Preferred Secunity s held on behalf of Buroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg or an Alwernative Clearing System, notices required 1o be piven o Holders may be given by
their heing delivered to Furnclear andfer Clearstream, Loxembourg o, as the case may be, the Alternative
Clearing System, rather than by publicancn as regeiced by the Terms and Corditions of the Preferred
Securities excepr that 5o long as the Preferred Securities are Hsted on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and
the rules of that Exchange so require, rotices shall also be published 10 a leading newspaper having general
circufabien in Luxembourg (which s expecred to be the Pruxemburger Worl), Anv notice dolivered w
Furoclear, Clearstrcam, Lyxembourg andfor, as the case may be, the Aliernavve Clearing System shall be
deemed ter have been given o the Hoiders on the day on which such nortice is so deliversd,

Meefings

The halder of the Permanene Global Prefereed Sconnty shall be treated at any meenng of Holders as having
ene vore m respece of cach €1,000 principal amount of Preferred Securities for which the Peomanens Global
Preferred Security may be exchanged.

Furchase and cancellation

Cancellation of any Preferred Svcurity represented by the Permanent Global Preterved Scourity which s
required by the Terms and Condions of rhe Proferred Sconnties 1o be cancelled will be offected by
reduction in the principal amount of the Permanent Global Prefeered Securiny,
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Summary of Provisions refating o the Prefarred Securities while in Global Farm

Trustee’'s powers

In considenng the terests of Holders in ciccomstances where the Permanemt Global Preferred Securiy is hield
on behalf of anv ong or more of Foroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and an Alernative Clearing System,
the Trusiee may bave regard o such infonmanen as may have beer made available w it by or on behalf of
the relevane clearing svstem or s operator as to the wentiy of its accounthabders teither individually or by
way of categoryt with entidderments i respect of the Permanent Global Preforred Sccuriny and may consider
such interests on the basis thar sech accomntholders were the holder of the Permanent Global Preferced
SeCuey,




Use Of Proceeds

The net praceeds fram the ssue of the Preferred Securities, which are expected to amourr o €3%3,172,000),
will be used For the development and expansion of the husiness of the Group and o sorengthen the capical
base of the Group.
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Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc

Business

Bank of [reland UK Holdings ple {the “Issuer) is 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of The Governor and Company
of the Bank of lrcland (the “Bank™), a chartered corporation incorparated e Ireland,

The [ssuer was cegistered as a privace fimited company in Narthern frelagd {Numbhee NI A%411in 19487 and
was re-repistered as a public imited company wader the Compames (Morthern lreland) Order 1986 on
31 January 2001, Its registered office is located ar 54 Doregall Place, Belfast BTT SBX.

The Issuer’s principal activiey is w a¢t as 2 holding company for cortain subsidiaries of the Bank of Ireland
Ciroup which engage in hanking, credit, factoring, and mortgage serviges. The activities of the lssuer are
anticipated € comtinue on a going concein basis for the foreseeable future,

CAPITALISATION AND INDEBTEDMNESS OF THE 1SSUER

Ac at
3 December
2000
£008
Capital Stock
Aunthorsced:
Ordinary Sharcs of £1 #ach o 0 0 0 e e e i e e 3,000
Alloteed, issued and fuily paid up:
Ordinary shares of £1 cach o o0 0 0 e e e e e e e e e e e e 2,478
Long teren Indebtedness™ L L . loa623

Fry O 2% Lanugry 2HH, dee gueboresed share eapetat of the Toiner ieas angcroased o £TOCLENNY (NG,
f2r Cansisting of asouts e after e e fo the Bask,

£3) Before admmstuent tu take motn acconal the BalLG00,00 T.40% Craraiteed Step-ap Catlable Perpetreal Prefarved Securaie heng

1ssteagd,

(4 Except ar sel o abore, there bas bees ey eeaterial chaege on the caprtalisation ard indoliedress of the Yioweer saee 1 Decomsbor
HNND,

Board of Directors

The business address of the Board of Directors is Bank of ireland UK Floldings plo, 34 Donegall Place, Belfast
BT 3BX, Mosthern Ireland. The Scererary of the Tssuer s Richard A, Havnes.

Wame Furction within the fsuer Principal putside activities

Geeard MG o L0 Lo oo Chairmean and Phrecror Offcer of Bank of freland
Paul Mo IFAlen - .o L e Uiirector ffeer of Bank of eland
Peter FoMOMIS . - o v e e e o eiei e DCircetor Ohhcer of Bank of Irceland
Marv ELRINg .- e e Chrccreor {Hhcee of Bank of Ircland
Bram A Buwrke. .- e Dhirecter OMficee of Bank of lreland
Vethert W, Farrell. .00 Diirecrar Mhcer of Bank of ireland
Peter W Hammend. ... ... ... ... oo Director EMhcer of Bank of frglany




Financial information relating to Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc

Avdired financial starements of Bank of Ireland UK Holdings ple for the years ended 31 Marcch 2000
and 31 March 1999, together with the auditors’ report therean oL L 0 e e 41

Audired balance sheet of Bank of Ireland UK Holdings ple at 31 December 2000, together with the
audMOrs PN TRETOOM v e e e e e e 47

These hnancial sratements and auditors' repores have heen extracted without material adjustment from the
Issuee’s March 2000 Annual Report and Accounts and Decernber 2000 Report and Accounts {balance sheet
only].

Cross references to page numbers are to the relevant pages as they appear in the March 2000 Annwal Repore
and Accounts and the December 2000 Repart and Accounts.
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Financial iInformation relating to Bank of Ireland UK Holdings pic

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
for the years ended 31 March 2000 and 31 March 1993

Auditors’ Report to The Members of Bank of Ireland UK Holdings Lid*

We have audited the financial statements on pages 4 to 8 which have been prepared under the historical cose
convention and the accouncing policies sct out on page &.

Respactive responsibilities of divectors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report. As described on page 9, dhis includes
responsibilicy for preparing the financial statements, 0 accordance with applcable Northern leeland
sccounting standards, Qur responsibilities as independent auditores, are established by statute, the Audiring
Pragiices Board and our profession’s cthical guidance.

We report o vou our opinion as to whether the fnancial seatements give a orue and faie view and ane
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies (Northern [reland) Ocder P984, We also report 1o vou
if. in our opinion, the dirgctors’ report is not cansistent with the inancial starements, if the Company has not
kept proper accouniing records, if we have not received all the informarion and explanations we require for
our audit, or if the information specified by law reganding dicectors’ cemuneracion and transactions is ook
disclosed.

We read the oiher information contained in the Annual Beport and consider the implications for oar report if
we become aware of any apparcnt misstatement or material inconsistencies with the Snancial statements.

Basis of audit cpinion

We conducted our audit in accardance wirh Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Broard. An
audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence elevane o the amounts and disclosures in dhw
hnancial starements. It also includes an assesstment of the significane estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparanion of the financial statements, and of wherher the accounting pulicies are appropriate
te the Company’s ciccwmstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We plauned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the intormation and explanations which we
consicdered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient vvidence ro give reasonable assurance thag che
Anancial statements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by Fraud or ather irregulariey or
ecror. In forming our opinien we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in
the finaneial starements,

Opinion

In tur opinion the financial statements give a rue and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs ar
31 March 2000 and of its profit for the vear then ended and have been praperly prepared in accordance
with the Companies |Nochern Treland) Order 1986,

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountans and
Registered Auditors

Brisgo]

28 April 2000

“Basd of Teeland VK Holdiags Limited fecimmee Sank oof feelard UK Faldings e o 31 fameary 2001,




Financial Information relating to Bank of Irddland UK Holdings pic

BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
for the year anded 31 March 2000

2000 1939
Notes £000 £0040
(Mher interest receivable and similar imcame. ., L L L i o 4 54935 6,114
Ioterest pavable . o L e e e et e (25, 7R —_—
L Tl T T T (20 8RA) 6,114
PRI CHPETISES + c o a v w s o a ba s r e e e s — —
{Loss) Profit on ordinary activities befors income from group undertakings and
BAKBHOM &\ oo e e et ettt e e e 2 (20,856 014
Income from shares in group ondertakings. ... L. oL oo 243 2,130
TaMAUON . e e e e m e 3 6.26% 1,895}
(Loss}/Profit on erdinary activities after taxation and profit retained far the
financlal year. . .. ... e e g {12,458 £, 3449
The Company has no gains or losses other than the profit declared for the year,
The results for the vear related enticely to continuing operations.
Recondllation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
for the yaar ended 31 March 2004
2000 1999
EM) £00H)
Shazehoblers” funds ar T Apail L o o e e e BT BLY %L,538
lassalrofie for the woar . o e e e 12458 6,349
Shareholders” funds ar 31 March oo 0 o o e e e e e e e e e 75427 B7 K85

The notes on pages 6 to B focm an integral pare of thess accounts.
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FAnancial Information relating to Bank of Ireland UK Holdings pic

BALANCE SHEET
at 31 March 2000
Lo ki) 19498
Hotes £MH £900
Fined assets
tvescments o subsiditow wndermkiogs ... oo o e 4 AN THIATH
Current agsets
Lehtors — due within one voar ..o e o e o e e A I.ATE 12,052
Credirors - due wathinome vear .00 o o e & (PR ERVE 1R37,218)
BEL CUrTent BEEES . . . . . . e e e e e e (265324 1618, Lokl
Total assets lessewerent llabllities . .. ... .. ... oL R RIATY, 145,508
Lreditors — due after one year
Amoaunts owed o prowp andermakines . . L ca i e e e e [EEEXFRY 137.627)
AR XN Hrmas
Capital and reserves
Sharecapital oL et e ? 2478 2,478
Prosfie & Derss MeciriE © . L e o e e e e e e ] 71,949 H3A07
Equity sharehe!dars’ funds. - . .. . ... .. L e e EAN: i THES

Approved by the Board on 28 Apnil 2000

O L I Dribbell [Direcrer)

The nores on pages & o 8 form an inrepral part of these accounts,
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Financdal |nformation riating to Sank of Irsland UK Holdings pc

Notes to the accounts
1. Accounting policies

f@)  Acerunbing coMveRtion

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and are in accordance with applicable
accounting standards.

thl  [npestments

Invesiments in subsidiaries are stated ar cost less provision for any permanent diminution in value.
Investments i listed securities are stated at cost.

2. Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

The average number of emplovees during the year was Nil {1994 Nil,

No fees or emoluments were paid e directors during the year {199%: Mil).,

Audit fees are horne by the ulimare parent company.

Fees paid to anditors for non audit services duning the year were £Ni {1999: £N),

3. Taxation

Corporation Tax i5 charged at 30% bascd on the taxable {loss)fprofit for the vear.

4. Investment in subsidiary undartakings

Lhares at
cost Loans Total
_ EDDD £000 £000
Ar L Apeil 1999 L L e e i 648,574 115,100 H36T4
Bepayments during ¥EAL - o w0 e e e e e e — (28, 300% (28,300}
A3l March 2000 L e #48,574 86,800 735,374

The tmarket value of the listed preference shares at 31 March 2000 was £25.6 million (£0.97 per sharch.

Loans at 31 March 2000 represent nan-interest hearing loans of £6.8 millinn to N1LB. Led, repayable on
5 years norice and a subordinated loan of £80.0 miilion o Bristol & West plo repayvable in July 2007,
Dring the year a £28.3 million Ioan to Bank of Ircland Home Morrgages Limived was repaid,

The statutory information concerming subsidiary undercakings appears in note 2,

5. Debtors - due within one year

20600 191
£000 £000
Brncounts emanred Iy PAFOOE COMIPADY. © 00t a ot e e r e c e e e e e s 21618 17,355
Arounts owed by sobsidiaey wndereskings . .0 L Lo e 984 i)
Prepayments and aecmoed imCOmE . . oL L e e s e gl T4
LT T T4 6,265 —
ILETe 13,051

§. Creditors — due within one year
2000 1959
00D Ed0
Amounes owed 10 PACERt COMPANY - .+ - - o c o v raes ca et e e e e 297 000 634,000
COMPOIALIN LAX o et ot e e e e e e e e e e — 3.21%
297 00k BI7 AR

Amounts owed to parent company represents advances, repayable on demand, made o the company w
facilitate investment in Bristol & West ple, On 1 April 19992 £337 million was retinanced and is repayable
on 31 March 2002.




Financial Information relating o Bank of ireland UK Holdings pic

7.  Share capital

2000 1999
- £000 LY
Authorised:
Credinary shares ol £l each o0 0 L e e e e 000 A0n
Adloercd, issued amd Tally paid vp:
Chalipary shares af L1 each o0 0 L e e e e e 2478 2A78
8. Profit and loss account

2000 1953

} £00M0 EOEHD

ACUADE oo e T K5 407 79,058
Reraioed lossliprof for dhe year o oL o e e e 112,435R] £.349
Ac 3l Saech oo e T3uq% 55,4007

8. Principal subsidiaries

The Company owns S00% of the ardinary share capital of the subsidiary undertakings listed below,

Lountry of incorpgration Mature of businass
MLLE. Gieoup [td Suetheer Treland Irstalment ceedie
Bank of Ireland Britain oldings Linied England Hulding company
Inwernational Facrors (LY Limiced Surtheen [teland Facwering
BOH Corporare & harernacional (NI Limited Borthern levland Management servives
B 1 Commercial Finanoe Limitesl Emgland Facterimg
B Morgare Services Limited Fasgland Maorcpage serv g
el & Wes ple gl Banking

The Company alse owned 33.6% of the preference shares of Bristal & West ple ar 31 March 2000,

14t Commitments and contingencies

There was 1o capital expendinure or other financial cominitments contracred for bur net provided ac che
Balance sheer date

There are no conringene liabilities that require disclosure in the Anancial statenenrs.

11. UHimate parent company

The company’s ultimate parent company and ultimate contredling parey is The Governor and Company of the
Bank af Treland, a charrered corporation incorporared i ireland,

The Company has raken advantage of the exemption under article 236 of the Companies [ Nonhern Lreland)
Oder 1986 from the obligadon o prepare and deliver group accounts, as the ultmare parent company
prepares consolidated group accoums,

A cashflow starement has nor been prepared, in accomdanee with the exemption provided in Financial
Reparting Standard New 1, as a vonsolidated cashflow starement has been prepared by the ultimare parent
company.

A copy of the Bank of Ireland Group accounts may be obtained from Bank of Ircland, Lower Baggoe Streer,
Trublin 2. These accounts represent borh the smallest and largest group inte which the results of the Company
are comsalidated.

12. Related party transactions

Transactions with other companies within the group are not disclosed as the company has raken advantape of
the exemprion under Financizl Reporting, Standard No.o 8 *Related Parny Disclasures’, as the consalidared
tnancial staements of Bank af Ireland, n which cthe company s incduded are avalfahle at the addoess
sthown in nore 11,

Mo other maresial transactions with relased parties have heen undertaken by the Connpany.
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Financial Information relating to Bank af irelasd UK Hodd ings plc

AUDITED BALANCE SHEET OF BANK OF [RELAND UK HOLDINGS PLC
at 31 December 20Q0

Auditors’ Report to the Directors of Bank of Ireland UK Holdings Ctd

We have audited the Balance Sheer and relared notes on pages 2 to 5 which have been prepared under the
histerrical cost convenrton and the scoeounting palicies set aur on page 3,

Respective responsibilities of directars and auditors

The dircctors are responsible for preparing the Balance Sheet and relaed notes. As Jdescribed on page 6, this
ncludes responsibility for preparing the Anancial statements, wm accordance with applicable Nurthern lreland
accounting standards. Our responsibilities as independent awditors, are established by statuee. the Audning
Practices Board and our profession’s cthical puidance.

We report o you our opinion as (o whether the Balance Sheet and related notes give a true and fair view and
are properiy prepared in agccordanve with the Companies (Northern lreland) Order 1986, We also report o
vou i, moour opinion, the Company has not Kept proper accounting recotds o if we have not recewved alt the
informarion and cxplanations we reguice For cur avdi,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Audining Standards issmed by the Awdiving Practces Board, An
audit includes examinacion, on a rest basis, of evidence relevan e the anounts and disclosures in the Balance
Sheet 1t also includes an assessment of the sigmibcant estimaces and judgements made by directors i the
preparation of the Balance Sheet and related nares, and of whether the accounting pelicies are appropriate
tr the company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequacely disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to gree reasonable assurance that the
Balance Sheer s free From material misstarement, whether caused by frand or other irregularioe or ervor, In
forming our apinion we also evaluated the averall adequacy of the presentation of information in the Balance
Sheer and refated notes.

Dpinion
in aur opirion the Balance Sheet and related notes give a tene and fir view of the stake of the Company’s

affzirs at 31 December 2000 and have been properly prepared i accordance with the Companies {Narchern
freland) Order 1986,

PrivewatechouseConpers
Chartered Accountanes and
Repisrered Auditors

Bristol

23 January 2001
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BANK OF IRELAND UK HOLDINGS LIMITED
Balance Sheat at 31 Dacembear 2000

31 December 11 Marzh
M) 2000
Motes £060 £00G
Fixed assets
Envestmients in subsidiary undertakings ... oo o i e 2 Tie 735 735,374
Lurrent pssets
Drebtors — due withim GmE v80T © L oo e s i et et e 3 E IR T A ila78
Creditors - dae within one yebe L. 0L oL 0 e e s e 4 1316,423) 1297.0040)
MELCURTERE A5EERS . . . . . . . . . o o e e e (270 51 (265324
Total assets less curvent Habilities . . . .. .. . o - oo 480897 A70.FEND
Creditars = due after gne year
Armmounts owed w group undertakings . ..o .o oo oL ool oL (34621 {34621
66,274 FAR bl
Capital and reserves
Shareeapital . L oL e e 3 2478 2,474
Proft B LOss 3Ucmmiil. o v v v v n e e e e e e e e e 63,79 721,944
Equity sharchalders' funds . .. . .. ... . . oo o oo Ré.2 TS 7547

Approved by the Board on 23 January 2001

P F Moreis {Dhieecoor)

The notes on pages 3 to 5 form an integral pare of these accounts,
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1. Accounting Palicies

(@} Accosnting conveRtion
‘The accounts are preparcd under the historical cost convention and are in aucordance with applicablc
acconnting standards.

ib}  Trvestmignts
Invesements in sobsidianes arc stated at cost less proviston for any permanent diminution in valuee,
Investments in listed secorities are scaved at cost.

2. [nvestment in subsidiary undertakings

Shares
tcost Loans Total
EDQ0 E0O00 ECDO
B I T 1 a48.374 56,800 735,374
Additions during the period . . ... . L oL o 1,341 0 1,361
At 31 Pecember 2000 . . L e e 49935 R&, 800 Tin 715

The market value of the listed preference shares at 31 December 2000 was £29.5 million (£1.085 per share).

Loans at 31 December 2000 represent non-incerest hearing loans of £6.8 miilion o NULLE, Lid, repayable on
3 years notice and a subordinated loan of £30.0 million o Bristod & Wost ple repayvable in July 2007.

The statstory information concerning subsidiary undertakings appears in note &,

3. Debtors ~due within one year
31 December 2000 31 March 2000

. ECO0 EGO0D

Amounts owed by parcht COMPAny. . . .o e e 28 403 23615
Amouncs owed by subsidiary andertakings ... L oL oL oLl 1,023 984
Prepayments and avereed INCOME . . ... o o o e e 276 Bii
Group reliel receivable, .. .. . oL o 10,878 G 265
40,585 3676

4, Creditors - due within one year
31 December 2000 31 March 2000

£000 £000
Amounrs owed 10 PAGEALCOMPATIY . . 00 v o v oot o e o e e e e Had4ri 297,000
316,423 2970

Amounts owed o parent company reprosunts advances, repayable on demand, made o the company o
facilitate imvestreent in Briscol & West ple.

5. Share capital
21 Doacember 2000 31 March 2000

EGDD £
Aurhorised:
Ordhnary shares of £1 each o e 3000 3,00
Allotted, issued and fully pad up:
Ordinary shares of £l each o L. oL L L e e 1478 2478
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6. Principal subsidiaries

The company owns BI04 ¢ mdireetyl of the oedinacy share capital of the subsidiary undertakings liseed
below

Cauntry of incarporation Nature of business
LR Group Led “orthern ekl hastalment credic
Bank of Ireland Britmn Eloldings Linnced Fngland Holding: company
internarional Factors VN0 Limaed Marchern Trelar Factering
HEW Cnrporate & fteroacional 18T Linded Soeher frefamd Aanbw ment serviogs
B L Cemmiereral Finaoce Linnred Frpland Pacroring
B[ Merrgage Services Lomaed Fapluwl Morngage serviving
Brosrol & West ple Frglal Fanking
Chaswe de Vere Investowem ple? Enplal Towvestoent hroker
Moneyextra Lonist” Lnplansl Woebsite imermediary

The company abio owned 35.3% of the preference shares of Bristol & Weat plo at 31 Degember 2000,

7. Commitments and contingencies
Therr was no capital expenditure or other fnancial commiuments coneracted for hut nor provided at the
balance sheet date,

There are mo comtingent liahiliries thar regquite disclosure in the financial statements.

8. Ukimate parent company

The cenmpany’s wltimate parent company and wltmate contralling parey s The Governar and Company of the
Bank of Ireland, a chartered eorporation incarporated in Ireland.




The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

BUSINESS

The Governor and Company of the Bank of [reland ithe “Bank™} is the parent of a group of subsidiary
caompanies {togethur with the Bank, the “Groap”) uperating in the financial services sector. The principal
subsidiary companies are described halow,

The Bank, incarporated b Roval Charter of King George B in 173, b5 one af the largest commenctal
banking groups in lreland. The Group had wral Group assets of F68 hillien at 31 March 2000,

The expansion of the Group was accelerared with the acquisition in 1258 of The Fibernian Bank Limited 20d
the acqumisican in 1966 of the Insh husiness of The Mational Bank Limited (then a London Jearing hank). Al
the branches were integrated under the Bank of Treland name.

In April 1996, the Bank merged its 115, holding company, Bank of [reland Firso Holdings, Inc (<BOIFHY),
(the primary assct of which was First ™11 Banks. Inc.) with Cirirens Financial Group, inc, “Citgens™),
formerhy a whallv-owned subsidiary of The Royal Bank of Scotland Groop ple (*RESGE The Baok had a
23,5 per cont. shareholding in the enlarged Cinizens which was accounted for as an associated undertaking.

On 3 Seprember 1998 the Bank sold its 23.5 per cent. sharcholding and ather interests in the enlarged
Citizens o BRBSG For an aggregate consideranon of LSST63 aillion, in cvash, comprised of U558753
millien i respect of its 23,5 per cent. sharcholding and 15510 millon in respect of unecalised tax losses
held by the colarped Citzens,

The business of Bristol & West Building Secivtr was acquired by a subsidiary of the Bank, Bristol & Woest ple
tformerly Reading Mortgages plet on 28 July 1997, The terms of the transfer valued the consideration ac
£600 million. In satisfaction of this consideration £522 million was paid in cash and preference shares in
Bristed & Weot ple (CBristal & West™) were issied for a noonnal value of £78 vullion, Subsequently,
approximately 36 per cent, of the prefecence shares were purchased by the Bank ar a premivm, The
remmaining preference shares ace reported as minorine interest on the Group balance sheer

The Bank has a nerwork of 346 full-time rerail bank branches, of which 277 are in [reland, 47 in
Morthern Treland and 22 in Grear Brirain,

In addition 1o s eerail banking business, the Bank has a funds management business, Bank of Ireland Asse
Munapement Limited, and 2 corporace Roance company, 1B Corporate Finance Limited, The Bank alsi vwns
two life assurance companies in [reland: Lifetime Assurance Company Limited and New [reland Assoranee
Company ple. The larter was acquired in 1997 and gave the Bank access w new distribution channels fur hfe
assurangy prodocts and pensions. (rher sobsidiaries inchude home morpage Pusimesses o Treland G105
Building Society) and Great Britain {Bank of Ireland Home Mortgages Limited): topether with 3 number of
other subsidiaries in the fanancial services mdusiey, The Group also holds 90,44 per cenr. of the equiry vapital
of ] & E Davy Holdings Limited, the holding company for ] & E Davy, a leading [rish stockbroking firm.
The Group's international business is centred in Dublin. In addinion, the Bank has representative offices in
Frankfurt and whally-owned subsidiaries in Jersey and the 1sle of Man, Ic also provides fund management
services through Bank of Irelaind Asser Managemene (U5} Limiced,

The Bank provides, by irself or through its wholly -owned subsidiarivs, 3 full range of Anancial services in the
persunal, commercial, mdusteial and agriculoural secrvors in Ireland, These include current and  deposic
accounts, term deposits and certificares of deposiv, overdrafts, rerm leans, mortgages, curreney loans, leasing
in Irish poueds and ather currencies, instalment credit, hire purchase, debs factoring, toreign exchange
facilities, exccuror and trustee and taxarion services, investmenr management, advice on a range of financial
marters, including miergers and acquisitions and underwritng services

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

furolfonex Technologies Ltd.

Om 23 June 2000 Bank of [reland and NOVA Corporation, a US. company specialising in pavment
procussing and business-to-business e-commerce services announced an agreement o form a joint venture,
FuroConex Technologics L., to offer similar services across Fueope, The fmme vennure is expecied o
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The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

employ seme 600 peaple — mostly new positions — within four vears. The outsourcing of payment
processmp for the Bauk of Ireland card retailer hase will be a major componenr of the Bank’s conrribution
tor the faint ventare, Farther comtracts with thind pareries are snder discussion.

Deposit Interest Retention Tax {DIRT)

On 5 July 2000 the Bank anmounced that it had paid the Revenue Commissioners of Ireland che sum ot
FIR.7 million (IRL30.5 million! in Eull and Anal serrlement of Bank of Treland Group's liability for arrears of
DIRT — see MNote 35 of the Asnual Reporr and Accounts for the vear ended 31 March 20040

Securitisation

Omn 28 June 2000 the Bank securitised €500 million of its Trish residential morngage book. The morgages
were sold 10 a special purchase vehicle, Liberator Secorities Me. 1 ple, which issued mortgage backed
securities in a semior tranche of €477 million Class A Mortgage Backed Floaring Rate Notes due 2032 and
a junicr tranche of €213 million Class B Morzage Backed Floating Rate Notes due 2032,

O 31 Owetorber 2000, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank, Brisol & West, securitised £300000,000 of
its residential mortgages. The transaction Invedved the issue by a UK incorporated special purpose company,
Shipshape Residential Mortgages o, 1 ple, of £285 millien Class A Morrgage Backed Floaring Rate Notes
due 2027. £9 million of Class B Morggage Backed Floating Raw Mates due 2027 and £6,005000 Class C
Morrgage Backed Floating Rate Notes doe 2027,

Chase dg Vers Investments pk

On 11 Seprember 2000 the Bank of lreland anncunced thar Bristol & West had acguired MR Edge Holdings
Lirmted, the holding company of Chase de Vere Investments ple (“Chase de Vere™), a leading UK
Independent Firancial Adviser (“IFAT] business, for an mital consideration of £112 million and a
maximum deferred cunsideration of £22.5 million, dependent on the performance of Chase de Vere over the
threr year period to 31 December 20020 The acquisition supports Bank of Ireland’s strategy of building
Brisrol & West's presence in selected profitable market sepments including specialist mortgage produces and
persomal savings and investimenis, as well as expanding into independent advisory activities.

MoneyeXira

On 10 Movembuer 2000 the Bank af treland announced thae Bristol & Wese had acguived Moneye Xeraconm, a
leuding Busingss to Consumer Inrernet web site, for 3 cash consideration of £26 million. The acquisition
ncludes the MoneveXtracnm brund, the woebsite and the services of some staff. Tt excludes the
MuaneyeXtracomn business to business trading plarform. The agqinsition supporrss Bank of lreland's seratepy
ol buoilding Bristol 3 West's presence in selected profiable market sepments, including specialist lending
markets and personal savings and jnvestments, as well as expanding inro new profitable marcket sepments o
include advice.
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The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

CAPTALISATION AND INDEBTEDNESS OF THE GROUP'Y

As at
30 September,
Consolidated Capitalisation and Indebtedness of the Group 2000
{E millizns)

Capiral Stock' ¥ S1e!

Authormzed:

1,500 million units of €064 cach of Oodinary Stock - o Lo o e e e, Thi)
& million pnits of Non-Comuolative Preference Stock of US 825 cach. . . cn oo i i e e e e o v 218
100 million units of ~oa-Coamolagive Preferenice Stock af L1 each, oo e oo e i e e o e e e s 168
100 million anits of Noo-Cumalative Preference Stock af IRLZ1 cach .0 0 e it e e o v e e 127
1,483

Allotted and folly paid:

Equaty

897 2 mmillion unity of €084 each of Ordimary Stock ... oo o e e oo 638
46.% mallion units of DA of Treasury Stock oo o o oo e e e e e e 30
Mon Bgquity

5 million anies of Mon-Cumnbatve Preferenee Stock of £l each. o0 o o v o i i s e 9
125 million unirs of Nen-Comulative Preforence Stock of IREL each. .0 o oot 13

&40

Minority Intereits — non equiry'™! ™

Bristol 8 West ple
£52.2 million 8% per cenr. Non-Cumulative Preference Shares af Eleach. . . it e e et ar e 87

Subordinatcd Liabilzigy'? "
Lindated Loan Capiral
Bank of Ireland

L..5.%150 mullion Undated Floating Fare Primary Capital Botes _ ... oo o o o oot 169

Brisrol & Wesr plc

£78 milliney 13 per cenc. Peepetual Subardinated Bonds ... oL o on o 208
e

Diated Toan Capital
Rank of Irefand

£100 millien W75 por cone Subiordmared Bonds 2005 © . 0 o e e e la7
LS 85175 million Subordinaed Floaring Rate Nowes 2007 0L 00 0 i e 109
£200 million Subordinated Floating Rare Motes 2009, L o o0 0 i i v rn e 335
€600 million 6.45 per cent, Subordinated Bonds 2000 . o i v
Bristol & West ple
£610 millien 104 per cent, Subordinated Bonds 20000, oo L L)
£75 million 10% per cent. Subordinated Bonds 2008 .. .. L e 125
i,523
R
Debr Securities in Jsspe™®
Eonds and Medium Term BMotes' ! e e e e 1613
Oigher Prebt Secarities i T80 0 e i i e e e e 1,859
3,512

(17 Fur the purpases of ity Uffering Cwreular W indetediess™ 15 dafined 23 comprising Muororey Dterests faon-equity), Subordinated
Ligbilities aead Dol Securities s ivsue amd excfedes customer gecownis and deposits By Daels,

{20 Imterest rates on the fodting rte and fixed rate (aooommodared trrougl swaps) subordmared luabrittivs are determained by reference
try the Langdon Inter-Bamk (ffered Rate (LIBUIR)L

(7 Cprieens o swhscribe for amits of Urdinary Stack ave granted under the terms af the Stack {2ptinn Sckeree, The curremt Scheme wwas
approved by tive Stockbalders al the Annnal General Conrt Beld (a0 fufy 1996, Koy mieenbers of soajor managemet may parociprane
in phe cureemt Schome ab the diseretion of e Renmperaton Conmmittee, Ouer any ton yeur period the agpeopdie exercse price
pavabde for optinns grarted may a0l evceed fiwer fires an execntive's semuneration, The subscription price per it of srock shall
nat b Tess than he market valie of e sinck al 1be date of grass, The sxorcise of opiions graated smeee Hhe commirneemens of the
fmaneial vear 996497 i3 conchiional epun earrings frer share achieeing 0 cumnlative grovodh of af lmesé 3 per cene, per anren
commpund abave the increase in the Cumsemer Prive Index over eitber the thece year perind, or i vl selieved, the six vear
Eericd, connnencing with the fesiad inowhich the optuns dee grmid,
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The Governdr and Company of the Bank of Ireland

ot iy net S eansferred o assogned and prey e cxvercised oy Detieeps the Beivd and tenlle aunnersaries of piar geant, At
30 et 20000 ey rrore cuataide i o GRS et o wtn ke LR peor oot e il Traieed D ddneee Keeg ke ap preiees
Fdrareenir Friomep EULST o 15003 e st of stoek, These optionns s

L exercesed @l eavions dates ape F2 FE Wog reabeer e,

pde e e T et Cemterald Cnaert e Mtockinadders afstrored L earhdishetent of & Ceroan Saeangs-Related Snock Scbeons
rackenee™) Uender M Spbemg, gl B e Teide amed PR e cger i rdler tec zoaforad rete gl pobetann veverre frgeslition o
foarts prevsschictrons, alf empleyecs of the Bank i of vertur sidonduirass are elipible 1 participate provided Bee ave emplayed Dy
i Hawd v d sadve fey v M ddae Bed ihe paomtatsan to prfrciete 0 fieeed el o the day deal the gramt cf ofitears omende, Tis
Selreng agsts Weer bimd i Bpfmsagr v SO0 qend s o weenlt pstions vrer L5 S2T0N sore of Clndieary Steck (06 per cent, ol the Do
U hredltci by Sl e yrnted o Darhcaptinge .r.l?.';.l."rl_'rrr.- o oA freece Of EV b represeerted s 20 per st diseannt
£ Ten marEcr frae, Thyss st W e mr{sf.r:rd’r:lrg s ot BE Mk 20000 e everesafile, peen ndoid e Jrterreafledn s s
sieind verthicts e cosepbesed Detnecen Mo 2R anad Moy 20T

tie Dl Tumg Tevon e fioraner Sl Pl afe ™an s aperoeed I Hee Stockboldors e pry fimkr mhe ephicr af el of stock
recciedtle iy s, o the Thal's Tead Sharefeddfme Botarn o7 FSE 70 TSH redresents stock price sroteths pelng aifeadends.

Futet il Jod B sermoe exeoedfioes poasiecipzbing an e Plae ceceine G eosstoomad awsdnd of o cieslies b ety o Cndinamy

Srewk e e vafiie o e foreps oney ead proeed A0 pee cends of B eecate s salery at the pose sf e areard ! e

peifreritet v these st g ek e gl st ety cvecete ver da turd aunicresaey o ol dare af e wrgunalaaeand o feed

ot e Baeek ' VAR pelateee pe oty o s futhares

- H'L'_ﬁ LA LS TINLATE R L waclatpeaanad eeendned w2y pesr, mir crenzsafatare preganthore the Honks FIX szeest eocceead the araad CF]
s T pes et comprotndod es the dires vers from The Jdaze of Y dreard,

. Preovnded thes comnderesn oz e sarisfied, the pevaportivoe of e award swebick poste offer D veers as Dised one ehe Rand e THH
Fohalie foouliyer soanlarriivs Feoth pe o Jieer prosg eaf oot Irats el DR fieamcaad sstittoons aeed dnorelaiiouy so the FEXE 100
IREL I LN IR T A NI
- Foité prer conr poako 08 Ml of Jeedaanel cs eambeed 1 ore 2 an fhia poer grenge dend ool o cdee e S B TR Q0
- freann MRE g cee L S0 peee cend, ek ndeelesd Berreeeer Sed aned et een Hee e e el alboze S el an pihe

INEIS Y
e dtnied eoate of ekt Daloags ot the meedva of the peor geong aed B medntee g ele FIES DG

n Andfutiuma iy 08 prer cont of stk el cests o o execriaee iead e Bkl Ser S aee Bren vears folloceing gebecly, pragended
e grvgwwetrroops stell cepdonedd Tyt Ciranpn, e aeell e eardend ebietioon ! remesy o stk sor oxgeediag 20 prer cenl, of the
wnats Wbl bl vpared el e Do B shae sortgrinned seasets cosiaae 10 N ekl ber g foeedizer S oveaes caes T v frean the e
af Hree el copditeonal arcands and e execenee rosae gn fee cmplorineat o B Cirenge, e el b aseandied g feettayy
I pe cent eed e e ek st cested qand weee Bl
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rendibieddirss nee 340 Sopoeanher 20060,

As at
3k September
000
Contracl
Ammount
Cantingent Liabilities of the Group o £€ milllgne)
Avcepranves anch endorsermems oo oL L e e IE
Guoaraneves aod assers pledeed an collateral secueny - 0000 e B
Chber comiingent habilition . o L e e e e et 445
1. 4R

Mok
I8 Thy mraxIraee cxhoghies f crided fse under RIS i Mabuliines da 8ne cumract aengrezd of e oestrenent @ e ppene of aeo-
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The Govertor and Company of tha Bank of Irefand

Court of Directors .

The business address of the Court of Directurs s Bank of Ireland, Head Office, Lower Baggot Sirect, Dublin 2,
Ireland,

Name Functlon within the Group Principal Outslide Activities

Laurence €, Crowley

Sary P Bedmend

Maurice A, Keane

Lerd Armstrong of Hminster,
UK OV
Ry 1o Blic, COBE

Anthony 1D, Barry
Richard Burraws

PFaul M [¥Alwan

Margaret Downes

. Pacrck Calvin

[ronal | Ceeaney

Beian | Goggn

Ravioe] MacSharry

Pareick 1, AL Mallay

Lyenis OFBricn

Caovernor

Deputy Cisvernar
Group Chietf Execurive
Mon-Execuuyve Directar

Mem-Execunve Directar

mon-Executive Ditector
Somn-Executive Drectar
Crroupy Chief Finaocial Ofoer
Mon-Executive Direcror

MNon-Exevative Dicecror

Mon-Execative Dhrectar

Chief Fxecutive Corporare &
Treasury

Mon-Execunve Director

Mon-Execurive Thncctor and
Chairman of Bristal & Wes:
pl

beon-Exccutive Direcuoe

Chairman of F[ Careoll and Co. Led,, 8 Duwector of
Elan Corporarion ple and a number of other
COMPRE LS

A Faroner in Arthur Cox, Soligitors, 2 Dicector of

lelerson Smurmt {esip ple and Camplell Bewfey
Cirvap Led.

Chawman of 3i Bioscience Investment Trust ple and a
director of 2 number of ather companics

Chanrean of WG Bard Holdings Lid and of the
Foaethern leetand Tourse Board. A Director of the
Bank of Foplamd arl UTV ple

Chairman of Greeneure Group ple and a Dicector of
130 ple and Tvernin West ple

Chairman of [eisl Disnllers Group Led and Joine
Mapagiapg Peeecror of Peroed Bicard 5.4,

Chawrtnan of BUPA lreland Led. and Gablaber
iDublin) Led., a Drector of Ardagh ple, BUPA w1 the
UK andd a number of other companies

A Dircctor of Gallaher (Dablind Led., Greeocore
Grounp ple amd Insh Sheil frd. Chatrman of the Board
of {overnors of the National College of lreland

Chairman and Chief Execotive of Elan Corporatinn
ple. Chairman of The Irish Aviation Auhoricy pnd 2
Member of the Board of Irrectors of The Ireland-
United Staces Cowuncal and The Trinjey Foundation

A Dircctor of Jetferson Smurfit Geopp ple and
Ryanair Haldings ple. Chaweman of eircom ple, Green
Propercy ple, Londun Cite Awpoct Led. amd Caillee
Teoranta

Chademan of CRE ple and Entecprise Treland. &
Lnrecoar of eircam ple

& Phrecror of Oakhill plc and a number of other
crompanies
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The Governar and Company of the Bank of Irefand

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The prohr and loss accounts, balance sheces and ranos set ont below have been extracted wirhowt macerial
adiustment from the Report and Accounts of the Group for the vear ended 31 March 2000 which are so
vut on pages 3% o 112,

Year to 31 March

1596 1597 1968 1838 2000
€m £ €m €m €m
Profit and loss accounts
Profit on ordinary activirics before
excepuonal mems. Lo 152 503 673 hab 320
Profit an ardinary acoivines hefore taxation 4m 3 #7% 14154 G20
Profit on ordmnary aciivioes after taxation . 271 339 478 q0i 724
Farmings pof ummt of €064 Ovdmary Stock’™ 6.3 330 4500 4.5 5.0
Alrernattve Earnangs per nmie of £0.64
Ordmary Seck’'™ 0L 32 Re — — 54 3 —
[ivdends per unit of F0L6 Grdmary Stock
T Q.68 11,37 1460 I15.41c 235
Balance Sheets
Aimornity mterests —vawity . .. oo 3 3 4 3 3
— DN CQIITY. - — — £l B 7
Subordinared labihoes .00 e 638 12 14457 i,354 1,860
Towal stockholders funds, . .. ... ... 1.538 1,792 2,007 2,834 3279
R PLAS P 24978 322 104 L
T ) W s %
Qperating retios
Ner interest margia (grossed-oph™ L 19 7 ER] 2.6 2.6
Other mcomefaverag earmng assers™ _ 1.2 1.9 i.4 1.3 1.4
Costafeatal income [grossed-upr™ .0 &1 59 i 55 54
Return an average total assen' oL 1.3 L3 1.2 [ .2
Return on average stockholders funds®, 249 2.7 ¥ 23 245
Asset quality
Loan boss provisionsfeans™ .. 1.4 [ 1.1 1.0 0ne
annual provisionsfaverspe loans ™ .. L. L. 0z 0.2 0.2 0.l i
Caphal adequacy ratios
Tier Leapual .. ..o .o o 2.5 11.00 7.2 9.4 7.4
Tomal capiial, oo o 1£.0 16,3 1.3 3.0 83

Maes:

i Fofforeap the Jaly 1999 Ceneral Crnel, the Ordreary Mock of e Bank hating o womptd padue of IRLT per it s sofrdiveded
ivtter frek demeks of Cndiary Stock Paving q worermal vatiee of IR0 per aont, Each vt of Crdmeary Sick reas Swee rodessoemated
partir ererer armd reseesningfeseld 101 2 reenpiet Pales U{Fﬂ_ﬁ#. HgRIg 3 i.'-J'Pﬂ{p.’ﬁSdﬂfm of Reteie Reserees. Ralreos ave bege pestatod
aecerdingpie

13 Meved om propre ateeffeenble fo Ol Stockiofdors Gefiee opeepmeal itoims.

1+ Rarins for 1999 pad 9% are bazed am tke profie atiibaiable 1o Ordinare S1oekholders before eccaplional fems,

ekt Ratmes poer 15 g T997 deaaee froon resgettind oo geclucle tiae effecs of Foreet 31 Banke,
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The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
for the six months ended 30 Septernber 2000
Haif Year Half Year
3 S5eptember 30 September
2000 1999
£m €m =t
Regules
Droht on ordmary acuvines before exceprional wems ... .. e e a7 0% +127%
Proft before taxation . . .. e e 00 0% 2%
Per umit of €0L84 ordinary stock (EPS)
111 T NE N 3Ty —3%
Alemnanive BammimEs © o0 v et r e e e e e e e e e e 43.3¢ +11%.
Dhvidend . ..o e e e e e e e e e e 3.4¢ 7.36¢ + 2B
Balance sheer
T Y 7550 Ju g9 +1&%
Toral stockbholders” funds, L .. .. o o n e e e e 3,575 2,821 #2174
Capilal ratics
Tier T eapital oo s e e e e e e &.8% T %
Total capital . 0 o e e e e e e 1. 7% 10.6%
] 4 T 4.1% 4. 4%,
Key ratios
MEL ADTEPESE IRAIBII . o L e e e e e i e i 2.36% 2T
Cosbalroa] IO, L e e e e e e, 1% 15
Rewarn on gverage steckhoelders fonds oo 0o o o o 27% 7%
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Financial Information relating to the Gavernor and Company of the Bank of
[reland

Audited consalidawed financial stacements of the Bank of Ireland Groop for the vears ended 31 March
2000 and 31 March 1999 togerher with the anditors’ reportthereon. . ... . o 0 L 39

Unaodited interim consolidated financial statemenes of the Bank of Ireland Group for the six monrhs
ended 30 Seprember 2000, mpether wich the auditors” meemm review report dhereoq L ... .- - Ll

These financial statcrmenes and apditors’ reports have been exiracted withour macerial adjusoment from che
Annual Report and Accounts of the Geoup for the vear ended 31 March 2000 and from the interim report
at the Group for the six moenths ended 3 Seprember 2000,

Cross references to page numbers are to the pages as they appenr i the dMarch 20000 Aoneal Repore and
Accounts and the September 20000 interim report of cthe Group,
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AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK OF IRELAND GROUP
for the years sanded 31 March 2000 and 31 March 15588

Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Governor and Company of the Bank of Iretand

We have audited the accounrs on pages 44 ro 104, We have also audited the information on risk manapgement
and conrrol on pages 19 to 24 and the Remuneration Reporr on pages 36 o 44,

Respactive responsibilites of Directors and Auwditors

The Directors arc responsible for preparcing the Report and Accounts. As described on page 41, this inclodes
tesponsibiliry for preparing the accounts in accordance with Accounnmg Standards generally accepted in
reland, Ot responsibilities, as mdependent aoditoss, are established in Treland by stature, the Andining
Practices Board, the Listing Rules of the losh Stock Exchange and owr prafession’s ethical guidance.

We report o you our opifion 45 to whether the ageounts give a true and fair view and are properly prepared
in accordance with lrish staruee comprising the Companies Acts, 1963 o 1999 and the Furopean
Communities {Crodie Institutions: Accounes) Regulations 19%2. We state whether we have obrained all the
informarion and explanations we consider necessaty for the purposes of our audit and whether the halance
sheet of the Bank is in agreement with the books of accounr. We also report to you our opinion as o

w  whether the Bank has kept proper books of account,

& whether proper returns adequane for the purposes of our audit have been received from branches of the
Bank not visited by us,

o whether the DMrector's report is consistent with the accounts, and

s whether at the balance sheer date there existed a fnancial sirnarion which may require the Bank to
convene an Extraordinary General Caurt.

We also report 1o you if, in our opinion, information specified by law or the Irish Listing Rules reparding
Dhrectors” remuneration and Direcrors” transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information conrained in the Bepore and Accounts and consider the implications for our
repart o members if we become aware of any apparent musstatements or material inconsistencies with the
Addoans.

We review whether the statement on page 33 reflects the Bank’s compliance with the seven provisions of the
Combined Code spucified for our review by the [ish Stock Exchange, and we report if it does not. We are nac
required to reporr whether the board's statements un internal control caver all risks and controls or to furm
an opinion un the effectivencss of the Group’s corporate governanee procedures or dts risk and control
procedures.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted vur audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issped by the Auditing Practices Board. An
andit includes examination, on a rest hasis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
accounts, It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Direcrors in
the preparation of the accounts, and of wherther the accounting policics are appropriate  the Bank's
circumstances, consistently applied and adequarely disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as wo obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order o provide us with sufficiene cvidence o give reasonable assurance thar the
accounts are free from marerial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or ermor. In
forming our opinien we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentadon of mformation in the
accounts,

Opinion

In aur apinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank and the Group as ac
31 March 2000 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the vear then ended and have been propery
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prepared in accordance with the Companies Acts, 1963 to 1999 and the Enropean Communities (Credit
Insticutions: Accounts) Reguladions, 1992,

We have obrained all the information and explanations we consider necessary For the purposes of our audic
In our opinien, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank and proper returns adequate for the
purpose of our andit have been received from branches not visited by us, The balance sheer of the Bank s
it agreement with the bouks of account.

In pur epinton, the information given in the Repor of the Directors on pages 29 o 32 s consistent with the
ACC{MURES,

In our opinion, the balance sheet of the Bank on page 47 dos not show a finanaal situanes which, under the
provisions of the Companies [Amcondment) Act, 1983, requires the conveming of an Extraordinary General
Court,

PricewatechoaseCoopers
Chartered Acconntants and Registered Anditurg
Dublin

1) blay 2000
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Group Profit and Loss Aceosnt for the vear ended 31 March 2000

. The Group B
20040 1999
HNote Em £m
Interest receivable
Tmeerest receivahle and similar income arising from debe securivies. .. .. 321 254
Crther interes receivable and similar income ... L L L 2 2.8l 284
Incerest pavable .. . 0o e 3 1,760 2,009
Poel IEETESL T, L, o s u o w k- e s e e e e 1,242 1,114
Fees and commissions receivable . L Lo oo o e 72y a3
Fees and vommissions payable. . . o n o e e e Mz 31
Prealing prefics . ..o e e a2 44 7
Conerilation from lifs assurance companies .. ..o o oo o 127 bOY
Other BPETADTE INCOIIE. | _ . L o e e e s i e et 4 1n2 7
Total opPeranng IBCOmE, . .o o o o o e e e e 214 La1g
A M s i ve EXPEIMEES o v e i i e e e e L) 1,044 Ly
Dreprociation amd AMoriSatnT . -« - - c v vt e a i a e 3,17 1149 EE)
Operating profit befare provisions . . ... .. .. ... .. ... Q75 B5%
Frovision for bad and doubsful debes . 000000 oL ool (3 e 56
Opcratime pProfit . . .. i e e e e S1Y Rz
Income from asseciated undermakings . . .00 e e e e e e ) | kE
Profit on ordinary acovities before exceprional wem, oL 520 £3s
Profie on disposal of assoviared vnderaking oL 0L o oL, - %
Profr beforc taxation .. o .. .. oL e Y20 1,054
Taxation on profit on ordinary acivides, ... o e L 7 196 113
Effeer of reductions in [vish corporation rax standard raee on deferred
ax halances . o e ¥ — K31
Profirafter taxation .. ... ... .ot e 7ia B0
MAMOEIEY IRTEFESER T EUIEY . Lt i e e e e c e e 3 L
TN BYUITY o ] G
Mon-cumulative preference stock dividends. ..o oo oL 8 28 - 23
Profi awnburable o the ardinary stockhoelders ... o0 00 000 L a2} ¥7]
Tramifer oo capioal reserve . L. L L e et an 0 6
Urdinary dividenels. .. .. 0o e 8 233 192
Profir retained for the year . oo . KL ¥ 343
Earnings per unit of €064 Ordinary Sk oo o oL ool 8 a8.0¢ PE T
Alrernauve Earnings per unic af €0.64 Ordinary Seock. .o ..o 0L 9 — 54 3¢
Dilvted Earoings per wnig of @064 Ordivary Sk o L0000 L0 L 9 YT Tiue

The movement i the reserves 15 shown in Note 3,

The proht airributable to the Ordinary Stockholders of the Bank dealt with in the accounts of the Bank
amounted to €322 million (1999; €403 million). The Bank has taken advantage of Regulation 3,
paragraph 2 of the European Communities (Credic Institutions: Acccuants) Regelations, 1992, and
accordingly the proft and loss account of the Bank has not been presented separately,

The notes on pages 31 o 104 form part of the accounes.

Howard E Kilroy Laurence G Crowley
Cresernar Directar

Maurice A Keane Terence H Forsyth
Groufy Chief Frecutive Secretary
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Cirosp Balance Sbeet at 31 March 2000
TheGroup _
2000 193949

Notes Em £€m
Assats
Cash and balanges arceneral ks _ L L o oL L 210 1083
ltens i the course of collection Feam other banks ., oL oL . ... a7 AT
Coenteal government and other eligible Balls o, 000 o o oo 1} T4A a6l
Tasamn and advanves o bamks - oo oL L e e 11 A,972 45T
Pavbris anel sdvamees w costeaners. © . o L e e e 12 44,544 1a, 153
Securimsation and loan ramsbers. 0L L L L . . o T AR
Less: non rerurnahle amouots .o oL e o 578 741
130 117
Dlell securiTies . . e i e e e e e e e 14 &,6A5 3,146
Eapuny shaees o e e e 15 14
Dhin Sbarcs L e e e 33 —_
Ineereses i assocared undectakngs oo oo o oo 15 14 I3
Tangible fivel amsets, ., . oL e 17 97y £33
Intangible Axed dsers -0 0w e 15 g —
My OsRETS . L L L e e e e e e e e e e e 1% 2044 3213
Prepavoents angd acemed bome . Lo oL e e 502 46T
f3.77Y 50,779
Lile assoramee dssets arrpibnable w policyhedders . o0 0 0 0L 20 4,234 3335
AR 4, 114
Liabilities
Deposics bv hanks . L o e e 2] 160, 36 7038
LT Yyt L T 8 22 40,9490 097
Driebe sovcumitios i dsslie . o oo o e e e e 23 28258 541
I o the conrse of ranstnission o other baoks, o000 0L J1g 251
Chber Wabilities, o L e e e e e e e 24 3,59 3477
Accruals andd deferred ingotne ... e a1l &70
Pravisions for liabilitics and charges
B N I . I poy %)
11 1k 107 114
Subordinared lialnliies - .o . o e ki 1 HA6 1,384
Minoncy interests
T L1 P b i)
el E 1 T8 2 87 B
Called up capital stock .. .. ..o oo o 24 A0 B&1
BIGCk PremiMmy @coomnl. . - . © o oo e e e e e e an HTY A3
Capital reserve . L, L L in 212 Liu
Profic and boss acenumt _ L0 kis 1,510 L33
Revaluation reserse, | ... . o e e e e A1 i It
Stockholders’ Tunds including non cquity inteseses - L L L .- . 3279 1.k54
Lafe assurance labiliies attriburable to policvholders . ... 0 L0 20 4,238 3548
£8,007 54,314
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Finarcial Information relating o the Fovermor and Company of the Bank of [reland

Bualance Sheet ot 31 Mareh 20000

The Bank
2000 1995
Notes € £m
Ascaly

Cash and balances avcentral banks © . .. .. o o e e 201 Loe7
frems 1o che course of collection. .. . oo e L e 617 575
Central poverament and other sigible blls o0 00000000000 oL 0 213 193
Powaing and advances oo banks _ o oo Lo 11 4912 S5
Loons and sdvances 1o CUSmENers. . . . .. ... e 1 23 488 15,836
Dot SOCUTHIS | e e e e e e e e e e 14 4,595 3,745
Eauiry shares .. oo e e 1 —
LT Ty T 13 —
Shares in prowp indertakings, o - o0 o e e 16 1,779 1,609
Tangihle Raeed Ass0ts. . o o0 e e et e i7 &lin LT
T 1 T vy Y 1% TI4 1,145
Dreferrod GaRAEIT © o e o e e e e e 25 A i
Prepayments and aceroel dncome . - .. L oL e o S8} 356
45,970 34937

Lizhilities
Dopusis by banks . . o s et e e e 2t 13,074 4,192
CISTOHIET BECOMRDS o o v v v v vt vt v e vt v e o n i m s e 2z 25743 19,569
FHohr SeCuURIEIES B0 BSSKC . . . v ot it e e e e e e e e 13 rai 73
liems iy The Course of TParmsmIssoN. o v v v e o e e e e e 2% X5l
Onheer Babilidies. L e e e e 24 1,515 2,153
Avermals and deferred INCOME L ... L. e e 350 e
Previstoms for Lalalioes and charges —odher . _ 00000 0000000 0L 6 a3 -5
Suphordmated Mabalinies . . L e e 27 1,435 1,001
Called wpeapital scack o o L o o 29 &2 £
Seoch premoune goendet. L L L. e c e 0 H7D A3l
Capatal FesBrve L L L L e kil 19 18
Profie and foss gocowmt L L L Lo m 3 322
Y B T T kTH 123 )
Stowckholders' Funds including non equity interesks ..o ... L L 1,220 1,863
46 970 34937
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Bafarce Sherts ar 31 March 2005}

The Group
- 2000 1999
Memorandum ltems Nortes €m €m
Contingent liabiliies
Acceptances and cndorsemrals, L0000 e e e e e e 73
Craarantees and assers plediged as collateral secoriny, o000 000 897 621
Uhther vonetingent labilities. .. L 0 o oo e e _ 343 L E
15 _ Lak L0347
COMBHITICILS . - o v v o v e e ot e e i m s oo em e e e s is 11,553 S7E
The Bank
20 1939
__ hotes £m ’El
(...‘unl'ingttlt hahilimies -—_
Acceprdnoes and rnedorsements, oL L oo s e e e 11} 73
Cracanoees and assers pledped as collateral securiey o000 o000 L 5421 l.6AY
Crrher contingent lehilmwies. . o0 oo o e e A 343
i3 s ENIE
COmMIIImMIEMES. . o o o ot e e e e e e e KR} H 662 AT

Thi nates an pages 51 a1

Howard E Kilray
CaoweTnor

Maurice A Keane
Ceronepy Chief Execiitive

64

004 form part of the accounts.

Lavrence G Crowley
Pirectir

Torenee 1 Farsyth
Secredary
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Other Primary Statements for the year ended 37 March 2000

The Group
2000 1996
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses Motes __&m £m
Profit ateriburable o the nrdi;;;}r seackhalders ..o Lo Lol L G 7M1
Brchange adpsbments. - Lo e 29,30 183 (23
Bevaluatne of propeety . ... . o oo e 3 152 4
Toral vocognised gains since fasc year. ..o 0w oo e [RLER 752

Note of Historical Cost Profit and Loss

There 15 no significant difference berween the results as disdlosed in the profit and loss account and the resales

ol an unmocified historical cose basis.

The Group
200 199%
Reconciliation of Movement in Stockbolders’ Funds Notes €m €m
Profir avesbutable e ele ordinacy scockholders _ L Lo L !
Phvidends. .. L. & {2334 (192
457 57y
{Iher recognised gainsfilassesh, .. L. oL o e 335 HE
Mew capiral stock subscribed . L Lo oo 29,30 42 13
Coodwill writeen back on disposal of Citlzens. ... 0000 o oL L] — 1
Goodwill wricen back on other disposal ... oL L KL — |
Sk buvback © . . 30 [40:%) —
425 HE
AL L AP L e e e e e e e e e, 1,35% 2,007
AT MARCh . 3,379 2854
Stockhobders’ Egneds:
T 1T 306 2,647
LT s 207
3,279 AT

The notes on papges 51 o 104 form part of the accoonts,

Howard E Kilroy Laurence {; Crowley
Covernor Divector

Maurice A Keane Terence H Forsyih
CGrimy Chief Exccutive Secretary

&5



Financial Infformation relating to the Governor and Company of Hhe Bank of lrelamd

Grong Casl Flowe Statement for the year ended 31 March 2004

The Group

2008 1985
Reconciliation of operating profit to net operating cash flows Hote €m €m
Operating profit. . . oL 19 202
ihicreaseidecrease in acoroed meame amd prepaymens Lo L 1244 63
iMerease) in averuals and deferred income Lo L L e oL {9R} (E9)
Prowiseons for bad amd dowbtfol debes 0000000000 oo b1 AT
Loats and ads ances wazten off nor of recoverios, ..o 0o 3% =
Vreprecanon and mormsatione, ... .00, . 11% b
Inerest charged on suboedinared habilities . o000 o L 432 1034
Onher mon-cash BHOWEMCIIS .. .. . e e e e e e it (4
Mot cash flow from erading acuvieres .o L oL 97 IRIEY
Boct inerease] e o leclione NSRS ImEss It . o L L e e e e e e e . hi 1493
ook dingreascidecrease o leng and advances e banks ... L 25340 1,239
et dingrease) i lsans and advanees o oasmers, .. L. L L. oL, 160155) 1301
setmerease o deposits by banks, oo oo o 3,037 1,669
D MO TEAS L CMSEOTILES ST e 4 o - s vy v e e e e e ey 4 A% 1,144
er increascfidecrenset in Jdebr seoupines ossue L oL oo oL, 2.1 1338
e fincrensefdecrease inonan invesiment debt and cguity sccurtics L A B ) 124
Peet docrensedinereaser i other assers, o 0 o e e e 20y (324
Seer deereaseiinerease i other abilties o0 0 0o 0oL i210 287
Exchange mienveliis oo u o (130 i218)
et cash Alow From opuratifg a00vHISE . - . - - .. e e s 543 B0
Dvidend recoived from assooared vnderebang 000 0 oL - 1
Berurns on mvestment and serviving of Broance 0 oo Lo 3T 2 V14
BT 11T 192 138)
Capital expenditure and faencial ivestmenr, .00 0oL L 37 I L] [93
Acguisiems and disposals . o o e e e e, 37 {1k Tt
Fguicy dividends paid .. ... 1170 127
Flnianmcimg. . e e e e e &7 i) el
(Deercaselfimcresse mogash © oo o ... L (354 g

The notes oo pages 31 w 14 form part of the accounss,

Hiward E Kilroy FLavrenice ¢ Crowler
Oonrcrnnry Diireckoy

Maorive A Keane
Crrinafr Chetef Frecutioe

Tepence H Forsyih
Secretary
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1.
it

i.2

i.3

14

i.f

L&

i.7

Basis of accounting and accounting policies

Aceonnting Convention

The accounts on pages 44 1o 104 have been prepared undder the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of certan properties and investenents, m accordance wich the Companics Acts, 1963 w
199% and rhe Furopean Communinics {Credic Inseinotions: Accounts) Regulations, 1992 and with
aprheable accounting standards. The accounts are drawn np in curo (B and excent where ofhierwise
indicated are expressed 1o milbions and the 1999 amounts have been restared in eurn at the fAxed
translation rare of €1 = IRE0D.7E7I64, Costs, awsers and habilivies are clusive of erecoverable value
added raxes. where appropriate. Aceowndng standards generally accepted in ireland i preparing
hnancial staemens giving a vue and far view are those published by the Tnstitute of Charered
Accountants m Ireland and issued by the Avcounting Standards Hoard.

During the vear, the Group implemented the requirements of FR513, Tanpible Fixed Assets arising from
which an interim valuation of the Group's properties was undertaken, see note 17, FRS16, Current Tax
was alsa implemented.

Basts of Consodidatien
Assers, hababities and resules of all groop undertzkings have been included in dhe Group's accounes an the
basis aof accounts made up ro the end of the Anancial vear.

In order to reflect the different nature of the policyholders’ interests in che long-erm assurance business,
the assets and Habilitics attributable to policvholders are classthied separately in the Group halance sheet.

Assets held by the Bank and cerain group undertakimgs in thor capaciey as wrostee and manager for
investiment truses, pension schemes and wnit wruses are not consolidated in che Group accounts as the
Group does not have benchcial ownership,

Foreipn Cirerrency Trausbation

Assers and liabilicies in foreign currencies are translated into eoros at rates of exchange ruling ac the
balance sheet date or at hedge rares where appropriste. Exchange differences, ansing from the
application of closing rares of exchanpe o the npening net assets held in forsipn currencies and to
related foreign currency borrowings are taken direcry o reserves. Profis and losses in foreign
currencies are translated o curos at the average rates of exchange for the vear or at hedge raes
where appropriate and the differences hebween these raes and cClosing rates are recorded as a
movenent m reseeves. All other exchange profits and |osses, which arise from normal rading aceivities,
are included 10 operating profis.

frcome Recogaition

Interest income is recogmised as it acerues, oxcepr in the case of dowbdful debts where interese is
recogmsed on & cash reccipes basis. Fees receivable which represent a return for services provided, risk
borne or which are in the nature of interest are credited o income when the service s performed or
over the period of the produc as appropriaee.

Mortgaps Incentives

Morrgage mterest discounts below the cost of funds and cashbacks are capitalised in other assers when
there is a right and inteation o recover the ncentive in the cvent of carly redemprion, The amonnt
capitalised is charged against imrerest received in the profit and loss account oo a straighe line basis
over the period of the clawhback and eacly redemption penalty period.

Laasing and Instalment Finance

Leasing income is recogmised in proportion to the furds mvested o the lease so as w give a constant rare
of return over each pertod after taking account of taxation cash flows, Income from instalment fnance
transactions, mcluding hire purchase france, s recagnised in proporion wo the balances cumstanding,

ekt Securities and Fguedty Shares

Investment Scouritics

Drebe securities and equity shares held for use on a conrinuing basis in the Group's activitics are classificd
as imvestment securities. Such securites and shares are swated ar cost less provision for any permanent
diminution im valie. The cost of dared secunties is adjusted for the amortisaton of premioms or
discounts over the period o maturiy. The amortsation of premivms or discounts s incleded i interest
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1.8

income. In those rare instances where an investment secarity is sold pooe to matarity, profits and losses
are recognised when realised.

Crther Securiaes

{ther securiries are stated at fair value, except for thase securinies maintained for the purpose af hedging,
which are accounted for on the same basis as the item hedged. Changes in the fair value of sccurines
marked to market are recogmsed 0 rhe profi and loss account as they arse and incduded in dealing
profts, Prohts and losses on disposal are recognised when realised and included in dealing profis,

underhving ransactions aad incloded in et interesr income,

Derspatnses

Drerivative inseruments used for teading purposes or used o manage risk in the trading porefalios include
swups, futures, forwards, forward rate agrecinents and options contracts in the interest rake, foreign
exchange and equity markets. These derwvatives, which include all cusromer and  propriciary
transacnions wopether with any assaviaced hedges are measured at fair value and he resultant profits
and losses arc included in dealing profiess. In the cvent of 2 market price net heing readily availablde
internally peneraied prices will be used, These prives are caleulated wsing secognised formudae for the
type of rransaction. Where market prices may not be achicvable hecause of the size of positons or the
liquidiey ©0f markets, adjustmens are made in determining fair value., Unrealised gains and losses are
reporred in Other Assets or Other Liakihimes an 2 gross basis,

Drerivanves used for hedging parposes indude swaps, forwards, futures, forward rate agreements and
apTions i interest rate, foreige exchange amd cquiky markets. Gains and losses on thess derivarives
which are entered inwe for specifically designared hedging purposes against assets, liabilizies, other
positions and cash Hows accounted for on an accruals basis, are taken o the profr and loss account in
accordance with the aceounting weatmenr of the underving rransaction, Accrued mcome or cxpense is
reported i prepayments and acorued income or acceuals and deferred icome on a gross basis. Prohits
and losses related oo qualifving hedges of hem comminmencs and ancicipated transactions are deferred
and raken v che profic and ks accoune when thie hedeed wansactions oecue.

The cricerta required for a derivarive instrumenr oo be Classificd as o designated hedpe are:
it Adequate evidence of the intentoion to hedge must be established ar the ourses of the ransaction.

{i) The transaction must match or climinate 2 propordon of the risk inherent in he assews, labilicies,
pesitions or cash Bows beimg hedged and which resules Irom potential movements inoinrerest races,
exchange rates or marker prices. Changes in che derivaives Bae value most e highly correlated wath
changes m the fair value of the underlying hedped item for che entire life of the contrace.

Where these eriteria are now met, transactions are measured an fair valoe,

Fedpe transactions which are superseded, cease to be effective or are werminated garly arg measured at
fair valee. Anv profit or loss arising is deferred and reported in Other Assets or Odher Liahilides, This
profiv of loss s amortised over the remaining life of che asser, hability, position or cash tow previousiy
being heded.

When the underlying assct, liability or pasition is terminated, or an antiopated transaction §s no longer
hkely o oocur, the hedging vansaction is measured ac faie value and any peofic or loss arisimg is
recognised in full in dealing profits. The unrealised profit or loss is reported m Other Assets or Other
Liablities,

Carpital Instranienis
Issur expenses incurred in connection with the issue of capital istruments other than equity shares are
deducted trom the proceeds of the issue and amaortsed o the profit and loss account as appropriate.

1 Y Pensans

Contribnions wo the Group's defined henefiv schemes are charged wo the profit and loss so as to spread
the expected cose of pensions, calculared in accordance with the advice of gualified actuaries, on a
systematic basis over emplovees” working lives, Variasions from the regular cost are spread over the
average remaining service life of redevant employees. The costs of the Group's dehned concribution
schemes are charged o the profie and loss for che period in which they are incureed.
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1.1 Fangible Fixed Assets

Propertios held by the Group are seated ar valoation. Computer and other equipment is stated at cost loss
depreciasion. Leaschold property with unexpired terms of 50 years or less s depreciated by equal annual
instalmens over the temaining poriod of the lease, Frechold and leng leasehold property is maintained in
a state of good repair and the Dircctors consider that resideal vaiues based on prices prevailing ar the
timc of acquisition or subsequent valvation are such that depreciation s not matenial, accordingly this
property 15 nor depreciated. Depreciation on adaptation works on freehold and leaschold property is
based on a2n estimated wsefud life subject ww a maximum period of 15 vears or the remaining period of
the lease. Computer and other cquipment is depreciated by cqual apneal instalments over i estimazed
usckul life subject w0 2 maximmn period of 10 vears.

1.12 Pravision for Bad and Deabeful Debita
Specific provisions are made on 2 case by cise basis for loans and advances which are recognised o be
bad or doubiful 25 a result of the continuouws appraisal of the loans and advances pordfolio. A general
provision s alo made against loans and advances o cover laremt loan Yosses whach ave known from
vxpericnee tw be present in any pertfolio of loans and advances bur have vet 1w be specifically
identifed. Provisions made during che year are charged against profits, less amounts released and net of
recoveries proviously written off

1.13 Deferred Taxation
Delerred taxation is recognised at the appropriate rates of tax wsing che liabili method on diing
differences between probits stated in the accounts and profiss computed for taxation porposes whoere it
is expeceed thar a liability or asser is likely to arise in che foresecable futuee, The furure tax henehy
redating to tax losses is not recognised unless the benefie assured is bevond reasonable doukbr,

1.14 Sevip Diividered
Stock issued in eu of cash dividends, under che Stack Alternarive Scheme, is ssued at a value equivalent
to the cash element, ner of Dividend Withholding Tax where applicable, of the dividend foregone.

PR Investments fn Associated Undertabings
Investments in associated undertakings are stated ar acquisition cost, less amounts wiitten off in respect
of poodwill arising on acquisition, together with the appropriate share of post-acquisition reserves,

} 16 Securitisation and Loaw Trawsfers
Assets sold onder sccutitisation and loan transfers, where there is no significant change in the Group's
rights or benefits ko those assets or in the Group's exposure o the risks mherent m those assets,
continue to be consolidared on a gross basis. In cases where there s no significant chanpe in the nights
and berehs and the brancing is hmted o a fxed monetary ceiling, only the rer amount is consolidated
using the linked presencarion and the eelated gross amounts 2re shown on the face of the balance sheet,

137 Goodieil
Craondwill is a premiom arising on acqoisiton which represents the excess of cost over fair value of the
Group’s share of net tongihle assets acquired. Tremiums arising on acquisitions of sobsidiary
undertakings avcuering afeer 31 March 1998 are capitabsed as assers on the balance shect and
atmortised over their estimated pseful economic ves.

1.18 Life Asswrance Busimess

The assets attributable o the Group from the life assnrance busimess are consolidated in the Groap
balance sheet and consist of the Group's share of the ner angible and fmancial assets of the business
and the {wroup's nterest in polictes in force. The Group's mmicrest in policies in foree is computed
annually in consultation with mdependent acrearies and represents the discounred present value of the
surpleses artributable to the Group which will be gencrated in the future from cxisomg policies. The
bases adopted in the valuaton vse pradent best estimates of future lapse rates, mortality rares, renewal
expenses and mvestment returas, The value has been computed m accordance waith bases accepted in the
life assurasive marker. The staturory life companies’ surplus attniburable 1o the Group, together with the
annual movement o the Group's interest in policies in force 15 included in the Group profic and loss
account, grossed up for axation at the cifective rare,
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Financial Information relating te the Governor and Company of the Rank of Ireland

2. Other Interest Receivable and Similar Income
200 1995
€m €m
The Giroup
Lo andd advances b banks © o oo e e e e e e [ ik Aus
Prans and advamees B0 CUSTOITIVESR 0o e e i e e e 2371 2427
Fimame e easing, .. o e e e ®Y il
TontalmeniD creehit o e e e e e e e e e s . i A
T et T x4
3.  Imterest Payable
20040 1999
£m £m
The (".muﬁ
Tterest e subordmaeesl habilines o000 o 0 0 oL oo L w2 i
sdher interest pavalle, C oL e }ead I3
1B 2,119
4. Other Operating Income
200k 1999
) £m €m
The Graup
Brofit sun disposal eof dovestmuent seenariles, oL Lo Lo Lo 39 K]
Profie on digposal of tangible fixed s oo Lo 24 2
BECLIFTTISAELGR srTvIIAE foes o o o e e e e e e o k] L3
LT 1T T P 42 41
12 I
5. Operating Expensas
20K 1993
: Em ém
The Group
St ff cats:
B L LT I 1 N AL} a9
— L] SLTH Y COBIN . L o e e e e e e e e e e 47 41
CPETEON LEISER. © o ot e e e e e e e e e e e e | k1
B o £ T T 14 G
B L L T T L 2 )
438 331
Clpetaring leane rontals:
e 4.1 101 17
= EMIIITIETIE. © o o oy s o e e e e e e e e e e ] ]
Erher admiinistratinve CRPRilses © . L u e e ey a7y sl
Tereal acitbmserarive eXPersea © .. Lo e e Lig 951
Lrepreviation and amactmation;
= teechold amd leatehold properee L0 L L o 14 13
—vomputer and orfher equipment. o L o e e e e 1015 83
Tl e Prochatium . L e e e e e et e L9 L
Total OPErAlnR SXPEmAES « c -« 0 e e e e e e 16T bl

The chitrge for staff stock issue represeats an amowtt payable w Trustees on behalf of employees to acquire
an wsue of Crdinars Stock as proevided pursuant to the Stock Bssue Schemes approved by the stekhelders in
1284 and 1997, In 2000 the charge cepresents 3.8% of eligible emplovees” hasic salary (19992 2.5%).

2HK)

- . . . £m
Awdiey remuneration (incloding VAT

=i W L e e 1.4

—Room andin wenrk L e e e kR

1949
Em

F

1
1.

T0



Financial Information relating to the Governor and Company of the Bank of Iredand

6. Income from Associated Undertakings

The Geoup

Citizens Financial Growp, Inc
Clgher assowiates

7. Tamation

The Group

L':urpnr;lflnn tax

balances’"’

Tax on the sale of Citeens ¥inancial Group
Tax erechits applvable o diseributions rieceived
Py on certain rix-baved lrnding
Dieferred taxation

Etfect of reducrions in Irish Corporation rax standard rate on debeered tax

(hbher .o o

Apociated undertakings ... oL oL e

200 1859

€m €n

_ 12

1 2

_ 1 s
2000 1909

&m £m

i 56 174

—_ 10

— I

— 30

40 23

- !

T e 253

The tax charge for the year, ar an effective rate of 21.3% is lower than the standard Irish corporation tax rare
bevause of relief arising from tax based lending and the International Firancial Services Centre 109 tax rage.

Inchaded in the charge for corporation 1ax 18 €81 milhon {199%: €86 million) 1 respect of taxation on non

Republic of Ireland business uaits.

2000 1994
€m €m

The deterred taxation charge anses from:
Leasttl domets o o e e e e e e e e e 18 18
LT T 73 4 L — (9
Shart term timing differences. .. . L L L e e s e e 2 44
40 53

W) I gecordance wark Sectinm 21 of o Tuees Cosrsoltdaton Aot 1997, as amnended, phe standarnd rave of corporaiion ax for radiig

e 55 tn be redieoed, on @ phased Duss, o [
The stamdard rade i p bes

] 2455, feer the pear 2000

L] K% for e ypar 20017

1A% for e pear 21002

] F2.8%, for the yrar 20003 and swbeequettt years
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Finandlal Information relating to the Governor and Company of the Gank of ireland

8. Dividends

2000 1959
€m €m
The Bank
Faguiry Srock:
2000
Omunies of €064 Ordinacy Stock in issue
Inreeim dovidend 736c (Taxeredicmill. L oo o0 oo e e 73
Provpussed final hvidened Un e fTax erediemilho . oo e 160
1999
O wevits of E0.64 Orddimary Srock mr issue
Inteeion clividend F.84c sTaxoredr TAM38eh . Lo 0 o &1
Fial dividend 1237 fTaxorednmmlb ..o oo oo o L 131
233 _ 192
2000 1999
£m £m
HNon Egquity Soock:
2000
O 10,3 milkion ey of TREV of Non-Cemueladve Preference Stock, Dividend
IRLIp (Taxeredit mibl -0 oo i e e e e e Ié
On 5.0 mnillion units of Syl of Non-Comulative Preference Scock, Davidend
BrelldeldAp Tax credit o) . o e e e e o
1595
On 105 milhon wnits of [REY of Nan-Cumuolative Preference Stock, Dividend
R LOSEGMp (Tax creadie TROVIIZONM . o oL oo L L4
O 500 milbon wnis of Srgd ] of Neas-Comolative Preference Soock, Thvidend
Sl 12382 5p | Tav crodur STl I3RETSP) . . L o e 4
Zi 23

9. Eamings Par Unit of €0.64 Ordinary Stock

The calculation of earnings per unit of €0.634 Ocdinary stock is based on che profit attributable o Ordinary
Srackholders of €689.5 willion {1999: €771 million) and the weighted averape Qrdinacy Stock in issue of
LOL36 millinn Units {£99%: 1 5348 millton units),

The calculation of the alternative carnings per share for year ended 31 March 1999 15 hased on the profit
attribugable  Ordinary Stockholders before the exceptional irem of €383 million after rax and the
weighted average Qrdinary Stk of 1,034 8 million units.

The dilured earnings per shate is based on the profrc anreiburable o Ordinary Srockholders of #6895 million
(1999 €771 million) and the weighted average Ordinary Stock in isswe of L0136 milhen units
(1999 10348 million wnits) adjusted for the effect of all dilutve porencial Ordinary Stock of 5.9 million
unris (199%: 7.6 mullion unns),

10. Central Government bills and othar eligible bills

The Group The Bank
2000 1999 h 2000 1999
£m €m £m &
Invessment securities
= government By and sipular secyninies . L. 3 — — —_
—athereligible bilis .. .. .. ... .. oL, b3 547 213 192
Creher sccurnines
— governmene balls and simlar secornities ., L 105 73 — 1
746 i 213 193
) —_— _ = —_——
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Financlal iInformation relating to the Govemor and Company of the Bank of lreland

11, Leans and advances to banks

The Group The Bank
2000 1599 20040 1999
£m £m €m £m
Funds placed with Ceneral Bank of Ircland . .. T4 72 37 31
Funds placed wich other cenrral banks ... . u2 25 538 !
Funds placed wich other bagks, .. .. .. ... ., 6,316 3360 14,317 g 295
£,971 3457 14,212 9,330
Bepaymenp on demand 0.0 oo e 1,144 A 1,714 1,04
Other loans and advances to banks by
[CMIAINENE marurity
—dmonths o eSS . s e e e 4,630 LB 10,581 4388
~ 1 vear or less bur over 3menchs ... £,107 Y s 2031 L5lA
~ 5 vears or less but over | year. ... 22 4% 559 24i
SOREr B oFEALS . L 24 14 23 24
6,972 3,457 14,212 9,310
The Group is required to maintain balances wirh the Central Bank of Ircland and other Cenreal Banks,
Amcunts inglude:
M feom groap undertakings
~uamnhardinated . L o g.199 6,372
12. Loans and advancas to customers
{a) Loans and advances ta customers
The Groug The Bank
2000 1399 2000 1999
£m €m €m £m
Lovacs and advances 1o custimerS . oo v n e . 42,109 14 379 12,254 16,895
Lrvans and advances 1o costomers — Ainance
. 2,323 1.640 181 103
Hire pnrchase receivables, . oo oL Hlﬂ 573 146 95
45,242 38542 23,161 17,094
Ciemeral and specific had and doubtivl debs
PROSIONS . . o e e (378 ) 1359 {273) {240
44,844 36,183 22,888 16,536
The Group The Bank
2000 1999 2000 14499
Em €m €m &m
Repavable emdemand . ... 0L -0 1,953 1,614 2,692 2,203
Crrcher loans and advances w customers by
PEIMALRLIE TRATLFILY
~3imonchsarless. ..o L L. .. 2,148 1,489 2554 3456
= 1 wezr or less but over S maaths .. ... ... 2,662 2,404 2178 2457
- 5 years or jess but over Vowear. o0 - . A,649 T3 2478 IR0
T I Y N 29,830 1414 6,961 3,370
4.5.242 36542 21,161 17098
Amounts include:
Lrue from group underiakmgs
=unsuboedinarcd . L e s e e e s e e o 6 B84 4,484

The lnans accounted ke on a non-accruzl basis as ar 31 March 2000 amounted o €355 million

{1999 £444 milljon).
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Finandal information relating to the Governor and Company of the Bank of Intland

{b] Securitisation and hoan transfer
The Grouwp has sold the following pools of mortgages.

Prasentation Valus

Year Securitisathons Mates Morigages I aecounts £m

1992 Private placements with UK financial Insticurions Hidy [v] Besideneal  Linked 242

1993 Private plavements with UK Brancial Insoicetions (i [ Residential  Comsolidared 167

1993 Residential Property Securities No, 3 ple (RI'831 L, il Rusidentral Linked 418

1994 Kesidenuial Propecty Securitios Mo, 4 ple (RPS4) Iil. 1iLd Resideneial Lankel Sk
1994 Commercial Toans on lovesome st Property Securitisation

1Mo, U3 ple (01315 [iv Commercial — Linked 2500

1997 Residenttal Properoy Securities No. § ple 1RPSS: (b, {itd] Resrdential ke am

All the issued shares in the above companies, excluding the privace placements, are held by Trusts. The Group
dovs not own ditectly ar inditectly any of the share capital of these companies o cheir parent comprics,

Uisder the terms of separate agrecments, the Croup continues o administer the mortgages, for which i
receives Fees and Income, In addition, the Group is reguired to cover credit losses arising sulwect o specificd
limuts as set out below. Specific provisions are maintained by the Group on a case by case basis for all loans
where there 5 a likelihood of 2 loss anising and general provisions are maintained as a peceentage af all
remaining ans.

Neles

(4 These comgrtees sseed Mortgage Baebed Floanng Rate Nofes ("Neobes') g Bnance the prerebase of e mortgaee pools, daon
Frerlitens hawe Moo mtdy aeilittie by the Group to fimance cevtitin esae reltted exprenses and hean lnsses arismy oo i pools of
mriartgages sold, The oams are repaydble when g8 Sotes Pave Seew redesned scebject o 1he apimer Daving stefticiond fumds arailable.
Ty sampasies Bape eudged thair tmierest rate exposurg o fixed rate ORI RES MENE trterest enchange agrecrments eih fineceal
Astlretns j.u.:-.rud.l'nx Fank r:l_f tredemnd arnad Boeke af Trefungd f e .-’l.'Tr:l:I'Ig.'.rgus [amifed.

The comparies are ancorporated edder e Comparmes Acis THES ond are eousbered and npeedtiige a cha DR

fut Liateler the teesss oof the storlgdee sile ageerimenls, the Civowp Bas an ofipioe fo repurchase ithe prorlgages 3 par when 1he agerdgme
baburrcts of e shovtganpes Ll belone % o e ovigondd sale procesids,

fiidd Dwder Hre terss of the montgage sale ayrecnments, the Grong Bas dn option fo fepurchase the srorngges a8 pie whes the ageregate

fralanees of Mo morvigages (Il bolee 5% 0 the orginal sale proceeds,

A The cosmpame funded tag prercdiime by the gz of Muatieg rate moryndge Facked securiies, s foreost vandamg of sebuch buee een
puarchtged fov e Sroeegn Uvcder Moe tersng of (s ige, tha Gireape o8 i obBgand o reprerchase gy of B asdess, e b3 Irausfor in
aay additond arsets. Whe sssir teomg of the nentes inclade provoeens that npither the company wor the sorcholdees Bee eocagese o
the Croep aind g Growg compeosy 5 odiiged on errends o suppor? ey (xstes of 100 cosparry, The froceeds gemenated e e
wrearigdge qascts tert! be wted fo pay the inferest ard copital o the #utes and any other sdumtsiratiog ExPomses and taxotion. Ay
resacdie i5 pravaehle to the Sroup as deferred gonstderasiom,

The camprry i frecorporated wider the Trosh Companivs Acts 1964 e 1999 and i registered o oporatesg v the Bepadlic of
Irelamd,

(1 Einder the derms of the ageecments pelating to the povate phicements, Wy Croup Fas apreed T supfort fosses fo g slixfemon of

£1.9% wellions, The proiders of Hnance Daee agreed thar they will seek wa fartber pecenirse to the Company ale teis amonnd.

A summarised profit and loss account for the period 1o 31 March 2000 for RPS3, RPS4, RPSS, the privare
placement of €242 million and CLIPS s sen out below:

1060 16049

£m £m

Trerest vecvivaldle. o o e 85 B
Imeerest pravable oo (503 1l
Fee imoodnie o e e e 4 i
Drepomil INCOMIE o 0 o o e e e e e e k) 4
CHPETALILE BXPEOIRE . & o o o h ottt ot i e e e e e e 41 L
Peote for the fimancial perael oL & b3
— —_—

(e} Concentration of exposure to credit rishk
The Group's exposure 1o credit risk from irs lending activides does not exceed 10% of loans and advanges
costomers after provistons in any individual sector or industry with the exception of residential morgages.

FE



Financlal information releting to the Govamor and Gompany of the Bank of Ireland

The Group's residential mortgage portfolio s widely diversified by individual borrower and amounis ro 54%
of the total loans and advances ta customers, 25% of the loans and advances in Ireland {including Nocthern
Ireland) and 86% i Gregr Bricain.

(d) Leasing and hive purchase

The Group The Bank

2000 195% 00 1959
£m €m €m €m

Amount teceivable by remaining, matueny
=withie Dowear .00 00 A7) 395 58 kL
— & vears of less bot aver Dyear. L. 1,035 193 HH A9
B BT - 1,438 91t 1al 103
3133 2,213 107 201

The cost of assets acquired for Anance leases and hire purchase contraces, net of grants received or recevable,
amounted o £1,545% million [1992: €1,072 million).

Apgregate amounts receivable including capieal repavments docing the year m respect of finance leages and
hire purchase cosrtacts amounted to £1,082 million (1995 €753 million).

13. Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

The Graup The Bank
2000 1999 2004 1994
€rm €m €m Em
AT Apelo. oL e 350 157 240 125
Fachange adjostiments .. oo 22 i 1" 13
Charge against profits ..., . ... .. L. AT 56 BT 43
Ao weitten off . L 570 i62) (25 CR]|
RecoRerio® . . . e e e 15 15 11 13
Ar 31 March 198 159 273 2410
All of whech cetates o loans and advances to Custamers
Provisions at 31 March
—apectic oL L 115 123 71 al
=peneral oo '_'__EE o l3_6| . ZU_I _ J’E
jug 339 273 240

The Group’s general provision, which provides for the larent loan losses in the portfolio of loans and
advances, comprises an clement relating to grade profiles of €141 million (199%: €126 million] and a non
designaced element, for prodential purposes of €142 million §1999: €110 million]. The non desipnared
clement, apainst which a deferred tax asset has been recogrised, wall be offset, (0 certain pre-defined
circumstanges, against specific Joan losses as they erystallise in future years,
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Financial Information relating 1o the Govermnor and Company of the Bank of treland

—r,

14. Debt Securities

The Group
_ At 31 March 2000'_ o _
T GPoss Gross
Unrealized Unrgalized Fair
Borok Valus Gains Losses Value
Em £m Em _ €m
Issucd by Public Bodics
Investomem seenrines
= PIVETMMIETIE SECWPICS © oo oy oo 533 1. ih . 544
her secortics
— EOVCTRITEIL SCCWRITIES « v v v ve v v w v e vr o m o 1,965 1,965
— acher publoc secvor securities .. . — _ —
1,965 1,95
Lssted By Ocher Tssuers
Investimenr seguriges
- bank and building society cortifcates of
depasit L. e e e 44 — — 49
—ather dlebt securines -, .o oo L, 3,656 L ki 1] X
3.705 7 % 3708
Chber secarities
— hattk and bushding society certihoaes of
deposit Lo L e — —
— nther debt secuntios - ..o . .o o 463 465
365 B 465
hAaH 19 ™ .65
_— = — = =
At 31 March 1999
Gross Grass
Unreallsad Urnrealised Fair
Book Yalue Gains Losses Value
. €£m £m €m Em_
lssued by Public Bodies
Iyestinenr e rtics
— PONCTIOMENT SCOUBIRICS . _ . L. e oo s G 8 _ — fils
{ther seryrinies
— EOYEIOMICET SOCUMEICS o oo o s e e 1,244 244
- ather publie sector secarites ... L. L. az B 2
L2664 L2
Lisued by Onher Issers
Inyesiment securities
- bank and building soviets certificares of
deposit ... L 281 — - 281
— other debr secunities - o e 20 AN _ {15) 2,743
2Mh Sl Ph3) 3,024
{lther securites
- hank gnd baibding soviety cerrificaces of
st . e — —
— orther debr secarities ... ... ... 291 249l
e o _ 291
3, 146 TR s 5,205

H



Flnancial information relating to the Govemor and Company of the Bank of ireland

14. Debt securithas (continued)

Tha Bank
At 31 March 2000
Gross Gross
Unreallsed Urrealised Fair
Book Yalue Gains Losses Vaiue
£m €m £m £€m
Issued by Public Bodics
Invesioent Securies
— EONVECHIMIENT GO . L L 415 11 — 476
Oither securitics
= POYEIMUTIENT SECLIILIES o\ o . v v a v n v w v as 1,767 1,787
ssued by Orcher Issuers
Investrment securtihes
— bank and building suciety coreificares of
depenies. ... Lo 42 — — 41
— other debr securitics oL L oo 1,700 7 {7 1,700
1,742 7 [7) 1,742
Cher securities
— bank and buiilding saciery cerdificares of
dOPOsITE. . L ey — —
« other debt seeurities .. oL L oL 671 &71
a7l a7l
4,583 18 7} 44506
At 11 March 1899
Gross Gross
unraallsed uUnreailsed Falr
Boek Value Galns Lorsses Valus
€m €m €m £m
Issued hy Public Bodics
Investment securibes
- EOYCMMERT SECUNNCs . .. ..o 577 i7 — &04

Other securitics

~ EOVEINMENT SECUTIHES o\ oy rave ve v e ra s - 014 1034
Issued by Other Jssiers

Investment Securines

— bank and building society cerctheares of

doposita. ..o e e 11 — — 11
—ather deb securues oL Lo L 1,332 15 i} 1,344
1,343 15 i1 1,357

Crber securines
— banl and building sociery cemificates of

eposity, .. ... L e — —

— other debre segurioes . ... .. . ... 291 291
P 2181

3,245 42 () 3,244

L
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—_— ——

14. Deht securities (continued)

The Group The Bank _
2000 13849 2040 19949
€m €m 0 &m0 &m
(Nvesrment securiics
T 3,189 T A42 703 1,380
—unlisked ... e e 11{]42 . l,fn]"r— _“4 . 34E
4. 234 1,58 LIAT | G2
—_— —_— e -— — =
{ther secunmies
—lseed . e 2160 1,294 1,934 1,082
—wmnhsred . L. e 70 263 484 145
243 Lis 243 1323
ot —— — =
Unamorctsed preminns and diseounts on
IV CATIETE SECUrIieS . . - . v o o e A1 1 ) 1%
E—aa— — T — T — —T——— T — T —
fncome from listed 2nd unlisted investments amounted e €337 million (19949; €298 million,
Discount/ Larrying
Cost (Fremium) Value
Investmant sacurities movements ) €m £m £m
The Growp
ACT APl 1999, e 1638 (3% 3,589
Exchange adjostments _ ..o L o e e 52 i1 35l
AvqQUisiinms . .o e e e e 000 — KR |
Dsposals and redemprions .o o o oo o S o 1 12,79
Amartsaton of premivms and discomnts. . oL oL ; — 17 (!
AT Rlarch 2000, _ - 4 144 [d6h 4235
. —— —_—— =
Discaunts Carmrying
Cast {Premium} Value
L £m Em  Em
The Bank
AT APTI 199, 1047 (37) 1,920
Esxchange adipstmenes .. L oL oo oL 167 oy Ly
ACQUIBIEIME o h o s e e e e e aait — G
Thnposals amd redemprioms . - o0 o i s e e e ah2! -- (G2
Amortisation of premivms and discounts . oL oL oL — 17 (71
A I March 2000h L L e 2,202 (5] L
—_— = —_— _— =. . -
. The Group o ~ TheBank
2040 1909 2000 1994
_ __ o €m Em €m _ E&m
Ardlysed by remiaining maturity
Dhue within ome wear - oL oo 1,943 R71 1.734 diY
Dhee ome wesar amed ovwes o o oo o e e 4,785 4275 2,841 2,736
8 146 4 449 3245
_— o e = = _—
Amounts melude:
Dwe feom {weoup andertabangs o0 L0 L L 214 —

The valvarion of unlisted securities s based on the Dircctors” estimate. The cost of other secuntics is vot
disclosed as its determinacion is not pracricable. Debe securities includes secuntics which are subject to sale
and repurchase agreenents of €1,295 million,

Delr scourinies with a market valee of €1,708 mnillion were pledged as collateral ti cover seulement risk for
SUCUTitIEs’ transactions.




Financlal Information relating to the Governor and Company of the Batk of Ireland

15. Imterests in Associated Undertakings

The Group

— — — — e — e — e e f— e — . . & — — —— = &

AT Aprd 1999 e T
et IMCEE A% ML TOWESEETIETITA & 0 v v v b o v ottt @t r e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e 1

Retamed profiss. L o L e e e e —
AT March 2000 ..o o e T

In presennng deeails of the associated undertakings of the Bank of Ireland Group the cxemption permitted by
Regulation 10 of the Furopean Communities {Credit Institntions: Accounts) Reguladons, 1992 has been
availed of and Bank of Ireland will annex w its annual return to the Companies (ffice a full listing of
associated nndertakimgs.

16. Shares In Group Undertakings

The Bank

L YT I - L [.65%
Exchafge diustmioTis o o v o o v e e i ia o e s et et e e e e e i e ey ¢4
ACQUIRITIUIIS — . L it o e e et e e e e e e 7
NPT dOUICASE I ILVERITIICTIES © . o o o ot et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e LI_EI
L T 4 512
Cirpap wnderakings

— EredEE TOREITRIEIONIG. |« L . L o e e e e e e e e e e e e 139
B T 1,644

t77

Shates in group underuikings arve stated at acquisition cost increased by the nominal value of serip issues,

The principal proep undertakings at 31 March 2000 were:

Prinelpal Countty of Statutory
Mame Activity Incerporation Year End
Bank of lesland Asset Management Limired Asser Management Ireland 3 March
Bank of lreland Finance Linued* [nstalment Finance Ireland 3 March
Bank of reland Internarional Finance Limived®  Tntermarional Asser Financing, Iredand 31 March
Bristal & Wesr pl Morwgapes, Savings and lnvestments  England 31 March
1C5 Building Soctery " Building Soviety Treland 1 Decembwer
18} Cerpurate Finanee Limiced C.orparate Fimance Ireland 31 March
[ & E Davy Holdings lLamied Srowk briking Ireland 31 Devember
Lifetime Assprance Company Limired Lite Assurance and pensions Ireland 11 veember
New Ireland Assuraner Company ple Lile Assurance and peosions Ireland 31 December

* Durect subsidary of The Sovernnr gnd Company of the Band of Irelumd.

All the Group undertakings are included in the consolidated acconnes, The Gronp owns 30.44% of the equiry
uf | & E Mavy Holdings Limited and holds 49% of its voung shares. The Group owns 1007 of the equicy
share capital of the other principal group undertakings and 100% of the voring shares of alf rhese
wrdertakimgs and it the case of 1C5 Building Society, 100% of the investment shares.

The registered offices of the above undertakings are given on pages 117 o 116,

In presenting derails of the prnincipal subsidiary undertakings, the exemprion permined by Regulation 10 of
the Furopean Uommaniies [Credit Tnstitutions: Accounts) Repulations, 1992 has been availed of and Bank
of Ireland will annex to s annual return to the Companies Office a full listing of groop undertakings.

Advantage is being aken of Regulation 8(1) of che Evropean Commuaities {(Credit Institutions: Accoants)
Regulations, 1992 in respect of Bank of leeland Finance Limited and The Investment Bank of Ireland
Limired which will not file gromp accounrs for the vear eaded 31 March 20080
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Financial Information relating to the Govemor and Company of the Bank of Lreland

17. Tangible fixed assets

The Group
Leases of  Leares af less Cornputar

Freehold land 50 years or  than 5) years and athar Findnoe

and buildings more uneapired unexpived equipment lgase assels Tetal
Cost or valuatlon £m £m £m £m £m £m
At T April 1999, ... ... 427 73 46 ] F 1,262
Lschange adjostments . . - . . 23 1 1 22 — 49
Mddiesems L L 72 —_ E 127 — a7
Drnispessals .., ..o o oL 1121 {1 (a1 127} [ (152}
Revaluaon .. .. ... ... .. B0 41 i — — L1
Ar 3 March 2000 . ... ... 451 114 43 B3 ki L4768
Accumulated depreciation

and amartization
Ar ] Apnl 1999 L, 1% 3 9 182 5 437
Frchange adjusiments, . L, — — 1 16 — 17
Whsposads .. _. 0. — (Y] 11 {18} — (207
Charge for vear ..., ..., & — 5 1058 1 11%
Rovaluation ... .00 vy, (28] {2 [14] — — (42}
Ar J1 March 30003 . L. — — — 453 ] St
iwet book value
Ac 31 March 2000 . . . 481 L4 43 3 1 975
Ar 31 March 1995 ., .., 404 7 17 ile 3 H35
Tha Bank
Lwases of  Leases of less Computer

Freateld land Sdyearsor  than 50 years and othar Finance

and buildings more unexpired uhexpired equipment lease asiels Tatal
Cost ar valuation €m £m €m £m €m £m
Ar ) April 1989 o 214 14 28 516 ] o2
Fxrchange adjusrments . .. L. 5 — 1 7 1 14
Addivions. .. ... .. 17 — 4 ¥ — 104
Dinposals .. 0oL oL i3 i} — (s . (153
Hevaluation . ... ... .. ... _ ﬂ 10 [.":'J — — a7
Ar 31 March 2000 in 27 511 07 e Qg2
Accumulated depreciation )

and amorfisation

Ac b Apedl deww oL 13 | 4 300 5 323
Lxchange adjustments, . . ., 1 — 1 3 — 7
Divposals . ... .., ... .. - — — 1 - H:y
Charge for year .., .., & — 1 71 1 74
Revaluation ... ... . ... (xm il [&) — — 27
A 30 Saech 2000 .., L. — - —_ 370 ] 376
Ber book value
Ar 31 March 2000 ., 311 27 iy 237 1 alla
A I March 1999 L 201 L7 24 16 [ 469

Property and Equipmene

A revaluation of all Group properey, was carricd out as at 31 March 1926, All frechold and long leaschold
{30 yrars or more unexpired| commerdal properties were valued by Jones Lang Woottan as external valuers,
with the Bank's professionally qualihed staff valuing all other property. The valuation was undertaken in
accardance with the Appraisal and Yalvation Manual of the Royal Institotion of Chartered Surveyors, on
the basis of existng use value or open marker value together wirh the depreciared replacement cost of

adapration works where these are not adequarely reflected in the existing use value,

An ineerim revaloation was undertaken at 31 March 2000 by che Bank’s professionally qualified staff valuing
all property using the same hasis of valvation as used in the 1996 valuation as cutlined above, The sucplus
arising on this revaluation amounted o €132 million.
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Finantial Infarmaton relaing to the iovemor and Cowipany of the Bank of ireland

17. Tangible fixed assats {continued)

The Group's freehold land and buildings includes €50 million for the new head office of Pristol & West
Cirgup at Temple Quay in Bristol which is in the conrse of constrycrion.

As at 31 March 2000 on a historical cost basis the cast of group property would have been included ar
€415 milliem (199%: €433 million less accurnulated depreciadion €42 million [1999: €32 millon). The
Ciroup occupivs properties with a net book value of €484 million {1999: €332 million) in the conrse of
CATFYIOE Out its own activities,

In the year to 31 March 2000 salary and other costs of €15 million (19%9: €19 million) incorred on comnpurer
software development and other projects have been capialised and included in computer and orher
cquipment. This expenditure is depreciated in equal annual instalments over its cstimated useful life subject
generally to a maxunum period of Ave years.

The Group The Bank
2000 1999 2000 1993
. £m €m £m €m
Tangible fixed assers leased ... . L Ll w9 157 10 &
Puture capital exprenditure
- cuntracted bot pot provided (o the accounes . ... L 22 43 1 L
- autherised by the THreceoes but not contracted - ... L 1 9 — g

Rentals payable in 2000 onder non-cancellable operating leases amounted to €37 mitlian (1999: €32 million).
O chis amount €3 million (1999: €4 million} relates o leases cxpiring within one year, €6 million {1994:
€5 million} relates to leases expiting i two to five years and €28 million (1939 €23 million) relates 1o
leases expiring abrer Ave years, split between property €35 million and equipment €2 millien.

Minimem Future rentals under non-cancellable operating leases are as Follows:

Payable Receivable

€m £m

Year eriled 31 March fm £m
7. 11 35 B
1 7 iz &
T n 5
B 11T 2 in 4
11 29 2
B T 1 = 444 14

The ohligations under finance leases amount w F1.1 million [199%: €13 million} of which €0.6 million
119949 €0.7 million) is doe within one year, €0.5 millian (1999 €08 million) is due after more than one
year bur within five vears and € nil (1999 € nil) is due after Ave vears.

18. Intangible fixed assets 1000 1999
€m €m

Goodwill on acquisitien of punoriry interestin subsidiary. oo Lo Lo ] —
g —

In December 1999, the remaining 23% minority inerest in Active Business Services was purchased by a
subsidiary of the Group for a cost €% million.

19. Other assets The Greup The Bank
2000 199% 000 198
€m £m €m £m
Sunderdeboors .00 L 1,040} 914 131 137
Foreign exchange and interest rate contoacts - ., ..., . - 566 Fa9 573 1.008
Value of life aseurance business in force ... oL 2R2 22 — —
DMREr. o e e e e e 136 BY 15 1
2044 3,223 739 1,144
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Financial Information relating o the Govemor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

20, Life assurance business

The net assets arcributable o stockholders from the life assurance business are analysed as follows:

2THH) 1995
£m £m
Long rerm assurance business
Net angible assers of lile companics jocludmg surplos 0. oo 17 235
Salue of (e assnrance Blsimess 10 FIrge - . L e e e e e e e 152. _ lﬂ
52 495
ncrease in net tangible assews of life companies inclnding sueplos o o0 0o oL L 34 6
Increase v valoe of lifc assurance busimess in FOroe 00 o o i r e e i o . Al 49
FrafT afEr 5 o o et e e e e e et e 95 E]
.y
yiciudes a mweverene inorevaloation oeserve af €3 mudlos i 20000
The life assurance assets attriburable to policyholders consist of ;
2000 1995
£m Em
T o 274 216
Frnedd bPe sl sOnImiELen o o L e e e e e e e e e e 1,245 1,309
M LTI . . . o . L e e e e e e e e e 2,419 1,760
Bank balances and casho, o o o e e e e hLik 194
Tcame reciva b o L e e e e e e e 31 3
A T T e 17 32
Ocher Rabilinies . o e e e e e e e e . il | 180
4. 338 3535

Valuc of in-force busingsy
The princtpal assumptions used in the caloulation of shareholders’ value of in-force business are:

_ 200 1993
Bisk adlpusred discowne rate inet of v, ..o e 1% 12%
Carmns INMVRSTITICRL BETMFTL, |0 vy oL e ot et et e e e e e e e A.5%% B.5%
Mlortaline Rates Basced on actual experience.

[apse Rates Based on actual experience on cach block of business,

Asset Walues The value of unit-linked assets used as a staming paint to project foture

charges on tunds & caloulated on a smoathed basis. Assets supporting che
solveney margin are not discounced,

Ackieved Profits:
The profit, derived using the Aclieved Profits method, is analy<ed into four caregorios.

A contribmian from new business, comprising the excess amount of the value added after providing for
the return equal to the risk adjusted discaunt rate on capital emplayed in writing the new business.

A vontriburion from m-force business ac the beginning of the year, comprising interest at che risk
acdjusred discount rate on the value of in-dorce business together with the effen of any deviations in
experierve compared with the assumptions.

Investment earnings on the net assets attnibutable o sharcholders.

Chamges jn assumprions and exceprional irems cxpected 1o be non-recurting.
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Financial Information relating to the Governor and Campany of the Bank of Ireland

Premium [ncome Analysis
The tahle below scts out the levels of gross premiums and new business written for 2000 and 1999,

Individual Group
Life Persions Contracts Total
— &tm  E&m &m  &m
Gross Premiems Wriner — 2000
Recurning premiums . ... . L oL oL 220 12} A 349
Simgle promiums . L . L e e 422 i % o
Total gross premioms WO, .o v v e cua s e 642 &1 iz 860
Gross Premiums Wrimen — 1999
Recurring promiums - . . v o n o o e e e e 178 100 6 2R4
Gingle PEOMIMITES L L i e e 1nd 40 24 328
Total gross promimms Wremen. ... oL Lo L 442 140 an s12
Gross MNew Bosiness Fremiums Written — 2080
FoeCuf i Premsiums o v o n e e e c e e e 7B 41 k) 110
Simple premmaums . Lo o e e e e 43} Gk _ 2,? s
Total gross new Dosmess wTiten - o - e e e e 43% L0 31 LAY
Gross Mew Busingss Premioms Written ~ 1999
Recurring premioms . .. ... oL oL L el A% 2 — 23
Single premiums . ... ... oL oL oL a4 1] Mo iR
Tofal gross new Business woitten 000 0o e vn e e . 317 72 24 413
21. Deposits by banks
Tha Group The Bank
2000 1999 2000 1999
€m €m &m £m
Deposirs by Banks. .- ... ... .. ... .. .. 10,36 7.039 13,074 9,192
Repayable on demand .. oo o ooy 3,799 2146 3,957 1495
Jther deposits by rematiting mararicy
— i months OT IS, oo e o e 4,982 3,621 779 54499
- 1 year ar less but over 3 months ... L. 1,094 E11 1,376 Lz
- 5 years or less bor aver T year. ... C L 139 B43 bt 140
~OWET B YEATS Lo 2497 41 a6 4]
10,30 ERIRY 13,074 9,192
Amounts inclede:
Due to group underrakings, ... ... ... ... 3,733 3713
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Einancial Information relating to the Governor and Company of the Eank of Iraland

22. Customer accounts

The Group _ The fank _
2000 1999 2000 19945
£m £m £€m €m
COMPIENT ACO0UIEE . o - o ey v o v a e e 6,114 4 034 7825 3,793
Pomand deposits. oo oL oo oo 16,763 13,575 8,504 7,603
Term deposits aod athee produovts, ..o 17,979 15,715 W, 3HE 6,246
{ither shert-term bewrowings .o, 0 Lo 134 i‘? 212 1_3_.-'
401,991 34,297 25745 19469
Repavable oo demand . .. ... L 231,561 19,149 15,717 F2.604
Cnher oleposits with apreed maraeiry dates ot
pericls of notice, by remaining matueity
—dwanths e less, oL oL 10,347 95749 EA R 49148
— | year o luss bat over 3 wonths ..o 3,383 2958 .71 1319
- S years or less boover Typear. oL 2047 riag Q4 HEE
—eIWET T NEITEL e e e Ji2 452 272 150
40,990 34,297 leMé 19,865
Amounts inchde:
Dvue tox proup widertakings, . ..o . .- 758 a7y
23. Deht securities in issue
The Group The Bank
200 19499 20040 1959
€m €m €m €m
Bomads anel medivin-torm notes by remainngg
MatuTiTy:
—Amanths o less. oL oo ] 26 — 15
— L vear ar less bue over 3 manths . ..., ..., 14 15 14 15
— 5 years ur less but over §ovear, ... ... 1,037 236 7he 13
Orher debr secuntics in igsue by cemaining
maturicy:
= A months orbess, oL oL e e 642 161 593 127
= L vear or less but over 3 months . L. 924 L Rig 103
— 5 years of less bat over ¥ oyear, .. L. ] 204 — L 200 =
1815 _ 541 2,451 273
24. Other liabiltties
The Group The Bank
ploli) 1995 20041 19449
€m €m £m €m
CHPTED LBSILON o v e v a i o avn s in e 136 1534 w9 &0
Naes ncireulation, oo 0oL oo oL, 521 401 522 4]
Voreirn exchange and interest cate contraces | | 314 IRy 543 L2y
Spodrey creditors Lo 1,445 1,137 41170 ¥R
Orther. o oo - i7e LX) 11 125
Dhwiclends . Lo o oL ) EL] ) 1&0 (K31
33y 3477 1315 2,153

The Bank s authorised v issue bank notes in Sorhern freland under the Bankers (Irelandy Ace 1843 and the
Bankers (Morthern lreland) Act 1924 as amended by Section 11 of Bankers (NI Acr 19235,




Financial Information relating to the Governor and Company of the Bank of Irgland

25, Deferred taxation

The Group Tha Bank

2000 1999 2000 1999
€m €m €m £€m

Taxanon treacment of capital allowances:
—Bnancededses . ..o Lol e 0 57 1 14
—equipment wied by Growp . ... L 10 10 . b
(Mher short-term timing Jifferences, ... ... {14 {2 1274 (3
e E {3 (113
Arlaprb. .o 65 93 (11} (3%
Proviston madef{utilised] - ... .. .. .. ... .. 4} 53 8 27
Other movements © ..o v o e e e res (19 e - —
ArdY Macch. . ..o 1 a5 3l il

Mo account 15 taken of the lability to taxaton which could arise if properry was disposed of ar its book
value, as it s expecred thar substantially all the property will be retained by the Grouwp.

26. Other provisions for liabilitles and tharges

The Group
At LAprl TH09 . e
Exchange adjustmenrs - .. oo oo n o e e
Frovsions made, .. .. - oo o o e i o
Prowisions wtilised . . o . .. e e e
Proviswons released . . 0 Lo e

AT 3T March 2000 L e e
The Bank

AT L Apnl 1999, e i e e e
Exchange adjustments ... 0o e e
Provisions made. . _ . ot o e e e e e e
Provigioms anlesed © oL o e e e e e e
Provisions released . L L. o L s e it s

Ar 3! March 2000 .00 ool

Pansion

abligations Qther Tortal
€m £m €m

Eit 44 114

b 4 ]

Tih 2 12

(1n 1 10H {211
— 4 {4}

M 1 107

i) ] L)

1 — |

R ] 30

all 3 63




Financial information relatmyg to the Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

27. Subordinated fabilities

The Groap The Bank _
T T wop 0 1sEs T T om0 1889
€m €m €rm _ &m
Lindared [oan Capital
Bank of Treland
US540 inifion Undated Yloanng Rate
Croctiery Clapital WNodes. . o000 0w o 135 138 15% 138
EINE2T00E mnllon Undieed Wariable Bt
T — 252 — 257
Brisool 3 Wes
Sepd 75 million 134 % Pecpetual
Gubordinaed Boods . oL l_{)_? . __lt{_\: — =
62 375 135 30
Dated Loan Capital
Rank of Ireland
Seed 100 millien 2.7 5% Subordingred Bonds
MUIE L . e 16k 149 15FR 149
L35 175F millien Subordimated Floatng Bane
Moores MW L ) 153 162 193 lal
S 200 millien Subucdimated Floanng Rare
Paeares 2OUWE L 334 300 RET A
Fallil mmllien & 35%, dohordinaned Roods
MW b — 47 —
Brmstol 3 Wiesr
Sed a0 million 1005% Subordinated Bonds
2000 e e . e o — —
St T3l 100" Subordioated Brmds
e - 124 113 — —_
1.504 w14 1,240 11
1. 866 1,349 1,433 Lot
= _— _ —_
Bepayable
i Lvearer less, o0 oL 110 — — —
ketwesn 1 and poar alore than 2 pears _ L — en — -—
between 2 and oot more than § years -, l&ab — L —
T T 1,23% 24 1,b14 Al
1,504 g13 1,280 611
— = —_— =— = _—— —_—— ——

The US5150 millinn Undated Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes which were issued at par on 3§ December
1985 are suburdinated moaght of payment ta the claims of depesitors and other creditors of the Bapk.

On 5 Seprember 1989 the Bank issucd 155300 million Undaed Variable Rate Notes. These Notes consticure
tmsecured subocdinared and condinonal obligations of the Bank ranking par? passy with the 1155150 mithon
Undated Floating Rare Primary Capital Notes. On 22 September 1998, 29 Seprember 1998 and 2 Qurober
1998 noees to the value af USEE.T million, USES.G million amd USS16.0 million eespectively were redeemed.
O W June 1999 the remainng USS270.3 million of rhe VSS300 mullion Undared Variable Rate MNutes was
redeemed,

The Bank 1ssued Sigl1Q0 million 9.75% Subordinated Bonds due 2005 on 21 March 1995, The Bank set up
a 5tgf£300 mullion Eere Note Programme (the “Propramme™) im0 fuly 1995 and issued StgL200 million
Subordinated Floating Rate Motes due 2009 on 11 February 1997, The Programme was mcreased w Sl
hillion in July 1997 and the Bank dssucd (55175 million Subordinared Floanng Rate Nows due 2007 on
4 Seprember 1997, Om % November 1999 the Programme was redenominated from steeling 1o eares and
ncreased o €4 billign. Qe M} Febppare 2000 the Bank issoed €600 million 6.45% Subordinated Notes due
2M 4. The Bonds and Notes constitute unsecured obligations of the Bank suburdinated in nght of payments
to the claims of depositars and other unsubordinated creditors of 1he Bank and rank pars frassu without any
pri:fervice anvong themselves.

Interest rates on the Roating rate and fxed rate (accommedared theoogh swapsh subordinared Nababities are
determined by reference to the Tondaon Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR).

BE



Financial Information relating to the Gowernor and Company of tha Bank of iretand

The subordinated liabilities in Bristol & West are redeemable in whole, ar the option of Bristol & West plc, in
the evenr of certain tax changes affecring the treatment of payments of interest on capital securities in the
Linited Kingdom, and provided prior relevant supervisory vonsent has been obrained and adequare nonce
has heen given, at their principal amount plos accrued interest 1 the dare of redempuion.

The Bristol & West 135% Poerpetual Subordinared Bonds have a pominal value of 51g£73 million and were
revalued a5 part of the Fair value adjustments on acquisitions,

28. Minority interest - non-egquity

20060 1850
€m €m

Brizcol & Wesr
Septi2.2 million 4% Noo-Cunnlative Preferonce Shares of Stgllh vach .. . .. 7 79
B Facd

These Preference Shares which are nen-redeemable, non-cquity shares rank equally amongst chemselves as
regards participation in profits and in prionity to the ordinary shares of Bristol & West ple.

Holders af the Prefercnce Shares are entitled to receive, in priovioy 10 the holders of any other Jass of shares
in Bristol & Wesr ple, a non-cunolative preference dividend at a fixed rawe pee annum pavable in equal half
vearly instaiments in arreacs on L% May and 15 November cach vear. Bank of freland holds 33.6% of these
shares,

The preference dividend on the Preference Shares will only be payable to the extent that payment can be made
our of profits available for distribution as ar each dividend payment date in accordance with the provisions of
the UK Compames Acts,

24, Called up capltal stack

2500 19
The Group o L _ _ _ ) €m0 £m
Authorised
L5000 million anits of @084 of Oedinary Sosck® . o0 o o oo oo Gl $52
R mullion unws of Non-Camalatve Preference Scovk of 115825 each .o 0.0 L. 209 iRy
L0 enillinn units of Non-Curmufative Preference Steck of Skl each oo 00000 L 147 150
100 mullion vnits of dNoa-Cumulacve Preforence Stock of IRL1 #ach, . oo 0 L L. ix7 127
1463 116

*Thie feved of Anrchorrsed Crdimary Stock wus eacreased during the year s a rosedt of the redvrarunation drd recalealion of stk iafo
seesits of romiaal aive of BG4 pach.

2000 19545
£m €in

Alletted and fully paid
Equity
942 3 oullion unies of €084 of Ordmary ek L0 0 0 o o oo L 63 &6fl
51.7 ondlwon unies of €064 of Treasury Stock .o L o o e I —
Nop oquicy
5 milleen units of Non-Cumulanve Preference Stagk of Sl each oo 0000000, El 8
1005 millinn vnits of Non-Cumulative Preference Srock of IRELeach ..o . 0. 0. 13 13

650 JET

In Scprember 1999, 52 million umits of Ordinary Stock of nominal valee of £0.64 each, were hought back by
the Rank at the open market price vn 18 Seprernber (€8.45) and 16 Sepeember (€815 This buyback was in
accardance with authoriry granted by the Stockholders at the Juiy 1992 Annual General Court. Foilowing rhe
recissue of (3 million of these units in connecrion with the Stock Optton Scheme, the remainiog 51.7 million
unics aof Ordinary Stock are held by the Bank as Treasury Srock and continue o be included in the alloted
and fully paid capiral stock. In accordance with the Buropean Communities [Credie Inshiutions: Accounts)
Regubations, 1992 the nominal value of the Treasury Stock is included in Own Shares, The premigm and
redated costs (€309 mdliont have been dedueted from Hevenue Reserves,
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Financial information retating to the Govemor and Company of the Bank of Irelard

The weighted average Ordinary Stock in issue at 31 March 2000, used in the carnings per unit of Ordinary
Stock valewlation, exclodes the Treasury Srock from the dawe of buyback, (See ™Noee ). This Treasury Stock
does nnt rank for dividend.

Movements in 1saued Ordimary Stock
In July 1999 the Qrdinary Stock was split and redenomimaccd 1ato euro, cach one [RE1 Umrt being splic into
twer eure units of nominal valoe of €0.64 sach,

For case of comparison all units and prices of Oedinary Soock have been restared in chis seceian o reflect the
stock split and its subsequent redenominarion.

During the year the total Ordinacy Stock in ssue decreased from 1,037,750,066 units of nominal value of
£L64 cach o 992,330,535 units of nominal valoe of €364 each as follows:

In July 1942, 2,043,456 units of Ordinary Stock were issued to those halders of Ordinary Stock who eleced,
under the Stock Alterpative Scheme, to receive additional units of Ordinary Stack at a price of £9.18 per unir,
instead of all or part of the cash element of their 19981999 Final Dividend. Additwmally in that monch,
1A I71 units of Ordinary Stock were allocated o the Trusrees of che Employes Ordinary Stock Tusue
Scheme [lrish) and the Trusrees of the Emplovee Ocdinary Stock Issue Scheme (UKD ar the price of €827
pT unit,

In September 1999, S2.000,000 wnits of Ordinary Stock were bought back ar a weighted average price of
C8.42

In January 2000,1,046 802 units of Ordinary Stock were issued to those holders of Qedinary Stock who
cleeted, under the Stock Altermacive Scheme, o receive additional units of Oredinary Svock ar a price of
€8.44 per unit instead of all or part of the cash clement of their 199972008 Interim Pividend,

During the year 2,150,340 units of Qrdinary Seock were ssued o aprion holders on the exercise of ther
options under the terms of the Senior Execurtive Stock Oprien Scheme at prices ranging hetween $0.97 and
£5. 7335,

Al vnits of Ordinary Stock i issue carry the same voting rights,

Stock AMemative Scheme

At the 1997 Ananual General Court the Stockhalders renewed the Dicecrors’ authority to offer Stackholders
the right 1o clect w receive new units of Ordinary Stock in liew of part o all of the cash clement of ther
dividends. Following the intraducuon of Dividend Withhoiding Tax (DT o April 1999, it s the
residual amount of the cash dividend {ie after DW), where applicable) which may be raken in the form of
new units of stock. The price at which such new units are offered 15 the average of the closing quoration of
Bank of Ireland Ordinary Stock derived from the Datly Official List of the Irish Stock Exchange for the five
dealing davs stareing on the date on which the stock is firso quoned ‘ex-dividend”.

Empdoyes Stock Issue Scheme

At the 1997 Annual General Court the Stockholders approved the establishment of a new Empluyee Stock
Issue Scheme to replace the Scheme originally approved by the Seckhalders in 1984, Under the pew
Scheme, which has an Insh and a UK version in order wo conform with the relevant revenue legislation in
Loth jurisdictions, all employees af the Bank and certain subsidiaries, are eligible to participate, provided
they had an existing contract of employment with a parociparing company on the last day of the Group's
financial vear, and their employment comtract existed for a period of at lease 12 mooths as at that date and
1 sull in existence on the dare on which a Srock Issue announcerment is made. Cach year the Courr of
PHreceors may set aside an clement of Group profit before taxation for allosaion to the Trustees of the
Schemes, The amount set aside s relared to overall Group performance assessed both in teems of rcal
growth in earnings per share (“EP3”) and how thar real growth in EPS compares with that experienced by a
peer proup of Irish and UK financial institutions. In additon, as s permirted by Inish raxation rules, frish
participants may, subject o cerrain constraings, furepo up o an equivalent amount of their salary owards
the acquisition by the Trustees on their behalf of up to an amount equal te their froe Scheme Stock, The
inaximunt distriburien under the Schemes is 4% of a participant’s salary. To-date, annwal distribueions
urder the Schemes have ranged between il apd 3.3% of cach participani™s salary.
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Group Savings — Related Stock Scheme

Ar the 1999 Annual General Court the Stockholders approved the establishment of a Group Savings —
Belated Stock Scheme. Under this Scheme, which has an Irish and UK version in order to conform with the
relevant revenue legislation in both jurisdictions, all employees of the Bank and of centain subsidiaries are
cligitle o participate provided they are employed by the Bank on the dav that the invitarion o participac
tssucs and o che day that the geane of options & made, Thes Scheme was launched in Fehouary 2000 and
ps 2 resule options over 15,327,008 units of Ordinary Stock {1.6% of the lssued Ordinary Srack) were
granted w panivipating cmplovees at an option price of €340, which reprosenred a 2% discount to the
then market price. These options which are cutstanding as at 31 March 2000 are exercisable, provided the
participant’s savings contracts are complere, berween May 2003 and May 2007,

Stock Option Scherne

(piions o suhscribe for umits of Ordinary Stock are granted under che termis of the Stock Opnien Scheme.
The original scheme was approved by the Stockholders at the Annoal General Coort in July 1986 and 2
replacement scheme, “Bank of Ireland Growp Stock Option Scheme -~ 1997, was approved by the
Stockholders ar the Annval General Court held in July 1996, Key executives may participate in the corrent
Scheme at the discreoion of the Remuneration Comimirtee. The wotal valoe of options granted may not exceed
four times an executive's remuneratinn, The subscription price per unit of seock shall nor be less than the
market value of the stock ar the date of grane, The exercise of options granted simcee 1996 are condibonal
wpon EPS achicvimg a cumulative growth of ac keast 2% per annum compound above the increase in the
Consomer Price Index aver cither the three year pernod, or if not achieved, the six vear pernod, commencing
with the period in which the options are praned. The performance condition for opuons granted in 1996 and
1997 has been satisfied. Cptions may not be transferred or assigned and may be cxercised only betwern the
third apd rwnrh anniversaries of their grane. At 31 March 2000, opttons were ourscanding over 10,681,326
uiits of stock (1.08% of the Issued Qrdimary Sock) ac pesees ranging frosm €097 1o €3.93 per unie of stock,
These gptions moy be exercised at varions dares op to 25 November 2010

Lorg Term Performance Siock Plan
This Plan, approved by the Stockholders in 1992 links the number of units of stock receivable by pardcipants,
ti the Bank's Toal Sharchobder Retere (T5R™). TSR represents srock price growth pivs dividends.

Each vear sclecied key semior executives participating i the Plan receive a conditional award of a number of
units of Ordirary Stock. (The maximuom value of these unies may not exceed d0% of the executive’s salary at
the time of the award)., The proportion of these units which acreally vest in the execurive on the 3rd
anniversary of the date of the original award 15 based on the Bank's TSR relative to other compantes as
Fodiows:

s Before any proportion of a condivonal award may vest, the cumulative growth in the Bank™ EPS muost
exceed the annoal CP plus 5%, compounded over the three years from the daee of the award,

»  Provided this conditton has been satished, the proportion of the award which vests afer 3 vears is hased
on the Bank’s TSR relative to other companies both in a pecr group of gight nish and UK fipangial
instatutions and v relation to the FTSE-100 companies as foliows:

- LM% vests if Bank of Ireland s ranked 1 or 2 in the peer group and in the top decile of the FTSE-
100;

- from 100% w 50% vesis if ranked between 3rd and Sth in the peer groap and above the median in
the FTSE-10:0;

— oo stock vests i ranked below both the median of the peer group and the median of the FTSE-100,

#  Additionally 30% of stock which veses in an cxecutive must be held for a forther two yearns lnblowing
which, provided the execunve is stll employed by the Group, he will be awarded additional units of
stock not exceeding 20% of the units which had vested and were held, (F the original unims which
vested conuinue o be held for a further 5 years (ie 10 years from the date of the originat condinional
award} and the exccutive remains i the employment of the Group, he will be awarded a furcher 30%
of the units which originally vestwed and were held,

a9
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As at 31 March 2000 conditional awards totalling 195,752 units of stack had been made to the participants
of rhis plan,

Limitations on Employee Stock [ssue and Stock Option Schames
Al of the above stock issue and stock option schemes are subject o a ranpe of flow rate controls approved by
the Stockholders and which conform wy cuerent instirutional investor guidelines.

Preferemce Stock

The Prefercnce Stock @8 non-redeemable. The holders of Prefereace Srock are enritled to receive & non-
cumulative preferencial dividend which in the case of the Sterling Preference Stock will be payvable in
Sterling in a gross amount of Stel1.2625 per unit and in the case of Irish Pound Preference Stock will be
pavable in Irish Pounds in a gross amoonr of TRE1.20 per unit per anoom, 0 equal semi-annual instalments
in arteats on 20 February and 20 August in each vear.

On a winding-up of, or other retuen of capital by che Bank (other than on g redemprion], the Preference
Stockholders will be entitled to teceive an amounr equal ro the amount paid up on cach unie of the
Preference Swock held (mcluding rhe premiumt outr of the surplus assets available for distriburion 1o the
Ordinary Stockholders.

The DPreference Stockholders are not entitled 1o vote at any General Cowrt exeept 0 certain exceprional
circumstances when a cescriceed vore may apply.

The Bank has an oblipation to increase the cash dividend payahle on each unir of Preference Stock o vhar the
som of the cash dividend paid or payable together with the assoviared dividend tax ¢redic shall equal the
APPTOPHIATE Qross amuunks,

30. Reserves

The Group The Bank
€m &m

Stock premium account
Crpominge Balaice L e e e e e e a3l a33
Premium on dssue of capital stock « . oL e 13 13
Promium ool soock abtermamve scheme ssoe . o, . L e e 26 26
Favhamge wdiustmonos. . o o i e e e e e v B
Clasiog Balanch o o0 e e e e e 675 £74
Caprial reserve
Crponing balanee .o e e e 156 L]
Tramafor offrOm) CEVEMUE FEREIYES © . 1 v vt o s ot i et e e m e rm s mr it et 70 —
Fachunge adiustiienms. .o o 0 o e e e e e 3 !
Ty L 232 . 19
Frofit and loss account
Opening halamve .o e e e 1,368 321
Profit remained L e e e e e e e e a7 #o
Fachange adjusumieiirs, oo L o n oo e e s e e e e e 173 e
Grock buvback (Mote 20 e e e e e (A EE0E
Capiralisaben of reserves’ L e e [5) )
Closing Balance . oo n s e e e e e 1,510 304
Revaluation reserve
Cipeming balamee . L e e 16 9
Revaluation of PropeeTy - o .o o o e e et e e e e e e e ) 152 b4
Closing Balance . . L L L e e e e e e e e e 68 123

il Fallowttg the fuly 1999 Asmaral Clemeral Court, the capital stack of the Samk Davimg & momingl salee of [RED per el was
shfndunded wate e wmars of Crdinary Steock baving 0 wominal wilve of (RERSD gper sz, Fach wont of Ordunone Stock 1eas then
redenommated vt gurg wed penetiralized W g mowtral valee of €064, requirieg a capitafisafine of Beveree Reserees,

S0
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1. Pension costs

The Group operates a nember of defined benetit pension schemes an Ieeland and overseas. The schemes are
funded and the assets of the schemes are held in separate Trustee administered funds.

An independent actuarial valuation of the Bank of Treland 5raff Pensions Fund (the mam schemet was carried
out by R Watson & Sons, consutting actoaries as at 31 March 1998 using the projected unit credir method of
funding. The principal assumption in the review was thar the ansuval rate of return vi new investments would
b 4.0% higher than the aanual rawe of increase in pensicnable remuneration and pensions in course of
payrmment.

The market value of the assets of the main scheme at 31 March 1998 was £2.315.7 million and the actarial
valug of the ner assets, afrer allowing for expected futore increases in earnimes and pensions, represcated
138%: of the benehts thar had accrued to members. The surplus is being corrected by the Bank ceasing its
contributinns eo the scheme until ar least the next actuatial valuation, which s anticipated w be at
31 Mareh 2001, The accounting treatment that has been adopred in accordance with S5AP 24 is as follows:

—  the actuarial surplus is being spread over the average remaining seevice lives of curreny employees,

- a provision of €540 million (199%: €551 million) in regard to the main scheme is included in the
accounts being the excess of the accumulated pension charge over the ameount funded,

- the amortisation of the surplus gives rise o a net credit of £2.0 milleon m relatian to the main scheme,
11999 €2.5 millionh

The toral pension charge for the Group in respecr of the year ended 31 March 2000 was €11 miilion {1599:
£11 miiion).

32. Perivatives and ather finandal instruments

The Group is parcy to various tvpes of Anancial nstruments in the normal course of business to generate
incremental income, w meet the financiog peed of its customers and o reduce its own exposure to
fluciuations in imtetest and exchange rates. These financial instruments involve 10 varying degrees, expospre
tor [oss in the event of a defaulr by a counterparry i*'credic risk™r and exposure o ferure changes in inrerest
and exchange rates {“marker risk™).

Details of the obiectives, policies and strategies arising from rthe Group’s use of financkal instrumencs,
including derivative Anancaal instruments are presented on pages 19 and 20 of the Operating and Financial
Review. Detatls of the marker risk exposores are presented on pages 21 and 22 of the Uperating and
Financial Review,

In respecr af interest rate and exchange rate conrracts, underlying principal amounts are used to express the
volurne of these rransactions, but the amounts porentially sobjeer to credit risk are moch  smalier.
Replacement cost provides a berter indication af the credit risk exposures facing & bank. Replacement cost
is the gross cost of replacing all contraces thar have a positive fair value, withour giving eFfect to ofserting
positicis with the same counterparty.

m
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32, Derlvatives and other firancial instrumems {rortinued)

The underbring principal amounts atd replacement cost, by residual maoureiy of the Groep's over-the-counter
and other noa-exchange raded derivatves are presented inehe table below. This table does not imdode
exchange raded comtraces which are meluded i the follewing Trading Inssruments eable apd Non Trading

ervarives rable.

31 March 2000 31 March 1954
Wyithin one Gne to five ner flys

year yEans Years Total Tatal
€m £m £m €in £m

Undetlying Principal Armount:
Exchange Bale Contracts, | . 2535 1.7 30 48y 11,733 12,415
incerese Rare Comtraces L L. 16,50h 21,6387 043 43,238 32
Equiny Coneraers, o ... . 433 1,541 AT 2290 1,939

Replacemens Cost:

Exchitnpe Rare Comtraces, . . 164 47 17 292 281
Interese Rare Contraces . Eb 43 azx 435 70
Fyuier Coneracis. oo m 502 — 03 Tug

The replacement cost of the Group's over-the-counter and other non-exchange traded derivatives analysed
it Amancial and non-financial counterparties for exchange rate contraces, interest rae contracts and couity

contraces were as follows:

LFguity Conrracts . o ..o u o i

3% harch 20040
" Fimanciad | Mondinancal  Total
_ &= €m __&m
gl 151 297
4i)d 31 £14
03 — A0
1308 X 1.231

31 Mfarch 1959
Tatal
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32. Derivatives and other fmandal instuments (continuaed)
Trading Instruments

Bank of Ircland Group maintains trading positions in 3 vaniety of financial instouments including derivacives.
Most of these positions are a result of activity generated by corporate custemers while others represent
teading decisions of the Group's derivative and forcign exchange traders with a2 view to generating
incremental income, The following table cepresents the uadetlyving priocipal amounts, faic values and
average fair values by class of derivative trading imstrumene for the Group at 31 March 2000 and 19%9:

31 March 2000
Underiying
Principal Average Fair
Amount! Fair Value Valua
£m £m #m

Interesr rate conmacts:

A T T 19596 — —
ina favourable posiiom _ L L L Lo - 26l 334
moan unfavourable posiHOn- .. oL L. e e - (193] (300

Interest rate caps, fleors and options held .. ... L Lo 0L 4442 —_— —~—
ina Evourable position ... L e e e — 75 a1
in an unfavourable posicon. ... ... . L oo e — — -

Yntceest race caps, floors and oprions written ... L. L. 2,191 — -
i 2 favewrable position oL oo e e — — -
inan unfavourable position. . ..o .. Lo el — (i (3}

Foraard rate agresments - . L Lo o e e 1,239 — —
woa favoarable position oL L — —
inan upfavourable position, oL L oo L — — {2}

Financial futuarmes . o et e e 1,379 — —
ma favourable position .. . e e e e — — —
in an unfavoonrable posien. . . L. e e e — —

34, Bay 139

Forcign exchange contracts:

Forward foreign exchange .. ... . .o oo oo 4,898 — —
ina faveurable position ... . oo e e — 140 155
in an unfavourable position, ... . o o L e — 1117) (139)

H,B98 23
ES——

[T} The wadeslying principul amount vepresents the rofivna] amound apoy which the msireements are based and does not generally

represent the amints exchanged by the parties o e instrureres.

LX)
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32. Derivatives and other financdial instruments {continuwed)

31 March 1999
“Underlying
Principal Average Fair
Amount™ Fair Value Walue
£m £m £m

Iiwerest rare contrasts:

Bgerent rle SWAPS, © L oo L 24,188 -— -—
o Bavoarable position oL o - 437 134
o an wnfaveurably posien. oo — ELER RINY

lieredr tate caps, Aoors aod aprioms held 0000 oL L 4,235 — —
i oa FBvourahle pogition _ ... oo oo — L4 i
Wt an untaveurable positom. .o o oL e e e — — —

binerest rate caps, Hoors and opmons weiten - oo o oL . 1.26% — —
ar a Favourable posiceen .o oL —- -- —
vl unfavourahle postem. oo Lo - 11 —

Forswarsh cate AEMUHIEIIIY v o e e e s s e 4,591 — —
foa favourabde posiclon . . .. e e, — ) 1%
inan anfavenrable position. oL oL o - 14 (A

Finanaial futares . . e e e e 697 -— —
m 2 Favourable posiclon ..o o e — - —
iman whfvonrably posion. © oL o - — —

—_——— —_——
AL N R Y

Foreign exchange contracts:

Eorward fureipn exchange ... 0 o e e 5,753
g favenrable pasivion. .. Lo 16Y 250
inan unfavenrable posicom. ..o o e (154} [ 240

9793 T
41,934
ST T =
I The wnderiyeng priecim)l antonet represtnats e modiuel agorry afon ghich e iestoameres are fuied and does aog gonerally

reprrcsens fine drnnirnes exctanged by the pasics I the ieserimments.

Lyealing poofis

Seiarilivs Al IRbReSE LD COTITIACTR . o o v v o u v v v e e i e e
Fercign e hange ConiTAtts . c . .t i o e i e e e
T T ot LT T
271

2004 1999

£m £m

........ 1% 34
25 i7
........ 1 -
........ ) T T

Dealing profis inclode the profiss and losses ansing on the porchase. and sale or revaluation of trading
instruments. It excludes the interest receivable and the related funding cost of holding such ingrrumenis, and

atso exctudes the administrative expenses of wading activirivs.
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32. Darivatives and other finandial instruments (comtinued)
Non Trading Derivatives

The Croup has significant business acuvities in a range of cerrencies and the details are outlined in the
Operarng and Financial Review.,

The operadions of the Group are exposed o risk of interest rate Fluctuations to the exeenc thae assets and
lishilities mature ot reprice at diffecent tmes or o diffenng amoonts. Derivatives allow the Group e
modify the repricing or materity characteristtes of assews and hiabilities in a cost efficient manner, This
Aexibiliey helps the Group w achieve liguidity and risk management obpectives.

Berivatives Aucruate in valse as interest or exchange rates rise or fall jest as an-balance sheet assets and
fiabilities Auctuate in value. i the derivatives are purchased or sold as hedpes of balance sheet items, the
appreciation or deprectatton of the derivanves, as interest or exchange rates change, will generally be offser
by the unrealised appreciation or depreciation of the hedged irems,

To achteve its risk management objectives, the Group wses a combination of derivative finanaial instruments,
particularly interest rate and currency swaps, fureres and options, as well as other coneracts,

The following eables represent the underlying principal amounts, average maturiies and far values by class of
nstrumnent urilsed for non wading actividies for the Grousp ar 31 March 2000 and 1999,

31 March 2000
Underlying " Welghted “Weighted Welghted
Princhpal Averags Average Average Pay
Aot Maturity [n Receive Rate Rate Falr Value
€m Years e “ €m
Interest Rate Contracys:
Inrerest Rate Swaps
— regerve lixed
1vearardess .. ..., . 1,772 0.6 5B 58 49
I-5% wears ..o, 1,817 2.9 2.4 W 7
S-MYwears, ... .- 261 56 09 53 (k|
Over W years oo -o L. 15 114 6.3 — ]
inrervst Rate Swaps
- pav fixed
Pwvearorless o0 ... ni 03 bN- 6.0 ey
I 111 & S 1,153 1.4 58 7. (I
Sl wears ... ... 201 73 4.4 a4 i}
Cher W vears .o L. oL 644 156 4.1 56 3
interest Bate Swaps
- pay and recerve floaring
Uyearorbess .o ., 0 0.4 2.4} s —
i-Syears ... L., B3 2.7 4 .1 —
S-10 yemrms, o .-, 45 6.2 e 337 i
Forward Hate Agreements
loans
Vweareridess ..o ... ... 41 0.5 6.5 — —_
-3 wiars oo 3 1.7 7.3 — —
Interest Bate Caps
Vycarorless .. ... ... 28 0.4 — — 2%
-5 wears oo e e 42 2.2 n— — 25
M pearso ..ol S &£.6 - —
latercsr Hate Floorg
Pwearoe less o, oo oL i L7 — —_ —
-5 veaes oo e 124 1.5 — — =
F42% a2
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32. Derivatives and other financial instruments {cominued)

Exchange Rate Contracts:

Forward Forsign Exchangr

Twearor less. . oo e e e e
T W LrS . L L e e e e e e

Currency Swaps

Pvearorless, oo e e e e
B T
BT T G
L L

Currency Options

Equity and Commodity Contracts:

Equiry Index Linked Conrracts held

Twearorless. oo L e
BT -
BT L =

3T March 200

Underlying

Principal Amount  Weighted Avarage
€m  Maturlby in Years

1,061 0.2
7 14
552 0.5
1,484 27
430 7.4
59 14.0¢
43 0.5
4 1.5
3,821
497 0.7
1,553 14
_2ss 5.6
2,306

Falr Vaius £m.
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32, Derivativas and other finandal instruments [continesd)

31 Micch 1935
Weighted
Underlying Average Ueigg e Walghted
Principai Maturity in AWAraGE Avarage Pay

Amoynt €m Years Receive Rate % Ra®e %  Fair Yalyp €m
Interest Rate Contracts:
Intezest Rares Swaps
— regeive fixed
Tvearorless . oo o L L 1,204 0.4 6.3 32 43
e = S 1,803 29 15 52 &4
T L Y ¢ 130 &2 1.5 0.4 1
Interest Rate Swaps
- pay fxed
Pyearorless . 0 ool 785 0.3 5.5 .1 (9]
-5 wEaG L L e e e e 1,270 21 33 7.3 {24y
F-A0wears . oL 157 7.7 4.0 7.4 (39
Ower W vears, 0oL e 41 151 14 AN (42]
Inercse Rate Swaps
- pay and receive floating
Fvearorbess o e e e e e s T a7 50 4.7 -
Ladyears oo e £8 2.6 54 7.8 i
el ycars o e e 51 ) 314 3 1
Forward Rawe Agreemems foans
I T &7 0.5 — 37 —
Interest Raw Caps
Twaar ar dess - 0o oo e s e 1 .9 - — 1
-hpears .. . e e &1 1.6 -— — 55
Slhyears ... 5 9.0 — - 5
leterest Rate Floors
FMbyears (..o e _ 11 2.5 — — -

&, 730 {10

97
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32, Derivatives and other financial instrunvants (continued)
31 March 1959

Undatiying
Principal Amount Welghtod Average
€m Maturity in Years Fair Watue €m

Exchange Rate Contracts:
Forward Foreiga Exchange
Lweararless. oo o L 1.236 3 43
. T 477 T8
Carrency Swaps
Tvewrorless. oo oo 418 (h3 i2H
L W e L L e e e e i LA66 2h 1471
St wearao oL 3m 1 18
Crer W velrs . L e e e e e LY 14.3 |
Currency Opuions
R 2 S o 24 1 —
T-3 wedmd. e 1 i L —

4,331 —
Equity apd Commodiy Contracts:
Equity Index Linked Contracts beld
e L %7 1.4 134
I 2 1.637 EN | RS
e L | 3 103 YR i

1,939 810

1T H

_— = V=

Unrecognised Galns and Losses on Darivative Hedges

Cams and losses on instruments used for hedping are recognused in line wath the underlying items which arc
being hedged. The unrecognised net gains on mstrumenss used for hedging as at 31 March 2000 were
£64% nullion (1999 €401 willong.

The net gains expected to be recnpnised m 200062001 is €465 million and therealter 15 €204 millinn,

The aed gains recognised in P99200 in respect of previous years was (235 million and the net gains 2nising in
199900 which were nor recopnised m 199900 were €503 million.
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32. Derivatives antd other finandal instruments {continued)

Non Trading Derivative Deferrad Balances
The rable below summaries the deferred profc and losses ar 31 March 2000,

Total met
Defarcad deferred
Gains Losses aainsf{lossas)
£ €m €mn
Asac D Aprel 1999 2.0 {6.5) 2.5
Gains and fosses arising, in previous vears that were recopnised in
the vear ended 31 March 2000, ... .. o 5.1 441 il
Gams and losses 2rising before 1 Apnl 1999 that were nor
recognised it the year ended 31 March 20000 . oL oL 1.3 2.3 1.4
Gains and lssses arising in the vear cnded 31 March 2000 chae
wore nok recipaised inthat vear . oL 0 o e 4.% 11,5 3.0
Ag et 31 Maech 2000 ... g4 4. 44
OF which:
Gams and bosses expeored ro be recopnised in the year ended
I March 200 . L e e e e e 28 (1.4} 14
Anticdpatory Hedges

The {roup has entered mto forward forcign exchange contracts to hedpe partly the exchanpe risk on the
translation of the net profic from cermin non-IRE operarions. The fair valve of these amounted w an

unrealised foss of £4.1 midiion at 31 March 2000 and 2n unrealised joss of €7.4 militon in 1999,
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33. Interest Rate Repricing Gap — Non Trading Book

The table below provides an indication of the repricing mismatch in the non Trading Books ar 31 Marech
2000, For the major categories of assers and Habilicies, this ‘gap” table shows che volumes maruring in
selecred materity bands, taking account of any amortisation of principal. Irems are allovated o ime bands
by reference 1o the eaclier of the next interest rare repriving date amd the maturity date,

The tables show acraal on-balance sheer volumes and ner off-halance sheer amounts, In the case of undrawn
fxed rate lending where the Grooap is effectively committed i price reems and theee is a high degree of
predicrabilicy in relation o the expecred drawdown — norably in celatton w the morggage pipeline - the
capected drawn volumes have been included in the table,

31 March 2000
- Crrgr Dver
three Six Quer
Nat rranths months ong
more b but year but
than not mare hat mare not more Chiar Nan
thres thiam six than one than fivg five intergst
Nen trading interest rate months manths year years years bearing Total
repricing - total £m £m €m Em Em Em €
Assets
Central Goveromrent hills
and other cligible bills, .. 0L L 9 41 — — — 5 642
l.oans and advances o banks . . . . 5677 745 26N 2 —- 7 G.a5 )
Lovans and advanees ro
COSTOMMCTS + w o e o i e e oe e s L ] 18110 3004 9085 142 193 44,973
Diebt securinies and egquiy shares. . 2.964) 240 R S17 |54 3k 4,560
Chher assets .. oo L. .. ... T — — — — 3,592 79
Totalassets, .. .. .. vnionnna. 37992 KHa 3640 9,744 2608 3855 £0,745
Liakniines
Dieposics by banks . 000000 B3 230 1449 128 25l 163 2626
ClUsIomer A0UTUNTS o w o w e - 31,629 1224 L0 1,730 oz A titke 00,954
Db sevurinies dnissuae, .. .. 1.ali R 613 170 ] I3 2425
(ther llabilies ... . 0 0oL anzw — — -- r81 1567 3055
Leancapital oo 0o s e e e 1,423 10 - -- 143 — I.R6h
Minerity smerests and
sharcledders fonds. .. oL ... - —- — — — 3,371 1371
Yoral liahiliies . ... .. ..., ..., (42,975 (2,365 12571 1028 (1,374 (1022 161,734
et amounts due from £t Groop
T T2 3837 I [1.0h3 3 (4,354 6l 5,238 3327
CHf Balance sheet tems ... ... 1957 (R&M 1338) 1443 (185 — 127N
[nteves) rate repricing gap. .. - . - . 72,1003 [1.474) IRT:4 4885 1.6606 (1,150 —
Cumulative interest rate repricing
e S 12,103 (3E7T 13939 446 2612 1,462 —
Eura
Curmnularive INTeresr TREE [Cpricing
gap M Maecch 2003, ... L L e 1,077 1373 3,478 621 984 —
Sreching
Cumulateve Inlerest cate repricig
gap 3] March 2000, . ... ..., 517 (1,713 12,375) 2606 7Y 1,39 —
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313. interest Rate Rapricing Gap — Non Trading Book (continued}

31 March 1999
Ovar Crver
thres ix Owvar
Mot months months gne
mare but bt year bot
than RO e ot more Aot more Crver Man
three than sia then ane than five five interest
Non trading interast rate months manths yaar yaars years bearing Total
repricing - euro € €m £m €m €m € €m
Asyets
Central Government bills
and other cligible Bills ... ... 75 — — — — — 76
Loans and advances to banks . . .. 1,069 7aE 25 — — 4 1,825
Laans and advances to
CUSEDRICIS oo v v ve e e e s 6 538 94 752 2452 787 3%h i2,17%
Diebt sccurirics and equicy shares. . 527 105 — 353 66 — 1,055
Orher as560s .00 e v e e e 5 27 2 a5 — 2,067 2214
Total assets, ... . e e 8,575 1,754 77 2,900 853 2,467 17,350
Liabilines
Deposits by banks . ... ..., ... 2219 414 — — — 135 2,770
CUSTOMEeT A0Coanks .. oy w v e e e . 10,555 236 347 435 230 227% 14,183
Irebe securinmy inssue. . ... L. iz — — 4 — — 16
Other habilities 146 s 1 — — 663 LET
Minareiry intereses and
shareholders” funds ... ... ... — — — — — 1,444 1,444
Total habalimes .. ... .. ... {12,932) (738 (348} (490 123N (4,320 (19,239
Met amounts duc from ! e Group
OIS . o e e i,3181 laf 15 [24) 1178) &9 2,053
OHf balance sheet items . ... L {391) 15 148 101 103 — 113
TreieTest Fabe TEPHODE £30- .. .. - . (3,367) [l (3 2487 55} 11,363) —
Cumulative interest rate repricing
BAR . e {3,367) [2,143) (L5300 #ha 1,506 143 —

hlid]
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33. Interest Rate Repridng Gap — Non Trading Book {continued)

MNon trading interest rate
repricing - sterling

Asgets

Treasury bills and nther eligible
kills

Loans and advances o Tomks L L.

Losans amd advanees o

CHSBOIEIRES © 2 v oo c e c iy e s
Dbt secunitios amd equity shares, .
Cither desets

Totalassers. . .. .. ... ..,
Liabilirics
Cheprossits by banks o000 0oL
Clstimner aeQinais - . ..., .. .
[eht securities w f=sle .., L, L,
Ovlwer Iiabahowes - o000 oo
Coappeapueal oo a0 oo oo
Minonoy inrerests and
sharrholders” fupsls

Toral liabalimes ... .00 ...

Ber wmonnts Jue fram /e Group
MINDS . oo e e e e e s
OFf balance sheer items

Intcrest rate epnicing gap. . ... . .

Cumulative interest rate repricing

_ 33 March 1999
Qwar QOwer
throe i Ower
HNgt months months one
mare but bt year but
than not More ngt mora not more DOivar Man
three thao sia 1han ane than 1lve tive interast
manths mdanths year years years bearing Tatal
€m __ Em €m €m £€m £m Em
RRI0) . — — —_ — FE0
345 R — — — 24 372
13, 1494 59 1377 618 Tl — 231458
SRy 147 Lo 457 — — | ALY
.!_Ii N | — —_ 230 0T
14t T"___i_[] 1473 2,076 I i 26,1865
¥ 357 (I 240 — — — 2745
135,642 ida LR F494 136 373 145438
IR 4% A — — — 4401
4 | . —_— L LIG% 1074
Rl — — - 347 — av
= —_ — —_— — 1,444 .44y
118,776 (1,75 11.0084) (39 il PEESL 250N
TR 243 115 1167 7y 1,492 T3
4,875 130% 12510 (4.23%) AT — 1
23R (353 113 Y REY L1241 1325 —
T L ST = —_——
136 147 [dh 2,548 27 1.5%3 -
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34. Fair values of finandal instruments

The Group has estimated fair value wherever possible using marker prices or data available for instruments
with characteristics either tdentical or similar to these of the instroments held by Groop. ln cermaim cases,
herwever, ncluding some advances o cuscomers, there are no ready markers. Accordingly, various
technigues have been developed to estimare what the approxmmate fair valoe of such instramens might be
These estimaion rechnigues are necessartly extremely sobiecrive in natore and imvolve assumprions which
arc based apon management's view of macket conditions ae 31 dMarch 2000 which may not accessarily be
indicative of any subscauent fair value. Furthermore, minor changes in the assemptions wsed could have 2
significant impact on the tesubting estimared fair vaiues, and, as a result, readers of these financial
stabemcnts are gdvised to wse czunon when psing this data o evaloare the (rroup's Anancial posinon.

The concepr of Fair value assurmes realisation of hnancial instruments by wav of 2 sale. However, in many
vases, particelarly wi respece of fending o costomers, the Group ittends o ralise assees through colfection
ever fime. As such the Fair valoes caleolated do pot represens the value of the Group as 2 going concern at
31 March 2008,

The following table represents the carvying amount and the faie value of both die trading snd Ron tading
financial assets and habalities as af 31 March 2000 and 19499,

2000 i
Carrying Fair Carn-'ing_' Falr
Aoy Valugs AmDunt Values
€m €m €m €m

Fimancial instruments held for trading
Ehe ik SECLIEHES « o v vt i e s et e i m it r e b e e e e 2418 2418 1,357 1,557
iy SRS . - i e e e e e e 9 g 1% 16
INECrEst Fae COMETECES 0 o0 vt e s i et e v m e m i m i i s i34 1349 (35 133}
Foreign exchafge CORIFACES .0 0000 0 e e e e s 23 23 115+ {151
MNon trading financial instruments
Agserg
Coash and balances ae ceateat banks™™ o L L L oL L. 218 210 11383 1,083
Bens ar conrse of eollectton®' L L . &)7 67 575 575
Centezl government bl and arher ehgible bills .0 o L L &4 &4 IRT At
Poans apd advances es banks . L. o L 6,770 a, 768 3,457 3457
Lardns and guvanoes By CluSioniors. . L o a e 44,8444 34,786 36,183 36,584
Seerritsaton aml Toan eansbers’ oL L L 1 1 34} i -
T BT 4,237 4,249 3,590 3R52
Famiey sharcs . o e e 4 4 1 i
Cmvp shares . e e e e e e 11 382 — —
Liabilitics
Dreposies by banks oL oo e e e e 10, M) 10,405 7039 Th6e2
CHISEIHTET GICCOMTMS . L L . b ottt e it ee e e e e e 43,990 41,614 34,297 EER
Dbt secUfities am J55e o L e e e e RIS 2 R4 341 542
ltemns in conrde of ransesson’'™ . L L L L. ny 9 25 250
Subuordmated labelicees .0 00000 1,864 1,923 1,384 [3G150
Mimorin iBteresEs: -Gty . .. o L e e e w7 ot Y 13
Dervative finangal instruments ptilised for nor trading activities
e e 1L L B2 i1ih
Enchange rabe COMEFATES - .0 o0 0 e e e e m e m i ia s e e 1341 —
Eouity amd commodity COnIEaams .0 0 vn v n e e e B23 Ridl

(1 e faur vahee of trese firdrciad mesivanes 5 ogual 80 g carewing value. These iustroomiests are oo carried ot marker vatos, or
have mronmal credit disses ond are either sfort term o nadure or refrece freguenily.

The following notes summarnse the mechads and assumptions used in cstimating the fair values of hnancial
instruinents shown ahove.

L1HH
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34,
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Fair valwes of finandial instruments (continued)

Loans aud Advances to Banks

The Group plices funds with Banoks. Several different techniques are ermployed, as considered
appropriate, in estimaring the fair valee of loans and advances, The careving amouat of variable rawe
lrans 15 considercd to be at marker value, The fair value of hAxed rate loans was calewlated by
discouncing expected cash flows using marker rares where practicable, or rates curcently offered by
other financial imstitutions with similar characeeristics,

Logns and Advances ta Customners

The Croup peovides lending facilities of vaeviog rates and maturivies eo corporate and  personal
customers, Several different rechniques are emploved as considered appropriare m estimaring the bur
valie of loans and advanges.

Fair wvalees are estimated for pornbolios of loans with similar Anancial characteristics. Loans ace
seeregated by tvpe. Fach loan category is further segmented into fxed and variable rate interest teoms
and by performing and non-performing categories,

The carrving amount of variable rare loans was considered to be at market race it there was no
sipnificant change in the credic risk of the borrower.

The fair valoe of fxed rate loans is esdmated by discounting futore cash Bows using markes rates for
simtilar loans with the same residwal marurities, offered by the Groop including an adjuscment, where
necessary 1o reflect the face thar the credit risk on a proportion of the loan has changed.

Drefrt Secerities and Fguity Shares
The Farr value of listed debe secaritics and equity shares is based on market prices received from external
pricing services or hid quotarions received from external securities dealers,

The estimated value of unlisted debr securitics and equity shares i based on the anticipated furare
cashflows arising from these items.

Chgm Shares
The Fair value of the own shares are based on the stock marker price at year ¢nd.

Vieposies by Banks
The fair value of other botrowings is based on the discounted cash flows using market rares applicable
tor similar types of borrowing Arrangenents,

Crestomer Acconuts

The fair value of current accounts, shortterm borrowings, deposit accounts payable on demand and
variahle rate deposits are equal to their carrying valee, The fair valee of all other deposits, which are
not repriced frequently is estimated based on the discoonted value of the contractual cash fows. The
diseotnr rate is estittated using market rares for deposics wieh similar remaining marnritics.

Drebs Secrrvitics in isswe

The carrving vahie of short-germ debt securities in issee approximare o cheir fair values, Fair vaioes of
oher dele securitics in isswe are hased on quorted marker prices where available, otherwise by
discounting anticipated cash flows.

Swbordinated Tiabilities
The cstmuted fair value of subordinated Liabilities 1s based on quoted market rates for debt instrumenes
with similar maturities.

Financial Tngtruments with (7 Balaree Sheor Risk
Financial instrements with off balance sheer visk are detziled in Note 32 of the Nores ro the Consolidated
Financial Staterents and include the fair valoe of these instoaments,

Life Assuraince Assots and |izhilities
Life assurance assets and habilities have not been ancluded in this note in accardance wirth accounung
standards,

Tl
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315. Contingent liabillties arnd commitiments

The tables below give, for the Group and Bank, the coniract amounts and risk weighted amounts of
contingent Liahilities 2nd commirments. The maximum cxposure o credir doss prder continpeny abilites
and commutmenis is the contract amount of the instrument in the ovent of non-performance by the other
party where all counter claims, collateral or security proved worthless. The risk weighted amounts have
been calculated i accordance with the Cenrral Bank of Trcland's geidelines implemicnting the Basle
agreement on capital adequacy i)

37 March 2000 31 Marsh 1990
Contract  Risk walghted Contract  Rizk welghted
armournt amaunt amount amaunt
£m &m £m &m
The Group - Contingent Liabilities
Acceprances and endOrsemMEnTs . o 0 v e e e e e 104 1m 73 |
Guaranezes and assers pledged as collareral secunty
—Asserspledeed oL L — — — —
— Ciuaraneers and irevocahte letters of oredit _ .. L. go7 T3k 621 03
Cirher contingem bahiltics . ..o 0 oo oo L 343 163 343 168
1.346 1 ,L'IELS_ 1,037 744

The Group - Commitments

Sale and option to resell fransacdions ... L. L. L — e — —
Oeher commitments

= Nocumentary credies and shorewerm erade-relaed

IPATMRACEIOMNS . © o oo ot ny ot et st e e ke e e &7 20 R ig
— Forwsrd asset purchases, forwaed deposics placed and

forward sale amd cepurchaw ageeements L oL oL, — — — —
— Uhtdrawn note ssuance and revolving ooderwriting facilines 505 — 181 —

- Unefrawen formal standby facilioes, credn lines and ather
comemaiments (o lead:

— wrevea e with ooginal matoriey of over one year L 2,704 1,350 1,349 917
= revacable or irrevecable with ariginal materity of one
vearorbess i, Lo L e e 8,272 — 6,977 -
11,5953 1371 9073 235
The Bank — Contingent Liabilities
Acceptanees and endorsements . oL oL oL o . 16 1 73 71
Guaranters and assets pledped as collaeral security
—Aassets pledEed L L e e e — — — —
— Epzrantees and irrevocable legters of ceedit L. 1,322 £94 2565 ¢34
Cither continpent Dabkilities. .. . o ol 143 168 343 1658
3871 965 3081 &73

The Bank - Commitmants

Sale and oprion to resell mansactions .. .- L. — — — —
{ither commitments

— Dacumentary credits and short-rerm wade-related

RFARSACHOMIE. 0 v v n oot m i m i m i m o a7 20 5% 18
- Forward asser purchases, forward deposits placed and

forward sale and repurchase agreements . . ..o .. — — —_— —
— Uadrawn nore isspance and revolvmg underwriting fagcibiies 505 — 192 —

-~ LUndrawn formal standby Eacilicies, credic lines zod other
CoOManIEAIENTs T lend:

— irrevercable wih anginal matoriey of aover ose year, . 1123 557 1,197 550}
- revocable or irrevocable wah origieal mataciey of one
yearoe fess b o Lo e 6,987 — R —
H.602 577 7,502 A8
Metes

it Under the Buasle apracnes, a credin cnnearsion factor is apphicd o the comtegol aeiount fo ol the creoin eguacalemi e,
whicl is Drew risk weotghied socvrding to couwnderprarty,

fnr Uetdrares foge ecmmnstraen s wodiiok gre uneomdittonallv oircollalide or aay Heve ar whiclt buee o mgoesor of bess Sae one vear baee
a risk aeipghiing of ree,
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Deposit Interest Rereption Tax

Financal institutions i [reland are coquireed e dechuct Depesit oterest Retention Tax (TTRT) from interest
paid on certain deposies with Inish branches and to remit the DMRT withbeld to the Revenue Commissioners
on 4 blannual basis, rogether with a statutory return of the interese paid i that period and of the applicable
IMRT. These vhligations were imposcd by the Finance Aot 1986, Crertain deposits, however, are excluded
from the impositian of DR, Deposits held by non-residents, companies, charities and pension fonds are
exclugded from DIRT provided the appropriate declaration in the required torm has been made to the
financial institution.

The Irish Revenue Commissioners are currently in the pricess of anditing 1RT compliance by all financial
institutions in Ireland, covering the penied from & April 1986 w 5§ April 1999, including the Groep's Irish
based deposit taking entities with a view to establishing, in respect of cach institurion, the amount of
additional DIRT due but unpaid as a result of decumentation or urther deficiencies rogether with any relaved
interest and penaliies, The nature and exeent of the uncertainties suctounding, the outcome nof this process,
including questions abeut the interpretation and application of the law, make it impossihle for the Direcrors
o make a reliable estimate of any evenmal DIRT Bability, and any associazed interese and penalues which
will be assessed an the Group,

36. General

{a) The Bank has given puarantees in respect of labilities and obligations of certain of v subsidiacies aod
has also given guerantees for the satistaction of the relevaer regulatory avrhorities for the protection of
the depositors of cerrain of its banking subsidiaries in the vanous jurisdictions in which such subsidiaries
operite.

bt The Pank has provided 4 guarantee ender Section 17 of the Companies [Amendment} Act 1986 for the
tllowing vompanies Addano Limited, Bank of Ireland Asset Management (US) Limited, Bank of Ireland
Asset Mamapement Timited, Bank of Ireland Car Loans Limiced, Bank of Ireland Commercial Finance
Limitedl, Bank of Ireland Unie Trost Managers Limired, BIAM Laoldings, Davy Corporate Frnaage
Limited, Davy Holdings (Internatiomal] Linnted, Davy Inteenational, Firse Rate Enterprises Limited,
Florenville limited, Bl Corporate Finance Limited, TR Interfunding Company, hidem Limieed, Ilios
Limired, | & E Davy, | & ¥ Davy Holdings Limiwed. Lansdowne Leasing Limired, Laverhill Lismiced,
Liscuil [imited, Louncil Limited and Merrion Leasing Limited,

{r} There exists o contingenr lizhiliry 1o repay in whaole or in parr grants reecived on Anance leases of certain
cvents et out in the relevanr agroements ooour.
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37. Notes to the cash flow statement

fri Gross Casiflaws

The Group
2000 1%
£m €m
Returns on investmenr and servicing of finance
Inrerest paid o sclordiogeed Babilides. ..o 000 L o0 o e (871 (11
Preference dividencls pasdd . L 0 e e e e 1251 [ih
Issue eapenses oo subordmared labilioes. oo oL 00 0 o o oo o o o —
Dividends pad o minarity shareholders in subsidiary undectakings. ... ... ... 0 L E]
(1223 {L41]
Capatal expendinire and financial investment
Net fpwrchasesisales of investment debt and equiry secaeities . ..o o oo oL (258 {783)
Purchase of tanpihle Axed assets. .o oo oL oL (2071 {173
Gale of sanpible foeed asscns L oL - o 155 55
el L] (903}
Acquisitieras and disposaly
Investments e associated wadentakings ... oL L L L L L e (4]
Sale of Citieens Finanaal Growp. oo v cu t oo e e i — 686
Sale of Associated npdertakimpg . c 0L e e e e e — 313
Purchase of miournty megeest in subsidiary. .o o0 oo oo e e —
{101 71§
Financng
Issue of capital stock Tner of issue expenyes) ... .. oL L Lo Lo oL 14 18
Hepayment of subordinated babilities . .. ... .. ... o o Lo 1264 127
[ssie of subordinated labilitics. .. ... . . oo ; aa0 —
Stock By Dack L e o e e e e e e e {4421 -
{92 (9]
fif}  Amalysis of the balances of cash as shiwen i1 the Balance Sheet
Loans and
Cash and Acdvanoes ta
Balances at Barnks
Central Rapayabls on
Banks Oemand Total Cash
&m €m €m
2000
ArtAprl 1999, L oL 1.083 94 1,677
Cash oW o e i e e e e e e E e 1B78) A2 [354)
Forpgn exchange movement. .. - - o oo oo a oo _é RN 73 il
A3 March 2000, . L e e N L1849 1,399
1003
ArlAprtd IW9H. L e 150 1327 1,477
Cash B . o et e 334 1726} Iy
Foreign exchange MuveIment - . oo oo e e e e e e il o7 %)
A3 Macch 1099, e e e 1,083 5494 1677
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37. Motes t¢ the cash flow statement {continued}

fitil Analvsis of chanpes in fnancing
Capital SLock

Mingrity

lincluding stock Subardinated Interast Hon
presmium} Liabl litias Eq ity
€m €m €m

200CH)
AT April 1999, L L e 1314 t,389 |
Fhfeot af forgipn exchange differences ..o oo o 0oL " 154 K
Coash flomw - e e e e 14 33 —
Stock alternative scheoe Ssuc, L L. e oo % — —
Capitalisation of Teserveh o oo e e e 3 - —
Other nem cash moverments, oo 0 e e o — §3h —
AL March 2000, . L o e e 1,369 |, Bab BT

P
AT Aprl I e e e e 1261 L35 "1
Lffecr of foregn exchange differences .. oL L i3 i40] (2
Cash How o L o o e e i e s it e 18 27 —
Steck alternative soberme BEOE. . a o 8 .- —
Oheher mom cashy mvements, . . oL . oo — L —
AU Margh 199 1314 l,3ix9 74
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38. Segmental Analysis

Net assets are included below in order to comply with 5SAP 25, The segmental allocanon of liabilities
necessitates the allecagion of capical oo a risk related basis which is in some cases necessarily subwective, The
ncr assets of the Life Assurance business segment are based on allocation of capital while previously it was
based on the actual capital as there was no allocation of capiral wo this scgment. The Directors belicve chare ir
is more meaningful to analyse toral aswsers and the resolr of this analvsis is therefore alsa included in the
tables. The analysis shown is based on management accounts information. Ireland includes Northern
Ireland. Turnover is defined as interest income and ton interest income, Turnover by business class is rot
showt. The Group has six business classes.

Foliowing a reorganisation announced in November 1992, Retail has become Retail Banking Republic which
now excludes Banking GR, Internativnal Banking and Northern Ireland, Corporate and Teeasory now
includes Banking GB, Intemational Banking and Northern Ireland, Corporare Finance, Davy and excludes
Private Banking and Trust Services. A new business class, Asser and Wealth Management Services, includes
Asset Manapement, Securities Services, Private Banking and Trust Services, The analysis below for 1999 has
been restared accordingly.

In addition the hasis of capital allocation to sepments has been amended from a primarily risk weighted assers
basis (o an econotnic capital one which incorporates a broader range of business risks,

(a) Geographical Segmant

2000
Ratt of
Ireland Ertuain Citizens World Total
£m £€m £m €m £€m
THEROVET & v s vs v s va et m e e i 1150 1,733 — 131 4,014
Peatr on ordinary acivices before B
exceprichab sem - ... oL, 746 1y — 23 974

Grossimg up oo e e e 13
Peofit bebore maxacion . . ... .. L., 920
TEEL ASSOER. © L u e - e e e e 1,574 1,0%& — 309 1179
Toral @t T e 49, 534 iz413 - 2,753 '34,?5_9

199 .

Rast of
Ireland Eritain Cltirans Warld Total
£m €m €m €m Em
TuTnOVEr e e e e e e 2,049 1,781 — 147 1977
Profit on ordinary activities hefore
excephional HEM ... e o e e e e 3w 233 32 L 18 R73
Frofie on disposal of associated undertaking 218
Lol

LiTO55INE 1||r.:a:”I ...................... 137
Probt before taxation . o .. 0. ..o, _ 1,54
B T 1,964 783 — 1497 2,854
Total assets™' . e 37,080 23,553 — 2,326 £2.95%
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38. Segmental Analysis {continued}

(b} Business Ciass

200
Afiet nrsd
Retail Wealth
Banking [E1¢") Larporate & Pristod B Managemdal Lroup and
Roplbig Agsuranestt Treasyry Yoasn Servleas  Camltal GoSns Tala
&m &m &m £m £m £m £m
0 INCCrest TECORIY + v o - v e o o m e Bl — 37 296 1% 1 ko1
Other ingome’™ L L L e ey I S 234 _”_4 E 52 Fif
Total operatiog meome - ..o L HIR G kg 4103 217 i3 2,202
Administranve expenses. .. ... ..., H45 — ERE] 171 82 28 1,148
Depreciarion and amorasation ... .. .. By — i 1% 4 G 118
Provesiom For baed and doobelul debes . 1 — 23 fi 2 il 56
Profis efere excoptional foom_ oL 237 93 280 216 129 1% g7h
Gromsing U’ ", o (59
Profin bebormes 1axamm, - - .o Y
TEL ASMTS v e e e e e &11 AH 0T o441 123 %24 3,375
Tatal assns™ oL 13,075 5,520} 36,038 223448 233 2078 H?,_{}g_?
1459
Asput nrd
Artalk wWesdth
Baing bl Coarpirabe Bdited & Manepiteng Groug and
Rapirbidy Asauranea’tt Traanury Wen Carvloas  Calral Cosna Elilrand Tolal
Em ¥m fn fm fm em Em €m
e imereso moame . L 0 — an 278 14 -- — i,133
Ober meome™ L 192 ) 243 i {43 24 32 536
Teskal operabing ipoome . . .. 743 41 AR K7 139 13 iz 1,932
Administrative cxpenses, . . 455 — 258 159 fl} 2 — Yol
Bepreciiion and
AMIGITSANON . . a0 a v 53 — 5 22 3 5 — kL
Proviston for bad and
dowbetul debas. . L L S S - Tl 1 — -— 36
Frafit before exceptional
emy . 205 91 261, 145 95 1y 32 873
Praafin o disposal of
associawed underraking. . . 218
1091
Crossimgup' . L oL 147
Profr before taxation i.054
MUl MSEETS. .. ... o aa e .'5|."_i 43k s LN 22 941 — ?_,,E.'_“_’r_
Toral assets > .o ... 16,397 __4.” | 25,474 19.%?8 l,}.__'_’r TR — H9_E51

il The Growp wmdferiabes fax fased trosactions af victes wduch are foss sl soeeal searkes vatos on vetiaen tor fax refiel arimg from
resrrtas for madurerit deceloenms amf ogbor pefiegs, To asaast we kg talnd comparisn of pre fax porfirsamce, e aalvsis of

Ftasaness anie perfuretance is grossed s

i3V Tradaf asiets melude inpng-grosen ey of €P080 eaflion (1999, E0E 107 auflioni in Susiners s angd €16,701 mrlfige (JIUR:
5.0 % pulliont in pecpraphe sogments,

SR Chey wrcoene frclagdes tarame e g saiates.

At The Itfe assieawer profits reportod e Hee sewmmental anotvate gre Rasid wa gt oearagement acentis,

39. Related Party Transactlons

{a} Subsidiary and Associated Undertakings
Deeails of the principal suhsidiary undertakings are shonwn in Note 16 on page 66, In accordance wich FRSE.
transackions o balances berween Growp entities that have been climinaied on consolidation are not reported.
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Cne of the Group's subsidiaries Cashback Limited is 49% owned by Fexco who had a balance outstanding ar
31 March 2000 of 0.7 million For processing transactions on behalf of Cashback Limired.

The Group provides and recetves fram its associated undertakings certain banking and Anancial servives,

ik] Pension Funds

The Group provides a number of normal banking and fnancial services for various pension funds operated
bv the Group for the benefts of its emplovees (principally for the Bank Staff Pension Fund), which are
conducted on similar erms o third party transactions and are not marerial o the Group.

Further deeails on pensions are set out in Note 31,

[c} Diracters

Drirecrors’ emoluments and details of transactions Perween Directors and the Group are ser out in the
Remuncration Report on pages 36 o 40, Additionally, Ir M Redmond, Tdrector, in her protessional
capacity as a solicitor, varned fees from the Group totalling €57, 138 o the vear o 31 March 2000, 1999,
E104,119%

(d) Securitisation

RI53, RP54, RPSS and CLIPS are comsidered to be related parties of the Group and the Group has entered
inte both an interest exchange agreement and a subordinated loan agreement with RPS3, RI'54, RFSS and
CLIES, The Group has purchased the lowest ranking floating rate mortgage backed securitics issued by
CLIFS, In addidon, the Groop adminiseers the loans an hehalf of RPS3, RPS4, RPSF and CLIPS. As ar
31 March 2000 the net amount owed from RPS3 was €0.2 million (19949; €02 million), BPS4 was
€008 million (1599 €1 4 million}, and {1115 was nil. The net amount owed o RPSY was €0.1 million
while in 1999 €0.2 million was owed fromn RPSS,

AD. Asswis and Liabilities denominated in Foreigh Currency

. Thg_Grnup ) The Bank

2000 1999 A0 1985

) €m . €m £€m €m

Denominated inearos .. ... oL 29,4211 23402 2332} 20, 24%
Drenoiminated in currencies acher than eures . . RE T M) E52 23,630 14,649
Tartal ASSEES . o e e 6RO 54,314 46,970 34 937
Denominated meoaros - .. - e 2E.RN 23429 22,851 17,392
Dencmuinatest in corcengies ocher than earos L 39197 H),BES 24,119 17,545
Total Laabilites. ... ... . .. o o o ... 68,017 54314 45,970 34,937

The differcnice between aggregate feucipn currency assees and apgregate foreign currency liabilities does nort
provide any indication of the exposure v exchanpe risks.
41. Employes information

In the year ended 31 March 2300 the average full time equivalents was 16,366 {1999 15618} and
categorised a8 Follows i line with the business classes as stated in Mote 38 on page %6.

2000 193

Rewa! Banking Republic . oo .o o e e e B354 7995
Life ASSHEANTT . Lttt it e e e e e e 973 uld4
Comporate B Treasuiy . i c e c e e e 2.0 2,741
Bristol B West, _ o e e e e 2,717 2H25
Asser el Wealth Management Services . oL oL e e T8 95
Grouwp and Contral Cnscs . o L L o e e 642 557
16,366 15618

Bristol & West mcludes the average full tme equivalents for Bristol & West and also for the Group's
morgage business in Britain, Bank of Ireland Home Mortpages. The staff costs in Wote 5 is exclusive aof
staff costs relaning o the Jife assurance business. The contribution from life assurance companics shown i
the Group Profit & Loss account on page 61 15 net of these seaft costs,




Financial Infermation relating to the Govamnor and Company of the Bank of Iredand

42, Group finandal information for US investors
Not shoton

43. Rate of exchange
The principal rates of exchange osed in che preparation of the accounts are as follows:

3 March 2000 37 March 1993
h Clexing Average Hedge wclu:ing . Avirage _—Heu_gr:'
EUSS T 1.0247 — 1.0742 1.1283 T
Efigd (LIRS 1.630% (L7274 (6663 Nex34 I |

44. The Accounts were approved by The Court of Directors on 10 May 2000
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UNAUDITED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK OF IRELAND GROUP
for the six months ended 30 Septembear 2000

Independent Review Report to the Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

Intreduction

We have buen instrucied by the Rank to review the hnancial information ser oot on pages 9 to 26 and we
have read the other information comeained in che inerim staement for any apparent misstatemcnds Ot
matenal inconsistencies with the financial information.

Directors’ responsihiiGes

The loeerion statement, including the financial information contained theeein, is the responsibility of, and has
been apprioved by the Court of Dircctors, The Listing Rutes of the Irish Stock Exchange require thae the
aceouniing policies and presentacton applied o the interim figores should be consistent with those applied n
prepactag the preceding annaal accounts except where any changes, and the rezsons for them, are disclosed.

Review work performed

We conducted our review in accordance with gutdance contained in Bulletin 199944 issucd by the Auditng
Practices Board. A review consists principally of making engniries of management and applying analvtical
procedures to the financial information and aaderlying financial data, and based thereon, assossing whether
the accoutiting policies and presentation have been consistently applied vnless otherwise disclosed. A review
excledes audit procedores such as rests of controls and verification of assets, liabiliries and transactions, It is
substantially less in scope than an awdit performed m accordance with Aoditing Standards and, therefore,
provides a lower level of asserance than an andit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion on the
financial informacion,

Ravitw coniusion
(0 the basis of our review, we are not aware of any material modifcanons thar should be made o the

finzncial information as presented, for the six months ended 30 September 2000,

Pricewaterhouse{loopers
Chartered Accounrants
Dublin

13 Movember 2000
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frtering Crrenepr Profi and Foss Aceorent fwnatidited)

Half Year Haff Year Year

IDSeptember 3 September 31 March

2008 1599 2008

€m €m €m

Interest receivahle

Yogerest recenvable asnd simvlar eome acising froan debt securines . L 196 115 i
Owher aneerest recorvable and similarineome 0oL Lo Lo 1,749 1,240 2ad1
Imterese payable, . . L L (1,252} {7RY] 11,7680
Puet IRECTesT ARCEMITE . . . . . oL u L i e e e 693 a3 1,242
Fees and conmmmssions eecervable, o000 o 420 Rl T2
Foes and commissions i'.na}':lhlu ................................ {25} 1268} iz
Dealing prafies ... ... .. e . 37 i2 44
Contribunon fram hfe sasarance :_mnpmmq lhnm 3-;1 ................ 74 6% 127
Chher opueraling WWOMC. . oL L L e e e 35 52 | 12
Total OPCEATHE HICUTIIC . - 0 v v e v et m e e e e e 1,235 §ATR% 1342
Admmisrranve SXPENSES, o0 e s e e 576 R 1,148
Lrcproviarion and amesresamion ..o oe e e e e e s g2 Mo 113
Operating profin before provestons .. .. . . oL o L oo 597 534 75
Frovision Eor bl and doubefol debrs (Nese S 0L Lo In 27 36
Opezating peofit . Ce e 563 i Mg
Incomie from assoc mtr.d und: t‘[akll]bs ::md |nlnt WMURCS & 1 !
Trafie on ordinary acervities befiore excepiional aems Lo L oL 67 B[R] Q30
Coropr Transformepion Programme e . oo L0 oo L. a7 - —
Profit before taxation .. .. L e 500 508 B30
[Crepost Imerese Boetenomm Tax 4\me "il e e e e 35 — —
TEmBIOn (NOTE b o e e e c e Mg 121 194
Profit afrer laxation. . .. o .. ... L. e 3a1 387 L
Half Yoar Half Year Year

D September 30 September 31 nbarch

plins 1959 2060

_ €m L10)] €m

Profit affer taxa@tlon. . .. .. .. L 341 X7 T4
BRIy INCENCSLE T BYIIF. v e n e e e 1 ! 3
Aliwority Wrerests; mon equiry ., L 3 3 [
Not-cumulative preferenve siock dI\tdLTIds e 13 13 23
Urofiy asmbygtablc oo the eedimary seockholders .o . o oo oL 44 Y0 A0
Tramsfer tr capital Foserve L Lo e e 44 44 At
Urrdimary dividends . . L e e 94 T3 233
Profic reatmed for thepeesod - L0 C L L Lo - 251 387
Farnings per unit of €043 ordmary stock (Sote 7)o 34, i 335 f:-S e
Alrernanve carnings por una of €083 ordinary seock (Noee ¥ Lo L L $3.3x — —
Uitured earnings per onie af €0.64 ordinary stock (Mowe 7100000 L 143 33,5 676y
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Financial iInformation relating ta the Sovemor and Company of the Bank of Ineland

Interim Consolidated Balance Sheet {unaudited)
30 September 30 September 31 March
2000 1993 2060
- €m €m Erf\_
Assers
Cash and halanves atcentral banks .o o o oL 1900 7R 210
Tems in the course of collection from other banks . .. ..o 000 L 554 682 &6i7
Central Government and orher ehgible bills. . ... o o oL 219 75 746
Loans and advances e banks. oo . L. e 714 4,742 6,972
Loans and advances to customers (Mo ) o oo oL, 48, R6d 39,782 44, ka4
[ Seceuritisation FAd A (ansfers . . . oo vr et e e e His1 EAR] ?Tm
Less: non rearmahle amoants ..o 931 £35 57 ]
130 110 130
I 1T ] 4 7,73 §,7R3 & A
Eauirshares . o .0 e e e 13 7 13
O ShATES o e e e e e . i0 33 33
Interescs in associated undertakongs apd joint venkares . ..o e 23 14 14
Tangeble Bxed 2ss018 00 000 o o e e e e 10062 772 975
intangible fxed asscrs ... L e e e 1320 — g
Crhee asseeEs ... o w0 21.24% 1,243 1044
Prepayomemes and acorued focome .o oo L o e a37 s0@ a2
70,673 S6,023 63,779
Lifc assurance assets atribatable w policvholders .0 L oL 4 828 1,794 4,213
75501 L B sHMT
30september 20 September 31 March
2008 1959 2004
€m €m €m
Liabilities
Deposits by hanks. .. ..o e e 13,722 10,524 10,306
Customer accounds (Mate 0L L L . o o e e 43,216 F5. 557 40,991}
Dichr secUTITCs 10 B v v v v v v v v e e i e . 3512 1,206 2,825
Irems in the course of transmission o other banks, .. ... . .. L L 212 366 5
Oiheer Tabulivies and prowssons . . L o0 o e o e e 3477 3,274 3,.5035
Accruals and deferred INcomEe. . L L L L e e e e %76 B3 ail
Dlaferred rasaron . o . L e e e e a2 73 i1
Sohoedinared linbaliaes . o oo o L. 1,504 1.164 1866
Bimearify EFEOTERES — BUEIEF « - o © « v - e e i e e 4 4 K}
Migority MEErESEES — OB SQUITY. « -« o o oo i e e i e e e e, R? i &7
Calied wp capital sk fNome 117 e e o G0
| Stock premmem account (Note 128 L. L L L e e e 703 GG 5 679
'| Capital pescrve (Note T2} ..o e e e e e 2ZH3 205 232
P Profr and loss acconnt (Noee 120, . ... . o 0 o o e 1,733 1,247 3,5
| Rovaluanion reserve (WNome 120 ..o 0 e i e iak l& 165 |
Stockholders' funds includieg noo equity meerests .., oL L Lo 3,575 2,821 3,279
E e asserance liabilities ateriburable to policyholders . .. .0 4,423 3,798 4,238
75,501 59,819 eR.017
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Finarxcial information relating to the Governor and Company of tihw Bank of [reland

Memrorandum flems

ib5epiembar A0 5eptempber 31 March

203 19499 2060

_ _ _ _ &m ) £m £m

Cooemgent lahihics

Acceprances and RdORRERICIE - oL L o e e et 149 s 04

Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral secunitw . .0 oL 886 734 gu7

Chhee contingene liabalities . ..o .0 0 o o e 445 44 343

1,430 1,187 1,346

COmEEIIREIIES - . o vt v e e e e e e, 13,967 10,343 11,553
Statenent of totd! recogmrised gains and losses (enaudited)

Half ¥ear Half Yaar Yaar

33 September 30 Sentember 31 March

Fai i iy 2060

_ £m €m Emn

Profe arriberable w ordinary seockholders -0 0 o000 oL 134 370 &9

Exvhange adjustments . . .. oL L L e 22 47 183

Revaluation of propumty. . .. i i i e s . - = 132

Total gains recopnised mperiod. .. .. ... . L (18 417 1,025

Mote of Historical Cost Profit and Loss funaudited)

There is no significant difference between the resules as disclosed in the probe and loss account and the resulis

an an uomoeditied hisrerical cost basis.

Reconcifiationr af movement in stockbolders” freds (ungudiced)

FHalf Year Hall Year Tear

0 Septembar 30 Septembar 31 March

20018 1599 2600

€m €m €m

Profic attributable we ordmary stockholders . .00 o0 oL oL 344 370 630

EMUIGERAS .+ o) T 233

250 287 457

Crrher recogamed gainsftlossesy o, Lo oL oo L 22 47 335

MWew capital stock sehsepbed - - oL L L it 32 42

Seock buvhack L e e e = {409 (419]

295 {33) 4%

Opening stockholders” funds 000 L oo i 3278 _ 2,654 254

Closing stewckholders fundds o L o o e 3,575 2821 3,279
Seockholders” funds:

En T 1.4 3.351} rall 3. ka4

PO BUIY . o L e e e s e e e e e e e e o 215 209 215

1375 2,80 3279
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Finarcial Information relating to the Govemor and Company of the Bank of ireland

Croup cash flow statement {unaudited)

Reconciliation; of operating profit 1o net operating cash flows

Operating Proft . - oo e e e

[Increasel in prepaymenss and accrued income. . ... .. L.

Increase/iViecrease) in aceruals and deferred neomc

Peovisions for had and dowbtful debts. . ... o o0 .
Laans and advances written off vz of recovertes .. .. ...

Depreciatinon and amaortsation

Ioterest charped on subordinaeed labdivies ... o0 0 0 000 oL

Other non-ash movements

MNet cash flow from trading acivities. ... .. ... ... .. ...

Net decoenseflinorease] in collection transmisstots. .. .. ..
Wer fincreasefdecrease i loans and advances o banks ...
Tt [inerease) i loans and advances o customees ., ... .. -
Wet mmerease in deposits by hanks, .- oL oo
Sae INCTEASe a7y CUSTOIMET ZOCOMNTS o . v v v o va v v v rnrm - -
Mot mgredse in cobr secarimes tnoissee, oL Lo e, .

et decreasef[inerease] in pon-investment debr and egunty secusies

Boor hmeregse fdecrense 0 OlRer M550 . . v it i o e e o e e
teer fdecregse) ymoother labibeies. . .. .. . oL L e,
R 1 1 Ta R T 4 1S

™et cash flow feom operating activities . .. ... oL L.

Bewuros an investient and servicing of Anaoce ... . L.

Taxanuvn

Capital cxpenditure and finapcial invegomenr. ., L.

Avquisitions apd diposals

Vdeposir loterest Retention Tax

Eguity dividends pard « 0oL o e e

Fimanuiog

IncreaseS[decrease) in cash .

Hall Year Half Year Yeay
30 Saptember 20 Sepiember 1 March
FTr] 1999 T
£m €m €m
561 307 719
(134 (39 (4]
n |26} 1948
b 27 AT
(16} 24) 39)
al 34 114
6K 37 Y
1721 & {45
7o 552 9
fa 11l 51]
1300] 262 [2,8.3A}
(3,925 {2,938 16015 5]
321 1,702 314137
1,140 "7 4,464
GLE alE LG4
i 1269 {914
{211} 254 109
{Eii L334] {2
(185) i1 1150
105 2584 fdH
(39 LR 112
{713} [&0) (192
139 — —
(639} (3E7 LI
(170 (1 L)
[138) (112} 1178
1 (684 92y
1,495 1277 (35
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Finapwial information relating to the Governor and Comparny of the Bank of [reland

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1.  Accounting palicies

The accounimg, podicics a4 set our on pages 31 e 53 of the Reporc and Accownts for the yeae eaded 31 March
2000 are unchanged,

2. Chase de Vere Investmeints plc

On 0! Seprember 2000 Bank of Irclasnd announced that irs wholly-oweed sobsidiary, Bristol & West ple
{("Bristod & West™) had tequired MR Edge Holdings Limueed, the holding company of Chase de Vere
Investmenis ple. a kadieg UK Indepesdent Financial Adviser business, The present value of the expected
tokal cost of the acquisition is SEf121 mitlion (€19% million). This comprises mimal consderation of
Stgf T2 mullion (€183 millsont including invidensal expenses, and deferred constderation of Sig€? million
(€15 muiliom). The deferred consideration can range from el w Sge£22.5 millios (€37 million) dependent un
the performance of Chase de Vere Invesrments ple over the three year period e 31 Deceinber 2002

e assets of Segd L) oiltioe (€16 millien) were aequired creating goodwill an acquisicon of Spd 111 puilion
(182 mlhient, subjecr e far valoe adjustment, The assessmenr of fair values will be conduded in the second
Ralf of the financial year.

3. Life assurance

The talble below provides an analysis af profrs before ax,

Half ¥Year Halt Year Year

305eptember 30September 31 March

2080 1959 2000
. ... . .. N, ..
T 24 L3 Rl
Paesbinegy Dansmncss. . . oL e 3l 25 Ain
Feeurn an shaorcholders funds _ L C . o . o . T 4 R
Operanmg prodit before tax 0 0 o e e a1 42 4
Change i diSConnL BALE. © v e et o e e — 14 14
CRANEE IR BN FIE o o e e e e e e - — H
Euceprional imens _ L e e 1 [ u
Coonorebutien from life asseranee compamies ... L. L L. i 6% 127

Lass: invome awljustment for certaemn services, merheads and capieal

allocations provided By Group compamics .- 00 e s e e o 20 il 28]
Life assurance segment, profer before tax . .. . L L L L o0 53 58 99

4. Group transformation prograrnme

implementanen of the Group's cost reduction programme 5 now underway and a provision of €67 million
befare tax (€52 million after taxt mainly for stalf severance packages has been recopnised in the half year
accounts, This expenditure s expected to be incurred prior o 31 March 2003

5. Deposit interast retention tax

O 5 Juby 2000 the Bank announced thar it had paid the Revenue Commissioners of irdland the sum of €387
million (ERC30.5 nulliont tn full and Anal setdement of Bank of rdand Groups Hability for arrears of BIRT
iDeposic Interest Retenmion Tax ) including interest and penalties, €3.6 nullion was provided in che vear o 31
March 192599,

6. Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

Haff Year Half rear Yeai
Wieptember  A0September 31 March
2000 1#48 il
€m €m £m

Based an proht for e period:
LT e T 5 i1l 155
Paferred Lan gl . . o . o e e e e e e e e e e 14 14 LT
Avsoviated endeoskigs, oL . L e e e e = —
{1 12i 194



Financial information relating to the Governor and Cotpany of tha Battk of Ireland

7. Earnings per unit of €0.64 ordinary stock

The calenlatien of earnings per onic of #.44 Urdinary Stock s based on the profic attnbutable ro Ordinary
Stockholders of €344 million (September 1999 €370 mililon and March 2000; £682.5 million) and the
weighted average Ordinary Stock in issue of 994.6 million units [September 1999 1,035.6 million uius and
March 2000: 1,013.6 million units).

The calculation of the alternative carnings per share for the half year ended 30 September 2000} is hased on
the probr attnbutable w Ocdinary Stockholders before exceprional ttems (the charge for the Group
Transfermation Programme afrer tax of €32 million and the DIRT sectlement of €35 million] of €431 million
and the weighted average Ordinary Stock of 994,86 million units.

The diluted carnings per share is based an the profit aribarable o Ordinary Swockholders of €344 million
{Seprember 1992 €370 million and March 2000 €68%.5 nullion) and the weighted average Ordinary Swock
in issue adjusted tor the effect of all dilurive potential Ocdinary Stock of 7.6 million unis (September 1999
fi.1 million units and March 2000 5.2 miliion units)

8. Loans and advances to customers

30 September 30 September 31 March
2000 1999 2000
_._ Em m __fm
Loans and advances (o vUstOIICTS . o vy oy a i a e e e e e e e 45 R4 KT 4 42,1604
Fmance lease vewvivables o 0 L e e e e 2472 1,900 2313
Hire purchase receivables. ..o oo e Y13 &% 410
49,183 40156 45242
Less: provasioms [Meite %1 L e e 14199 _ 1367 P398)
15 864 39,749 44 %44
9. Provision for bad and doubtful debts
30 Septamber 3D September 31 March
2000 1499 20040
] . &m &m &m
Oprenatig balance . o L e e e e 39y 354 154
Exchange adjustmene o . L 0o e 1 5 22
Charse apalist Prollts . .. . o e e 1 7 N1
Amounts writen oL L L L e e e e (27) 132) 37
ReGuerios | .o e aear it 11 L 15
Clostng balanee. .. oL e e, 419 347 Ehs
AN of which relates o Joans and advances o customers
Provistons ag ened of period -
R 1.1 = £ 11s 113 115
- .17 21 [N ans 254 283
319 167 308

The Grovp's general provision, which provides for the larent loan losses in the portfolio of Joaps and
advances, comprises an clement rolating o prade profiles of €147 millicn Sepr 1999: €127 million, Macch
2000: €141 million) and a nem designared element, for prodential purposes of €156 million {Scpr 1994,
€127 million, March 2000 €142 million). The non designated elemenr, against which a deferred tax asser
has been recopnised, will be offset, in certain pre-defned circumstances, against specihc loan losses as they
crystallise in future years,
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14. Customer accounts

305aptamber

2000

€

LT o T T v 1 . 6,839
B I . 18,811
Demamd opsiTE, L L e e e 16,913
Crher short corm Borrowings . . o 0 o o e e e e e _ RS
43,116

11. Called up capital stock

1t September
1899

534
16,040
b4,042

11 March

3 Seprember 30 Sentember 31 Mlarch
2000 1990 2000
£m €m €m
Allotted and fully paid
Fyuicyr
9972 grullion wnies of €064 of Ordingry Stoek oo o 0oL o LT N34 a5
469 million anits of E0LA4 of Treasary Stk . a0 o e e KT H 13 33
haon oyuty
5 miltion wnits of Noon-Cumulaove Proference Seock of Sgff vach oL . ¥ H 9
105 milben unats of Noo-Cunolagive Proference Soock of IRE] wach. ... 1313 [
LU 1 69{]

The weighoed average Ordmary Stock (0 issue ar 30 Seprember 2000, 31

March 2000 and 30 Seprember

Yy used n the earmings per umie of Ordinary Stock calcwlanion, vxdedes the Treasury Stocdk from toe dare
of buyback, {See Nate 7). The ameunt of Treasury Stock has been reduced during the pertod by the re-issue
of such unirs as new units of Ordinary Stock under the Executive Stock Option Scheme on the exercise af

Options and under rhe Srock Alternative Scheme inscead of cash dividends.

12, Reserves

D september A0 Seprember 31 March
3 1999 1009
____¢w _ &m  &m
Stk premium account
Opening kalance oo e o LT 633 613
Fromioom o ssie of capital seock o oo 0000 Lo - A L3 13
Premium on stock alternarive scheme ssue © ..o oL oL Lo 21 17 2a
Exchange adjustments ... L oL L i = _".i 7
Closing balanve. . L e 203 6 3 &674
S S ———
Capital reserve
Opening balance, oL e - 232 159 Loy
Transber o Tom fEvEmIE DESErVoL . o et e e e e - 4 b )
Euchange adiustments . .. oL e e - 3 — 3
Chosing Balaneo, o L e e . 233 205 232
—_— === = = ===z = ===
Profit and joss account
Dlpemnp balamde . e e e e e . 1,510 1,365 1,185
) 1 T Pl 451 387
Fachaogge adjustieDts . - L L L L i . [ 45 171
Seock buvbhack ... el . — (19 409
Capitalisarion of peserves” . L e e . N L N .
Closing balamce. oo oL L e e - L bhsho
Bevaluation reserve
Opening balamee. . ... . e e e e i6¥ 16 16
Boevalvaron of propertve oL 0 o L e e e - = = _HE
Closing halance. . ... ... . e . iog 14 168

i Fallaerg tRe fode T Anal Gemeral Caurt, the caputal stock af dee Fank havimg o moseiart! eale of TRET poe sendt was
seebdreaded et fien wity o Dndintey Spock boving a wemtinaf cafee of FRILED per . back vl wf Clrdipeee Stock rous then
rredonerssitireed artey e and resaaiiatieeed 1o g ol perbeee af 0G4, et IR cafitaltsatoeer of Kevermee Regorees.
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13. Segmental analysis

MNer assets are included below in order o comply with $SAP 25 The scgmental allocation of Habilities
necessitates the allocatton of capial on 2 nsk related basis which s in some cases necessarily subjective. In
addition since 31 March 2000 the basis of capital allocation to segments has becn amended from a
primarily risk weighted assets basis 1o an economic capital one which incorporares a broader range of
busmess risks, The ner assers of the Life and Pensions busipess segment are based on allocanion of capiral
while previously it was hased on the actual capial as there was no alkocation of capizal w0 this sepment. The
Directors believe that it is more meaningful v apalyse total assers and the result of thes analysis s therefore
alsey mcleded I the tables. The anabvsis of profirs shown below 15 based or management accouwns
information, freland includes MNorthern lreland and the profits generzted m the International Financial
Services Cenwee, Turnover bs defined as interest incomae and non ineerest imconte, Turnover by busingss class
is ngt shown. The Groap has six business classes.

Following a rcergapisation announced in November 1999, Retail has become Retad Banking Republic,
Corporate and Treasory pow includes Banking GB, Inrernational Banking and Norihern Ireland, Corporate
Finance and Davy. Asset and Wealth Management Services, inchudes Asset Managemoent, Secorioes Scrvices,
Private Banking and Trust Services. The 1ife and Pensions segment was previoushy called Life Assprance, The
analvsis below for Scptember 19992 has been restated accardiugly,

{2} Geographical Segment

_ Hatf Year 30 Septembar 2000 .

fretand Britain  Rest of World Total

- Em___FL_qu__H €m
Turnaver 1.} 6.} 1,169 7l 2512
Prafiv betore exceptional eems .. L Lo Lo oo oL £59 115 1% 590
Leroap Transformation Programeme, . oo e 0y Y
CrOssing P e e e e e 23}
Prohe hefore easacion . oL oL oL oL oL b0
e e 2,242 1182 41 35T
Towal 35568 L oo u s e 56,756 33,786 2,300 92444

HaFf Year 30 September 1999

Ireland Britaln  Rest of World Fotal

€m €m €m €m

TUEDOVET vt e i e e e e s 1044 775 &0 ILE
Profic before raxadan ... . L L Lo e e 394 ====ﬁ.?- ) 12 527
Grassimpup' ' e T . (19}
Profn before saxabion - ... ... . e e e _ 508
NELSSEES. ottt e e e 1,769 914 e 2821
Toeal assers . e e E—Em 27.265% 2324 T1.745
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Flnancial Iformation relating 1o the Governor and Company ¢

(a) Grographical Segment

Fthe Bank of Ireland

—_—

Year 21 March 1000

Ireland Britain  Rest af World Tirtal
£€m € €m  &m
TN © v a ot et o e e e e e 2150 1,733 L3l 4004
Prafie hebore tasatbon - _. .0 oL Fdb 230 13 a7y
Grossiog op . e e pAe
Feott befoare tamamion . ... o e e e e e
T 1,474 L6 oy 1379
. e _== fm—— == =. = .,—T'_,: —_———
Mozl dssors S L L L e e e e e 49 754 3l41 2,733 54,750
—_—_——— E i ——— T = = =
{b] Buzinesss Class
Hali Year 30 Saplember 2000
Agiet aned
Wealth
Retail Manage-
Banking Lifs and Corposate Bristol & mant  Group and
Repubiic Fensions™ & Treasusy West Services Central Tota|
€£m €m €m € €t €m €m
Mot interest ineme ..o 340 -— 146 146 H1 1 711
Orber mooame™, .. e I3 AR I 57 120k 31 A
Total operating ineome .. .. ... ... 453 53 R4 233 130 31 1,264
Administrative expenses. .. L. L. 247 — 136 12 M) i1 i
Depreciation and amortisation ... ... 30 — 13 12 3 Y 82
Provisions for bad and doubeful delis ., | K — 13 . . ...
Prefn before aeepuonal fesms . oL L 159 53 152 g B3 4 iy
o —— . p] e — e PSSy gm0 L, SR, L gt |
Cevonp Transfuesmarion Progranme . L H
Crossig up™' o0 _ §33)
Profic before taxaon. ... o0 500
_—"=
M BT . L e e e e e rEx 71 118 1,030 182 %83 3575
Tatal assets™ o e 19,39 514 4,744 23 441 2254 4.11% 25214
Half Year 30 September 1055
Assel and
Wealth
Redail Mandge-
Banking Lifaand Corporate  Eristol & ment Group and
Republic  Panstons'™ & Treasury West, Serdices Central Total
£m €m £m €m  Em  Em €m
SOt INTEDESE INCOMIE L L o aa e a7 —_ 14 144 H IR A
Exther ingone L e g 56 o8 L] 94 3% 439
Tatal npecaring ineeme .. ... . 405 54 288 212 k2 45 L1
Aclminisreative expenses. . ..., . 335 — 132 Al 3 [4 500
Drepreciation and anardisation .. ..., . ) — 9 Y 2 i 54
Provissons tar bad ard doubifol delws, | 16 — 1)) 1 i — — L
Frofir hefore preeptuomal item. o . 124 38 137 t2n a2 23 527
e = S == e —Se=—=
Grossing up™ ' . oo oo oy
Profir hefore raxaion. ... .. oo .. oA
MEDASMIE . L L . L e e E11 af a3y Fag 114 b1 2,821
e _— e e —— — - _— = = ==
Total assers=" .. . ..o 17514 4,061 0 kph 2,317 166l | B51 5,471
== —_——— == === == R
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Financial Information relating to the Governor and Company of the Bank of Iraland

(b} Business Class (continuad)

Year 31 March 2000

Asset and

Wealth

Ratail Manage-

Banking Life and Corporata Bristol & ment  Group and

Republic Fensigns™ & Treasury West  Servioes Centeal Total
€in £m €m £m £€m €m £m
™t inberest COTIE . . oL - o 502 — Kl 296 18 1 1,288
Gther imcome™ . L 216 4y 234 114 199 52 914
Toral operanng income ..o 818 39 LIRS 41} 217 A3 2,201
Admnnistrative expenses . .. vu i 485 —_ 283 170 B2 2% L M4E
Drepreciavion and amorrisaton . .. .. .. i - 19 1% 4 ] 119
Prowsions for had and dowbeful debes . ;S —_ 23 G 2 1y i
Proft before taxation, ... .. .0 L 237 Ly 280 214 129 18 979
Grossimg up ™ . L e e e [39)
FPraht before taxation. . ., .. ... . ... SH)
| Ty S 611 a4 T 41 123 k14 31279
Total assets’™® . e e 19,078 4,520 36,038 21346 2,33 1,778 B7 087

{1 The Groupn andertakes fax based transactions af rates wihich are fess than normal mariet foves /= vetern for tax relief arising froem
ircentives for indwgerial development gad other veliefs, Ta oogist i smigling walid companson of pre-tax performance, the analysis of

bresimuesy wnlt ferforninoe i prossed mp.

(2 Tutal 3ssefs nctude imera-grongp tems af €19,.7173 milline [Septermber 7999 £146,552 mitlon, Marck 2000: E19080 aflion} in
bugirtegs cldss ded €17, 343 sailfion (Sepiember 1999 €11,928 mifliod, Marck 20000 €16,713 willton] in geoprafbic segraents.

£3r Ctbrer trcimme ineluades meome froer gssocigees.

41 The Life and Persions profies reported in the sepmental aualesis are based on the managemenr sccumnis,

14, Grouwp financial information for US investors

Half ¥ear Malf ¥ear Year

0 5aptember 30 Septembar 31 March

2000 199% 1000

Consolidated Net income £m £m €m

Profit under losh GAAP ... ... .. T 344 37 &40
Croup Transformation Programme™. ... o . o o e e e e e s &7 —_— -
T g T L i3) (1) £7}

Sotrware development costs . .. oo oL o e e e e 4 5 L1
LT (t7) (18] £33}

Dreferred raxation . ..o v i e e e e e e e 1) 3 &

PEOSION COBMS . 4 oyttt ot e s e e esmm e e e e e e e 15 3 11
Leog-terim assurance policies _ . oL oL oo oL o e e 49 154 K72}
0T 49 13 ik}
Dreferced rax effect on thess adiostoents .. o .. . ool ee i cu . o (] 15 24

Proftunder U8 GAAP. . . . i i it i e i i et e e sl 348 f28

Eamings per unit of €0.64 Crdinary Stock under 1% GAAP

L 11T I8.3¢ 11ag 62,04
=diluted. L e e Ja.0g KX I al.bg
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Finandial Information velating o the Govemor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

30 5eptember 30 September 11 March
2000 15992 i 0]
Consalidated Total Stockholders’ Funds €m €m £m
Toral stockholders' funds including non sguite wrerests under 1eish CRAAD 1ATY 2,821 3279
Froperry less related depreciation .. ..o oo o oo 12750 113: 2721
Sofware development CobbS - oo w e e e e 1) 285 23
Goodwill L e e 5n 523 i3
Dleforred LAl L L o e e e e e e e e s I3 15 1%
et segutibics = available Forsale © oL oL 6 &L 0
TRERLSLONT SRS & v o e e e e e e o e e e e e e e e e e e . (1. |44 131
Long-term assuranee palicies - oo L L Lo - 1231 (164 (172
Dhividends. oo o e e s Db 71 1610
Croup Trasfarmapnen Progeamme™, Lo o 0 oL o oo &7 — —
L0 T 4l 17 32
Ireferred raxation on these adjustments. ..o oo oo oo o s 3 T 4]
Lonsuldared stockholders’ funds including non coquny interosts nngder
L E%-2 3 33049 3,727
30 3eptember 30 Septamber 31 Marth
2000 1993 2000
cansolidated Total Assets L £m £m €m
Toral assets under Trish GAAD . .0 o e e e e e a e B 39K TR
Prapeoy less related dopreciarion oo o 1373 i113) 1172
Goodwill L e e s At | 36l STH
Subtware developmient coss . o L e e e e s (19 |28 R
Nebe securities — avadlable toesale . . o o . o e e - - [ Y 2
Pershe T CnsTE . L L o e e e e e e e 171 144 134
ALVEPEATIIN, L L i o e e o c e e e e 144 Tim [0e
Lung teem assuranee poliches oo a e (23 | 1dd (172
L 159) |37} (B4
Seonribisedd e, L L L. e L e e e e 187 317
Treferreed taxation on these adjustments ih EX]
lestal asnges arnder 8 AR L L L e e e e e RLLRYE aE 699
30%eptember 30 Seplember 31 March
M 1999 2000
Consolidated Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Funds £m £m €m
Total habilities and stockholdees’ funds inchodung non equiry intereses
under Insh G AAD e e e e e ERNC R B AHAT
Srevzkbolders” funds (U GAAR adyistimentl . _ L oo - T ARE 448
Driviedends . L e e o o e e e e gt (73] Rt
Dretorred b atiiaTr o o v e o e e e e e 126t (25 132
Borrowings relareeh to scoubiTised A8S8E1S. L L oo s a5z T -
ACCETANUEE © o 0y i u b o e e e e e e e e 149 114 106
Crroup Transformanoen Propraoume’™. © L L oL o o e Tt — —
Crber. e ie s {17} IL&; |
Deferced taxanon on chese adjusiments. ... o oo e e ca - 13 W 2
Taral labilicies and seockbobders” funds includiong nosn equine e
wncer 8 G AR e e e Te7E 60,592 65,699

wi D Oroanp Traesfrvmation Frogrgmmee, as autfired 1a Note &, bas pecagresed @ praviston of €67 agfllion weder Trsh GAATD wilich

dues mal yet qualify fee recogniomn ander U5 CGAAR critesis.
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Finandal imformation relating to the Gavemor and Company of the Bank of irelsnd

15. Average balance sheat and intervst rates

The Following tables shew the averape balances and interest rates of interest varning assers and interase
bearing liabilities far each of the half vears ended 30 Seprember 2000 and 1932 and the vear ended
31 March 2000, The calculations of average balances are based on daily, weekly or monthly averages,
depending on the reporting onit. The average balances used are considered e be representative of the
operations of the Group and wovld nor be marerially differenr i daily averapges were consistently vsed
throughout. Rares for the half years are antualised.

Halt Year Half Year Year
30 Saptembar 2000 310 Saplemnber 19‘!?____ . 31 March 2000
“FJE_“_“_' Avirage Avitage

Balance  intereat Rate Balance  Interest Rate Balance  Interest Rate
Assets £m £m % £m £m kL €m €m %
Leans 1o banks
Dumestic oifiees .. ... ..., 4,895 114 4.9 1724 by iz 3835 148 4.0
Foreign affices _ . ..., .., 1,412 0 4.3 276 £ 14 3l i3 ARl
Livans to cnstomers' 't
Iromestic offices .o ..., L. 18,427 iln) | 55 14,482 458 6.1 15,522 92 .00
Fotign offices ..o L., 25,294 BiZ 700 21,22 659 6.2 Z207% 1414 6.4
Ceniral gevernment and

wiher chgible hills

Prerntesric offives ... ..., .. i 1 3.5 7 — 2.0 b -_ 5
Foreign offices . ... ..., .. 395 12 58 573 15 3 596 K} 5.2
Db Securities
Tromestic offices o, .., .. 3,816 175 ah 4,505 112 540 4,999 274 56
Foreign offices - .. .., ... 761 py| 6 TUH 23 3.8 T4 4z 56
Insialment credi
Doreste: oifiees .o 0L L 332 12 7.4 222 2 EE 243 15 7.4
Foreghn affees . ... .., 532 25 9.4 41 13 9.1 418 19 9.
Finance lease recetvabies
Domwestic offices - ... .., .. 1,369 65 5.6 1,641 44 54 1,825 151 4.4
Foragn affices ..., ., 33 1 &1 54 1 4.5 39 1 i
Tioral inrerest earning assors
Domvestic offices ., .., ... 31,712 974 6.1 Z2i,60] 673 5.7 26234 1457 hN
Forewgn offices ... ... ... 18,430 971 68 13217 722 82 24,255  1,54% 6.4

60,342 1,945 6.4 48,825 1,395 6.0 S0 48% 3,002 A3
Allowance for loan losses . . {407) 357 1367
Non wnterest carning assere’™' 10,637 %268 5,695
Tivtal Assers .. .. ..., ... 0,592 1,945 5% 34.73% 1,395 5.1 5R.22D 2002 31
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Financial information relating to the Governor and Company of the Bank of [refaymd

Half ¥aar Hall Yaar Year
30 Seplember 2000 I September 1803 I March200¢
Tpverage Ke}a_ge-. Average
Liahilitias and Balance  Imterast Rate Balance  Interast Raie  Balance  Interest Rate
Stockholders’ Equity €m Em % £m £€m Y €m £m )
Deposits and Customer
Accounts
Jhamwsng affiees - L L 2448 0l TR AT ) 344 26 XA a1k R
Forcign offices o000 L 1i0sz A4 5.4 1H.UR7 4hr] 4% 144675 W 5.0
Dehr securdes in issue
oo oflices -, .. oo .., 1408 42 a4 n3 3 4.9 238 i 3.5
Forcipn offices ..o, 1,732 54 6.4 47 13 5.3 o5 3% iy
Snbordinated liabalities
Vst offiees -0 oL 1,437 iy T.0 R21 a7 A6 Ris 54 a7
Forcipn affces ., 0L, 20k 1% .0 377 14 8.4 i85 13 .6
Total interest bearing
lightligees
Domeseic olfees ., -2 27,293 154 4.1 19528 27 P N T a9 d1
Vorcipn offices ..., ... ., 25204 FAIL 350 149t _ A% 49 21,042 |5 il
52,4497 252 48 35739 745 3% 43210 178D 4]
MNon inncrest beaving
liabilrics
COWrrcne acoonits .. - -, . 4425 jalt Jo8s
Other mom ikerest hearing
liabilides™ . . ... ... ... 10,240 B.a0 #9035
Stock alders” squity
incuding mon eguiry
WICTESE _ oo e o 3430 2988 s
Toual babilities and
stockholders’ ety . L TI92 L2132 33 FATIY ThY TROARBM 1,760 i

= — _ o mae= = == ===

{00 Loans o cnustoomers ftede noer aocenesd Toans aeed boes classiffead oz preofieee oo

2o e avconfaree warl Fimanenyd Repeirting Seanderd 2, e falanee sbeefy of phe o agsuerarnr cutfadnns hoee bepe cotenftdared gl
drat rpfhected endee U Nan Pateres) ?‘..Jw.u.l]g Aarpts sdenad UMNe [HEerpst B T aerleriities.

16. Rates of exchange

Principal rates of exchange used in the preparadon of the accounts are as follows:

30 5eptember 2000 1 September 1934 31 March 20K
dddddddd iy vt Wil iy puesoe otas Do Awwase et
EUSS. oo 08765 09143 — 14749 L1202 LAVS3E 09533 (0247 _
BISMEE 05967 DAI04 06134 De9id  DAT42 DATFI  NSIRS  BeleN  [.737)

17. The accounts were appraved by the Court of Directors on 15 Novembar 20{0.




Taxation

The follawing is g summary of the current United Kingdam and Irisk raxation treatment of the Preferred
Secwrtties. It is not exbawstive, I refintes only ta the position of persons who are the absolute beneficial
ouners of the Preferred Secarities and Cowpans and siay net apply to certain classes of Holders, such as
dealers i secrrities. Flolders wiha gre i any donbt as to thelr tax positton or who may be subject to tax in
a furisdiction other than the United Kingdam ar Dreland showld consiedt their professional advisers,

1. THE UNITED KINGDOM

Withholding tax

The Preferred Securiies will constimte “quoted Furobonds™ wirthin the meaning of section 349 of the Income
and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 (“ICTA™) {as amended by the Finance Act 2000) provided they continue w
Pe listed on a “recognised exchange™ within the meaming of seetion $41 of [CTA [the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange is su reeognised). Accordingly, provided that che Preferred Securities remain lisred on dhe
Lusembourg Stock Exchange or anoher “recognised exchange”, on or after 1 Apnl 2001 pavments of
interest on the Preferred Securiries may be made by the Iisuer andfor any paying agent, and payment may
be obrained by any collecting agenr, withour withholding or deduction for or on zccount of United
Kinpdom ingome rax.

Dirsct Assessment of Income Tax

The interest un the Preferred Securities will have a United Kingdom source and, aceordingly, subject as set out
below, may he chargeable to United Kingdom income tax by direct assessment although paid withour
withholding or deduction. The prafit realised on any dispusal (which includes redemption) of any Preferred
Sccurities issued at an issue price of less than the amount payable on redemprion is similarly chargeable.
However, neither such profit nor interest s chargeable v United Kinpdom tax m the hands of a Holder
who is not resident kar rax purposes in the Umited Kingdom unless the Tlolder carnes on a trade, profession
of vocation in the Unieed Kingdom through a branch or apgency in the United Kingdom in connection with
which the interest or prafit is received or w0 which the Preferred Scourities are atteibutable, Theee ave certain
gxceptions Tor income received by specified categorics of agent (such as some brokers and investment
managers).

The provisions relating o additional payments referred to in Condition 12 of “Terms and Condirions of the
Prefeered Secaritics” would not apply if the Inland Revenue sought o assess the person encitled w the
relevant interest or (where applicable) profit on any Preferred Securities directly to United Kingdom mcome
tax. However, exemprion from such United Kingdom rax liabiline mighe be available under an applicable

doeble axarion treaty.

Holders within the Charge ba United Kirgdom Corporation Tax

The Preferred Securities may he “gualifying assets” for the purposes af the United Kingdom’s provisions
relating ro the raxation of foreign exchange gaing and losses (the “FOREX provisions™). A corporate
Halder which s wirhin the charge i United Kingdom corporation tax and is subject to the FOREX
provisions may, depending o the movement of the euro, the currency in which the Preferred Securitics are
denominated, against the “local currency™ of the Holder, realise an income gaim or loss axable on an
aceraals basis tor United Kingdom fax purposes for cach accounting period duning which the Preferred
Recuriries are held, notwithstanding thae there has been no disposal of the Preferred Securinies.

For corporate Holdees wirhin the charge to tUnited Kinpdom corporation tax, Preferred Sccoritics will
normally constitute “gualifying corporate bonds™ within section 117 of the Taxadion of Chargeable Gains
Ace 1922, Such corporate Holders will normally recogrise any gain or loss for corpuration tax purposes
under the “loan relationship™ rules in the Finance Act 19%6, Under these rules, all inrerese, profits, gains
and losses, measured and recognised in accordance with an authorised accruaks or mark o marker basis of
accounting method, are raxed or relieved as income.

Hoddsrs not within the Change to United Kingdom Corporation Tax

n a disposal or redemprion of the Preferred Secunides, a Holder who is nor within the charge to Unined
Kingdom corporation tax and who s a UK taxpayer may realise a chargrable gain or an allowable loss for
Lnited Kingdom capital gains tax purposes. In caleulating any gain or loss on a disposal of Preferred
Securitics, the sterling value of rhe Preferred Securiries ac the dace of disposal is compared with ther sterling
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Taxation

value at the date of acquisition. Accordingly, a raxable gain could arise even where the euro amount received
on the disposal is the same as or less than the amouent paid for the Freferred Securies,

Holders who are withip the charge o United Kingdom income tax on the interest payable an the Prefereed
Securitics will generally be liable to rax on this interest when it i paid to them in cash or m the form of
Shares {sev “Payment of [nterest 1n Shares™ helow).

A reanster of Preferred Securitws by a Holder which s not a company within the charge to United Kingdom
gorposation tas and which is residear oo ardinanily cesident in the Unleed Kanglow o which caeries on a
eade in the United Kingdem theough a branch or ageney o which the Proferred Sccurities are attnibutable
may give rise to a2 charge to Umited Kingdom nicome tax in respect of an amount representing ingerest on
the Preferred Securirics which has acerued since the preceding Coupon Payment Dare under the provisions
of the “accrued income scheme™ (the *Scheme™). The Preferred Securities will be variable rate secarities
within the meaning of secuon 717 of 1CTA. Accordingly, on a transfer of an Preferred Securities, an
amount of interest which 35 qust and easonable will be weaed as accrued income under the Scheme.
Hawever, the transferes will not be entitled to any celiet tor that amount vnder the Seheme.

Paymwent of Imterest in Shares

f certain cases the lesuer's obligation to make 2n interest pavolent on the Preferred Securities may be
discharped by the issue by the lssuer o the Trusree of ordinary shares (as described in the Summary under
“Alternanve conpan safisfaction mechanism™ and ax ser our in more deail in Conditon 6 of the Terms and
Canditions), The ordinary shares of the Tssuer, which are denominated o sterling, will be issued o che
Trustee acting on behalf of the Couponholders. They will then be mandacorily exchanged for units of stack
in the Bank twhich are deneminaced in euro) thar have a market value equal w the paymentist in question.
which will then be sold by the Trustee o the market. The Trustee will then make a cash payment o
Couponholders which will be equal to the interest paymentis) in guestion.

[e is inrended rthat the ordinary shares issued by the Issuer will have 2 market value fexpressed in curad equal
to the outstanding inrerest paymends). Provided thae chis is the case, 4 Couponholder should noo realise a
capital gain as a cesult of the mandatory exchange of those shares for unirs of ordinary steck in the Bank.

Fuor Couponholders not withm the charge to United Kingdom corporation tax in respect of the Preferrcd
Securities, the issue of ordinary shares by the Issuer is likely to be treated as pavment of the interest
payment(s] i guestion,

Stamp Duty/Stamp Duty Reserve Tax (“SDRT™)

Unless and until interest pavable on the Preferred Securities is deferred [see Condition 4 of the Terms and
Conditdonst and the Alernative Coupon Sadsfaction Mechanism referred o in Condition & applics, no
tiability to United Kingdom stamp dury or SDRT will anise on an agreement to cransfer or an actual
trauster rf the Preferrad Securities; they will constitnte “loan capieal™ qualifying for exemption from stamp
dury and $13RT, Alter such a deterrul the “luan capiral™ exemprion may not be available and accordingly an
agrecment to transfer of an actual rransfer of the Preferred Secunties may be sabject to stamp dunSURT ar
the rare, currenddy, of (.5 per cent, of the consideration given or agreed for the vansfer,

2. IRELAND

This scction constitutes 3 brief summary of relevant currene Inish tax law and practice with regard 1o halders
af the Preferred Securities. The comiments are not exhaustive and relate aaly o the position of persons who
are the ahsolure heneficial owners of Preferred Securities and interest and may not apply to certam classes of
persons such as Dealers. Prospecive investurs in the Preferred Securities who are in any doubt as to their tax
position should consult their professional advisers.

Encashment Tax

Preferred Socurities issued in bearer form and which are quored on a recognised stock exchange constitue
“quoted Furchonds™ under Section 84 of the Insh Tases Consolidation Act, 1997, Encashment tax may
arise in respect of prefereed securiries ssued in bearer form which canstiture the gquoted Eorobonds, Where
interest pavments are made in respect of such Notes, by an Insh collecunn agent acring on behalf of a
holder of Preferred Security, encashment tax will arise and so withholding tax will be deducted from such
payments at the standard rate of rx (which is currently 22 per cent|, unless the person pwning the
Preferred Securitics and entitled to the interest 15 not resident in Ircland and has provided the appropriate
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declazation to the relevant person. It is alse necessary to avoid withholding that such interest is not deemed
under the provisions of Irish tax legislation w be income of another person that 15 resident in Ireland, Holders
of the Freferred Sccurities should aote that in the case of the Preferred Securitivs sueed 0 bearer form heing
guoted Furabonds, the appointment of an Trish collection agent un their behalf will (subjeet to the above)
bring thern within the charge 10 encashment ax.

In the case of interest payments made by or through a paying agent outside Ireland, no encashment tax arises.

Capltal Gains Tax

A holder of a Prefeered Sceurity will be sulgece to [rish taxes on capital gains on a disposal of the Preferred
Security unless such hoider is a person neither resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland who does not have
af enrerprise or an intercst w an enterprise, which carries on business in Ireland throngh a branch or agency
or 3 permanent representative to which or 1o whom the Preferred Securities are attribueable.

Capital Acquisitions Tax

A pifr or inhentance consisting of Preferred Secoriries will generally be within the charge tor Irish capital
acguisitions tax iF either (i} the disponer or the doncefsuccessar in relarion we the gift or inheritance is
resident or ordinarily resident in Ireland (or in certain dreumstances, iF the disponer is domiciled i lreland
irvospective of his residence or that of the donesfsuccessor) on the relevant date ar (i) if the Preferred
Secutities are Irish situated property. Preferred Secerities which are tn bearer form and are physically
located outside Treland are generally not regarded as Irish property.

3. PROPOSED EU DIRECTIVE ON THE TAXATION OF SAVINGS INCOME

In June 2000 the Furopean Council agreed woamend carhier peoposals published in AMay 1998 by the
turopean Commission regarding the taxation of incame of non-residents and relatiog, in particular, o the
intraduction of withholding tax on payments of interest, The Council no longer intends wo reguire member
states b implemenr a wichholding tax regime in relation to payments of interest. Instead, subject e the
entitlement of cerin memher states (not including the United Kingdom) to impose withholding for a
transitional peticdd of not greawr than seven years afrer the implementation of these proposals and subject
b a nwmber of ather conditions, the Councll intends to require member states 1o introduce an exchange of
information syscem in telation to incerest and similar income by 31 Decomber 2002 It is understewod that
Trelanud will Favour the exchange of informanon system cather than the transitional withhoalding tax regime,
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Subscription and Sale

Einder a subscription agreement cnered into with the Issuer amd the Bank om 28 Febeuary 2001 (the
“Subscription Agrecment™h, UBS AG, acting throogh ity business group UBS Warhurg, Cazerove & Co. and
J&E Tavy trading as Dave Stocklwokers {rogether the “Managers™ have agreed o subscribe for rthe
Preberred Securities au the issue price of 99.862 per cent of their prncipal amount. The Issucr has agrecd wo
pay to the Managers & combined manapement and underwriting commissson of 0,50 per wont. and a selling
coteession of 4.8 por cont, of the principal amouont of ehe Preferved Secarives, The Subscriprion Agrecment
i5 subject o wrnunation N certain oreamstances poor w0 paviment o che bisoer.

SELLING RESTRICTIONS

United States

The Preferred Secwrtivs have not been and will nor be registered vnder the U5 Securitics Ao of 1933, as
amcided {ghe “Securities Act™), and may not be offered or sold within the United Stawes or @, or for the
account of beneht of, US persons except in Cortain IFansactions CXCmpe from the registration requirements
of the Securigies Aot Terms vsed i this paragraph have the meanings given to them by Repulation 5 ander
the Sceunimies Act,

Preferred Securitics are sebject vo US tax law requirements and moay nes be offered, sold or delivered within
the United Stares or s possessions or to & US person, excepr jn certain fransactions permitted by U5 ax
regmanions, Termis used i rhis paragraph have the mcanings given w diem by the US Inernal Revenue
Cade of 1956 and vegulations therevnder.

Each Manager has ageeed that, excepr as permitted by the Subscription Agreemen, it will not offer, seli ar
deliver Preferred Securicies () as pare of theie distribution at any time, or {if) otherwise annl 40 days after the
later of the commencement of the offering and the Clostng Date (as defined in the Subscription Agreement),
within fhe United Stares or 10, or for the accouar oo benche of, TS persons, and thae it will have senr e cach
dealer to which ir sells Preferred Sccurities duning the distribution compliance period a confrmation or other
niece serting farth the restricritms ono offers and eales of Preferred Securities within the Unired Stawes or 1, or
for rthe account or benehit of, US persons,

e addirton, until 40 davs aleer the commencement of the offering, an offer or sale of Preferred Securities
within rhe United States by a dealer thay is e participating in the offering may viclare the registeation
reguitcments of the Secarities At

United Kingdom
Each Manager has represeated and agreed thar:

14 it has not offered o sold and prior o e date six momhbs after vhe dare of ssue of the Peeferred
Securities will nar effer ar selt any Preferred Secoritees to persons in the United Kmpdom excoept to
persons whose ordinary activives involve them in acquining, holding, managing or disposing af
wivestrnents (as principal or agent] for the purposes of thor businesses or otherwise i Circumstances
which have nor resufted and will ner resulr in an affer ro the public in the Uned Kinpdom witkin the
meaning of the Public (Offers of Secarivies Regulanons 1995

{2) u has complied and will comply with ali applicable provisions of the Financial Services Acr 1986 wath
respece to anvehing done by it in relation o che Preferred Secerinies in, from or otherwise invelving the
Linited Kimpedom; and

{31 it bas only 1sseed or passed on, and will only isswe or pass on, in the United Kingdom any dacoment
received by i in connection with the ssue of the Preferted Securioes, w a person who is of a kind
deseribed in Arvicle TH3t of the Financial Services Act 1986 (Invesomcnt Advertsements) {Exemprions!
rder 19%6 or b5 a person o whom the docmment may atherwise lawhally be issocd or passed on,

Ireland
Fach Manager has reproseared and agrecd that:

(i} other than in circumstances which do nor constiture an offer o the public within the meaning of the
Companies Acrs, 1963 o 1999 of Treland (i} ir has not offered or sold and will mew offer or sell, in




Subscription and Sale

fbs)

fe}

(i

Ircland or clsewhere, by means of any documene, any of the Preferred Securities and (i) ir has noe issued
and will not issue at any time, in Ireland or elsewhere, any application form for any of the Preferred
Securities uoless the application form is accompanied by this Offering Ciccalar or e applicanon form
indicates where this Offering Circular can be abwained or inspected;

it has por offered or seld and will not offer or sell any Preferred Securities to persons in Ireland excepr
where an offer or sale is to persons in the context of their trades, professions or occuparions and it has
not made and will nog make ar any time any offer of the Preferred Securities in frefand to which the
European Communities [Transferable Sccurities and Stock Exchange) Repulations, 19932 would apply;

i will not sell any Preterred Securitics parseant to this Offering Cirewlar and ir will por ke any
proceedings pursuant o this Offering Cirenlar and it will not take any procecdings on applications
made pursuant 1o this Oftering Circular uoeil the Fourth Business Day in Ireland after the date of this
Offering Circular; and

it will nor underwrite the ssue of, or place dhe Preferred Securitivs otherwise than in contormity wich the
provisions of the Investment Inteemediaries Act, 1995 of Iecland, including, without limitation, Sections
9, 23 (including any adverrsing restrictions made thereunder) and 50 and any codes of conduct made
under Secrion 37,

Ganeral

Each Manaper has undertaken thar it will comply with all applicable securities laws and regulations in each
jurisdiction in which it purchases, offers, sells or delivers Preferred Securities or possesses or disteibutes rthis
Ofering Circular or any srher offering material and will obtain any consent, approval or permission which (s
required by it for the purchase, offer or sale by ir of Preferted Securities under the laws and regulations in
force inany jurisdiction te which it 15 subject o in which it makes such purchases, offers or sales.
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General Information

(n
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In connecticn with the appheation to list the Preferred Securities on the Loxembourg Stock Exchange a
legal notice relating to the issue of the Prefereed Secorites and capies of the Memorandum and Avticles
af Associatiem of the Issucr and the Charter and Bye-Laws of the Bank will be deposited with the Chief
Registrar of the District Court in Tuxembonry " Grefher en Chef du Teibonal d"Accondisseiwent de ov a
Luxembiore™ where such documenes may be examined and vopics obrained.

The Preferrgd Secwrities have been accepted  For dearaswe  through Foroclear and  Clearstream,
Luxembourg with 4 Common Code of G12561148, The 15IN code for the Preferred Secunnics is
N5M 25511482,

Al Preferred Securities and Coupons will carry o legend wothe Following effect “Any United States
person whe holds ehis obligation wall be sobject o limitations under the Uinted Seaces income tax laws,
including the fimitations prowvided in sections 1651} and 12871} of the Internal Revenoe Code™. The
sections referred o in such legend provide thar Uniwed Staces persons, with certain exceprions, will not
be entitled to deducr any loss, and will oot be entitled to capital gains trearment vath respect to any gain,
reaiised an aay sabe, exchange ar redemprion of o Prebeered Securire or Coupan,

(e 285 June 2000 rhe Commission of the Eoropean Commuonites served a Staternent of Chyjections and
imitiared proceedings, under Artcle 81 of the Treaty cstablishing the Furepean Comununity, against the
Bank, Allied Icish Banks, ple, TSE Bank, lrish [ife & Permonene ple, Ubster Bank Lrd., National Irish
Bank Ird, ACC Bank ple, rhe Irish Bankers Federation and rhe Irish Morgages and Savings
Association (the “Addressees™ I irs Starement of Ohjecnions the Commission alleged thac the
Addressees agreed ta fix prices in leland for the exchange of curo-rone cuerencies fallowing the
introduction of the curs as the single carrency of the cleven partcipating Member States of che
Furopean Uniop, TE the Conmmission confirms the infrngemene, followang its consideration of che
defrnce statemenss submitied By all the Addressees, it s empowered 1o mmpose fines of up 1w £1 million
or a sum i oxceeding 1'% of the urnaover e the preceding busimess year of the enterprises in question.
The Bank lodged a reply against the Commission™s Statement of Objection en 19 Ocroher 2000,

Save as disclosed in the preceding paragraph, theee ane not, nor have there been any, legal or arbicration
proceedings involving the lssuer, the Bank or any subsidiary of the Bank other than the Issuer which may
bave or have had during e 12 months prior oo the date hercof o significann cifeet on the financial
position of the Group taken as a whole, nor, so far as the Bank s aware, are any such proceedings
petding or theearened invelving the Bank or any of irs subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed in this Offering Circular, there has been ne material adverse change ain the brancial
positinn of the Tasuer, the Bank e the Group since 31 Aarch 2000,

Mo redemption ar purchase (other than a purchase in the ordinary course of 2 bosiness dealing in
securitics andfor for the account of a rhird party) by the Bank, the Issuer or any of the Bank's other
subsidiaries of the Preferred Securities will e made without the prior consent of the Cettral Bank of
Irelasd.

Copies of the Lirest annual report and accounes of Lssuer, the larest annual teporn and consolidated
acpounts of the Bank and the Yatest vnaodited interim accounts of the Isuer and the larest uwnawdited
mterim consolidated accounts of the Bank may be obtined, and copies of the Trost Deed wall he
available for inspection, at the specified office of cach of the Paying Agents dering normal business
s, sn fong as amy of the Preforred Secorizies is owtstanding. The interim accounts of the Bank are
correnthy produced on a semi-annual basis, The Bank dees not peblish non-conseliclaced poodit and fess
ACCUUNTS,

The auditers of the Issuer, PricewaterhauseConpers, Chartered Accounrants and Repistered Audirors,
Bristol who up to 1 July 1998 practised in the name of Price Waterhouse have audited the accounres of
the lssuer an avcordance with the laws of Northern Ireland and tsued an unegualihed aodir opinien Bor
each of the fhree Amancial years coding 31 March 20000,
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Garveral Informaton

The auditors of the Bank, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors, Dublin
whi up to 1 July 1998 practised in the name of Price Waterhouse have audited the accounts of the Bank in
accordance with the laws of Ireland and issped an ungualified audit opinion for each of the chree financial
vears cading 31 March 2000,
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